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Chairman’s statement On	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	it	gives	me	great	pleasure	to	welcome	
you	 to	 the	25th	Annual	General	Meeting	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	
and	present	to	you,	the	Annual	Report	and	the	financial	statements	of	the	
Group which comprises of the Company and its fully owned subsidiary 
Negombo	Beach	Resorts	 (Private)	 Limited,	 for	 the	 financial	 year	ended	
31st March 2017. 

During	the	year,	the	latest	addition	to	the	‘Heritance’	brand	of	properties,	
‘Heritance	Negombo’	opened	its	doors	to	the	world	as	a	five-star	hotel,	
with	139	 rooms,	multiple	dining	options	and	 luxurious	comfort	on	par	
with international industry standards. Sprawled across 6.5 acres of 
western coast beachfront –  the largest for a property in the area – the 
chic	and	contemporary	Heritance	Negombo	has	embraced	the	‘city	hotel	
on	the	beach’	concept	with	flair,	pioneering	a	new-age	of	hospitality	in	
the region.

Offering	refreshing	holiday	experiences	curated	to	attract	the	modern-day	
traveler,	the	Hotel,	since	its	launch	in	April	2016	has	achieved	the	highest	
ratings	from	digital	tourism	review	channels,	signifying	its	brand	strength;	
whilst	 recording	an	operating	profit	during	 the	 first	 year	of	operations,	
despite the high inventory in the area.

local InDUstrY lanDscaPe 

The	Sri	Lankan	tourism	industry	continued	its	growth	momentum	in	2016,	
achieving	an	annual	growth	of	14%,	with	arrivals	crossing	a	milestone	of	
2 million. Increase in tourism related infrastructure development as well 
as	geo-political	tension	in	major	tourist	destinations	of	the	world	helped	
Sri	Lanka	attract	tourists	during	the	year	under	review;	although	closure	
of the country’s international airport for little over three months adversely 
impacted arrivals during the peak winter period. 

Sri	Lanka	continued	to	attract	Western	European	travelers	as	the	largest	
source	of	tourists,	accounting	for	over	31%	of	the	total	arrivals;	a	16%	
increase compared to the previous year. Tourist arrivals from East Asia 
also	sustained	its	upward	trend,	accounting	for	over	20%	of	total	arrivals,	
led	by	an	impressive	growth	in	arrivals	from	China.	For	Sri	Lanka,	India	
remained	the	largest	country	of	tourist	origin	in	2016,	followed	by	China,	
the	UK,	Germany	and	France,	cumulatively	responsible	for	51%	of	total	
arrivals to the country.

With	focus	on	these	key	growth	markets,	the	Government	of	Sri	Lanka	has	
projected	2.5	million	arrivals	in	2017,	which	would	in	turn	aspire	to	bring	
in USD 4 billion in earnings. 

toUrIsM InDUstrY PerForMance

As	a	country,	Sri	Lanka	is	strategically	located	on	the	world	map	and	is	
blessed with a unique natural diversity ensuing multiplicity in offerings in 
a	compact	environ.	However,	 the	country	 remains	a	story	of	untapped	
potential. Immediate attention by those in authority is required to ensure 
that	 the	critical	 issues	inhibiting	its	growth	and	challenge	the	long-term	
sustainability are addressed.

With	 the	 rise	 in	 tourist	 arrivals,	 the	 informal	 sector	 has	 sprouted	 its	
wings with a large number of accommodations coming in to operation. 
Although a country’s tourism sector benefits from having a diverse 
portfolio of options to meet the varying requirements and capacities of 
diverse	travelers,	the	unregistered	and	non-traditional	segments	such	as	
Air BnB and Home Stays which have grown in popularity over the last 
two	 years,	 cater	 to	 a	 different	 segment	 of	 those	who	 do	 not	 seek	 the	
premium	brands.	However,	the	playing	field	needs	to	be	an	even	one	in	
which legitimate players do not have to compete with an informal sector 
which may circumvent the regulatory system due to lack of monitoring 
and enforcing mechanisms. It is also vital that regulations are enforced 
to ensure that this sector meets certain standards in order to maintain Sri 
Lanka’s	competitiveness	in	the	long	run	and	that	they	pay	taxes	in	order	to	
ensure fair play for the legitimate players. The importance of regulations 
is further underscored by the need for the government to enhance its tax 
revenues and the fact that tax revenues as a percentage of GDP in 2016 
remained unchanged from the previous year at 12.4 %. A proposal in the 
2016 budget to absorb the informal sector into the formal tourism sector 
is hence welcome but needs implementation. 

The leisure industry is also hampered by a dearth of skilled labour and 
escalating	wage	costs,	which	require	cohesive	effort	by	all	stakeholders	

of	 the	 industry.	 The	 challenge	 for	 Sri	 Lanka	 is	 further	 exacerbated	 by	
the rise in inventory and the advent of several leading international 
hotel chains to the country. The rise in demand has begun to increase 
the cost and scarcity of skilled labour and hence the need for greater 
investments into skills training and development in hospitality through 
Public-Private	Partnership	(PPP).	Your	Company	has	put	in	place	special	
human resource initiatives to enhance skill and empower our family of 
employees. Heritance Negombo is equipped with the best of its kind 
in	 staff	 accommodation,	 raising	 the	 bar	 for	 the	 entire	 industry.	 We	
strongly believe that such initiatives would enhance our employee value 
proposition amidst the intensifying competition for human resources in 
the industry.

Sri	 Lanka	 will	 also	 benefit	 from	 a	 strategic	 destination	 marketing	
campaign,	 targeted	 across	 the	 world	 through	 select	 channels	 of	
communication. Such a campaign will bolster demand for the destination 
which we believe is vital as a solution to meet excess capacity in the 
country.	 We	 are	 however	 encouraged	 this	 year,	 by	 signs	 of	 such	 a	
campaign seeing the light of day and fervently hope that a cohesive and 
integrated	campaign	which	befits	the	country’s	unique	product	offering,	
spearheaded at a national level will be launched this year. It is also vital 
that	such	a	campaign	does	not	become	a	one-off	effort,	but	is	sustained	
over a long period.

oPeratInG enVIronMent

As	 mentioned	 before,	 Heritance	 Negombo,	 since	 its	 launch	 in	 April	
2016	has	completed	a	highly	satisfactory	first	year	of	operations.	We	are	
encouraged by the remarkable revenue of Rs. 594 million and operating 
profit (EBITDA) of Rs. 25 million achieved amidst established competition 
from a large room inventory in the region. 

However,	as	expected	with	a	new	property,	the	Group	recorded	Rs.	483	
million loss after tax after accounting for depreciation of Rs. 223 million. 
Finance expenses of Rs. 285 million was incurred on account of debt 
funding obtained to partially finance the construction investment of Rs. 
5.4 billion.  

Designed	 for	 luxury-seekers	 with	 a	 penchant	 for	 sun,	 sea	 and	 sand,	
Heritance	 Negombo	 enjoyed	 a	 large	 number	 of	 guests	 from	 the	 UK	
market	during	the	year	under	review.	Online	marketing	played	a	pivotal	
role	in	driving	revenue	to	the	Hotel,	providing	the	highest	contribution	in	
room nights. 

Given	the	results,	your	Hotel,	as	one	of	the	strategies	for	the	coming	year	
will	focus	on	enhancing	yields	through	its	digital	marketing	initiatives.		We	
will continue to position the property in European markets and harness 
the	many	synergies	of	being	a	multi-destination	player.	

The Management is confident that the coming year will see a significant 
increase	in	revenue,	as	the	property	further	establish	itself	in	the	market.	

acKnowleDGeMents 

I wish to convey my sincere appreciation to the Board of Directors for 
their	guidance,	unstinted	support	and	cooperation	during	the	year	under	
review. My thanks also go out to the General Manager and the dedicated 
staff	of	Heritance	Negombo	whose,	passion	and	commitment	have	been	
the cornerstone of your Group’s success.

My heartfelt gratitude also go to the shareholders of Browns Beach Hotels 
PLC	for	their	patience	and	trust	placed	on	us	as	we	took	on	the	challenge	
of relaunching this property.

I	also	appreciate	 the	contribution	by	numerous	other	stakeholders,	our	
loyal	 clients	and	ever-growing	customers	 for	 inspiring	our	 journey	and	
propelling	us	to	raise	the	bar	in	hospitality	in	Sri	Lanka.

D.h.s. Jayawardena

Chairman 
25th August 2017
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Deshamanya D. h. s. Jayawardena

Deshamanya	 Harry	 Jayawardena	 is	 one	 of	 Sri	 Lanka’s	
most successful businessmen and heads many successful 
enterprises in very diverse fields of activity. He is the Founder 
Director and current Chairman/ Managing Director of the 
Stassen	Group	of	Companies	 -	a	diversified	group	 in	 the	
import	and	export	trade,	and	the	Chairman	of	Lanka	Milk	
Foods	(CWE)	PLC.	He	is	also	the	Chairman	of	the	Distilleries	
Company	 of	 Sri	 Lanka	 PLC,	 Balangoda	 Plantations	 PLC,	
and	Madulsima	Plantations	PLC.	 In	addition	 to	being	 the	
Chairman	of	 Lanka	 Bell	 Ltd.,	Melstacorp	 Limited,	Milford	
Exports	 (Ceylon)	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Ambewela	 Livestock	Company	
Ltd.,	Ambewela	Products	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Lanka	Dairies	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	
Periceyl	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Texpro	 Industries	 Ltd.,	 Ceylon	 Garden	
Coir	(Pvt)	Ltd.

He is also the Chairman/ Managing Director/ Director of 
several other successful and reputable companies. He is a 
former	Director	of	Hatton	National	Bank	PLC,	 the	 largest	
listed	bank	in	Sri	Lanka.	Mr.	Jayawardena	was	the	former	
Chairman	of	Ceylon	Petroleum	Corporation	and	Sri	Lankan	
Airlines.

Mr. Jayawardena is presently the Honorary Consul for 
Denmark	and	on	9th	February	2010,	was	knighted	by	Her	
Majesty	the	Queen	of	Denmark	with	the	prestigious	honour	
of “Knight Cross of Dannebrog”

He	 has	 also	 been	 awarded	 in	 November	 2005,	 the	
title,	 “Deshamanya”	 in	 recognition	 of	 his	 services	 to	 the	
Motherland.

Mr.	Jayawardena	has	been	Chairman	of	Aitken	Spence	PLC	
since 25th April 2003.

Mr. J. M. s. Brito

Mr.	 Rajan	 Brito	 joined	 the	 Board	 of	 Aitken	 Spence	 PLC.,	
in April 2000 with a multidiscipline academic background 
and a wealth of experience from a career counting over 
35 years that includes experience working with several 
International	Organisations.	He	was	then	appointed	as	the	
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of Aitken Spence 
PLC	in	January	2002	and	presently	continues	in	these	roles.

Mr. Brito is an acclaimed senior professional in both private 
and	 public	 sector	 industries	 of	 Sri	 Lanka.	He	 is	 a	 former	
Chairman	of	DFCC	Bank,	Employers’	Federation	of	Ceylon,	
Sri	Lankan	Airlines,	where	he	currently	serves	as	a	Director,	
and	has	also	served	on	the	Board	of	the	Sri	Lanka	Insurance	
Corporation.	 He	 holds	 a	 LLB	 degree	 from	 University	 of	
London,	 MBA	 degree	 from	 London	 City	 Business	 School	
and is a Fellow of the Institutes of Chartered Accountants of 
both	Sri	Lanka	and	England	and	Wales.

Performance for the Year ended 31st March  2017 2016 change

Gross	Revenue	-	Rs.	‘000		 	593,861		 	-				 100%
Group	Profit	Before	Tax	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(482,909)	 	(97,111)	 397%
Group	Profit/(Loss)	After	Tax	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(482,909)	 	(104,577)	 362%
Group	Profit/(Loss)	Attributable	to	Equity	Holders	of	Parent	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(482,909)	 	(104,577)	 362%
Earnings/(Deficit)	per	Share	(EPS)	-	Rs.		 	(3.73)	 	(0.81)	 360%
Cost	of	Finance	-	Rs.	‘000		 	285,804		 	-				 100%
Interest	Cover	-	Number	of	Times		 	(0.69)	 	-				 100%
Return	on	Equity	-	%		 	(14.8)	 	0.1		 -24717%
   
Position as at the Year ended 31st March    

Total	Assets	-	Rs.	‘000		 	6,049,281		 	5,656,565		 7%
Long	term	interest	bearing	borrowings	-	Rs.	‘000		 	2,567,670		 	2,066,442		 24%
Total	Equity	-	Rs.	‘000		 	3,097,626		 	3,443,067		 -10%
Number	of	shares	in	issue	-	Number		 	129,600,000		 	129,600,000		 0%
Net	Assets	per	Share	-	Rs.		 	23.90		 	43.65		 -45%
Gearing	-	Debt/(Debt+Equity)	-	%		 	45.32		 	37.51		 21%
Debt/Total	Assets	-	%		 	42.45		 	36.53		 16%
Current	Ratio		 	0.07:1		 	0.09:1		 -2%
Quick	Asset	Ratio		 	0.06:1		 	0.08:1		 -2%
   
Market / shareholder Information as at year ended 31st March    

Market	Price	per	Share	-	Rs.		 	21.30		 	32.50		 -34%
Market	Capitalization	-	Rs.	‘000		 	2,760,480		 	4,212,000		 -34%
Price	Earnings	Ratio	-	Number	of	Times		 	(5.71)	 	(40.12)	 -86%
Dividend	payout	-	%	 -	 -	 0%
Dividend	yield	-	%	 -	 -	 0%
   
Value added for the year    

To	Government	-	Rs.	‘000		 	13,034		 	7,466		 75%
To	Employees	-	Rs.	‘000		 	135,040		 	57,252		 136%
To	Providers	of	Capital	-	Rs.	‘000		 	285,804		 	-				 100%
Retained	for	reinvestment	and	future	growth	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(260,251)	 	(103,670)	 151%
Total	Value	Added	-	Rs.	‘000		 	173,627		 	(38,952)	 -546%
   
sustainability indicators    

Total	Energy	Consumption	GJ		 	15,214		 	-				 100%
Energy	Consumption	Per	Guest	Night	-	MJ		 	401.35		 	-				 100%
Water	Consumption	m^3		 	52,217		 	-				 100%
Water	Consumption	Per	Guest	Night	-	Litres			 	1,377		 	-				 100%
Waste	to	Landfill	–	Per	Guest	Night	-	Kg		 0.40				 	-				 100%
Average	Training	hours	per	Employee	-	Hours		 	64.00		 	-				 100%
Community	Engagement	-	No.	of	Persons	Impacted	per	week		 	6,500		 	 100%



00 00

B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c

the BoarD oF DIrectors  GroUP PerForMance hIGhlIGhts 

Deshamanya D. h. s. Jayawardena

Deshamanya	 Harry	 Jayawardena	 is	 one	 of	 Sri	 Lanka’s	
most successful businessmen and heads many successful 
enterprises in very diverse fields of activity. He is the Founder 
Director and current Chairman/ Managing Director of the 
Stassen	Group	of	Companies	 -	a	diversified	group	 in	 the	
import	and	export	trade,	and	the	Chairman	of	Lanka	Milk	
Foods	(CWE)	PLC.	He	is	also	the	Chairman	of	the	Distilleries	
Company	 of	 Sri	 Lanka	 PLC,	 Balangoda	 Plantations	 PLC,	
and	Madulsima	Plantations	PLC.	 In	addition	 to	being	 the	
Chairman	of	 Lanka	 Bell	 Ltd.,	Melstacorp	 Limited,	Milford	
Exports	 (Ceylon)	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Ambewela	 Livestock	Company	
Ltd.,	Ambewela	Products	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Lanka	Dairies	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	
Periceyl	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Texpro	 Industries	 Ltd.,	 Ceylon	 Garden	
Coir	(Pvt)	Ltd.

He is also the Chairman/ Managing Director/ Director of 
several other successful and reputable companies. He is a 
former	Director	of	Hatton	National	Bank	PLC,	 the	 largest	
listed	bank	in	Sri	Lanka.	Mr.	Jayawardena	was	the	former	
Chairman	of	Ceylon	Petroleum	Corporation	and	Sri	Lankan	
Airlines.

Mr. Jayawardena is presently the Honorary Consul for 
Denmark	and	on	9th	February	2010,	was	knighted	by	Her	
Majesty	the	Queen	of	Denmark	with	the	prestigious	honour	
of “Knight Cross of Dannebrog”

He	 has	 also	 been	 awarded	 in	 November	 2005,	 the	
title,	 “Deshamanya”	 in	 recognition	 of	 his	 services	 to	 the	
Motherland.

Mr.	Jayawardena	has	been	Chairman	of	Aitken	Spence	PLC	
since 25th April 2003.

Mr. J. M. s. Brito

Mr.	 Rajan	 Brito	 joined	 the	 Board	 of	 Aitken	 Spence	 PLC.,	
in April 2000 with a multidiscipline academic background 
and a wealth of experience from a career counting over 
35 years that includes experience working with several 
International	Organisations.	He	was	then	appointed	as	the	
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of Aitken Spence 
PLC	in	January	2002	and	presently	continues	in	these	roles.

Mr. Brito is an acclaimed senior professional in both private 
and	 public	 sector	 industries	 of	 Sri	 Lanka.	He	 is	 a	 former	
Chairman	of	DFCC	Bank,	Employers’	Federation	of	Ceylon,	
Sri	Lankan	Airlines,	where	he	currently	serves	as	a	Director,	
and	has	also	served	on	the	Board	of	the	Sri	Lanka	Insurance	
Corporation.	 He	 holds	 a	 LLB	 degree	 from	 University	 of	
London,	 MBA	 degree	 from	 London	 City	 Business	 School	
and is a Fellow of the Institutes of Chartered Accountants of 
both	Sri	Lanka	and	England	and	Wales.

Performance for the Year ended 31st March  2017 2016 change

Gross	Revenue	-	Rs.	‘000		 	593,861		 	-				 100%
Group	Profit	Before	Tax	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(482,909)	 	(97,111)	 397%
Group	Profit/(Loss)	After	Tax	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(482,909)	 	(104,577)	 362%
Group	Profit/(Loss)	Attributable	to	Equity	Holders	of	Parent	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(482,909)	 	(104,577)	 362%
Earnings/(Deficit)	per	Share	(EPS)	-	Rs.		 	(3.73)	 	(0.81)	 360%
Cost	of	Finance	-	Rs.	‘000		 	285,804		 	-				 100%
Interest	Cover	-	Number	of	Times		 	(0.69)	 	-				 100%
Return	on	Equity	-	%		 	(14.8)	 	0.1		 -24717%
   
Position as at the Year ended 31st March    

Total	Assets	-	Rs.	‘000		 	6,049,281		 	5,656,565		 7%
Long	term	interest	bearing	borrowings	-	Rs.	‘000		 	2,567,670		 	2,066,442		 24%
Total	Equity	-	Rs.	‘000		 	3,097,626		 	3,443,067		 -10%
Number	of	shares	in	issue	-	Number		 	129,600,000		 	129,600,000		 0%
Net	Assets	per	Share	-	Rs.		 	23.90		 	43.65		 -45%
Gearing	-	Debt/(Debt+Equity)	-	%		 	45.32		 	37.51		 21%
Debt/Total	Assets	-	%		 	42.45		 	36.53		 16%
Current	Ratio		 	0.07:1		 	0.09:1		 -2%
Quick	Asset	Ratio		 	0.06:1		 	0.08:1		 -2%
   
Market / shareholder Information as at year ended 31st March    

Market	Price	per	Share	-	Rs.		 	21.30		 	32.50		 -34%
Market	Capitalization	-	Rs.	‘000		 	2,760,480		 	4,212,000		 -34%
Price	Earnings	Ratio	-	Number	of	Times		 	(5.71)	 	(40.12)	 -86%
Dividend	payout	-	%	 -	 -	 0%
Dividend	yield	-	%	 -	 -	 0%
   
Value added for the year    

To	Government	-	Rs.	‘000		 	13,034		 	7,466		 75%
To	Employees	-	Rs.	‘000		 	135,040		 	57,252		 136%
To	Providers	of	Capital	-	Rs.	‘000		 	285,804		 	-				 100%
Retained	for	reinvestment	and	future	growth	-	Rs.	‘000		 	(260,251)	 	(103,670)	 151%
Total	Value	Added	-	Rs.	‘000		 	173,627		 	(38,952)	 -546%
   
sustainability indicators    

Total	Energy	Consumption	GJ		 	15,214		 	-				 100%
Energy	Consumption	Per	Guest	Night	-	MJ		 	401.35		 	-				 100%
Water	Consumption	m^3		 	52,217		 	-				 100%
Water	Consumption	Per	Guest	Night	-	Litres			 	1,377		 	-				 100%
Waste	to	Landfill	–	Per	Guest	Night	-	Kg		 0.40				 	-				 100%
Average	Training	hours	per	Employee	-	Hours		 	64.00		 	-				 100%
Community	Engagement	-	No.	of	Persons	Impacted	per	week		 	6,500		 	 100%
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Ms. D. s. t. Jayawardena

Ms.	 Stasshani	 Jayawardena	 joined	 the	 Aitken	 Spence	
Group in January 2010 as a Management trainee. After 
gaining experience in several of its key strategic business 
units and group companies she was appointed to the 
Board	of	Aitken	Spence	PLC.,	in	December	2013	and	to	
the	Board	of	Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Holdings	PLC.,	 in	July	
2014. She was then appointed as Chairperson of Aitken 
Spence	 Hotel	Managements	 (Private)	 Limited	 in	 January	
2016 and is overall responsible for the tourism sector of 
the	Group	 that	 includes	hotels,	destination	management	
and overseas travel. She was the Joint Managing Director 
of	 Aitken	 Spence	 Hotel	 Managements	 (Private)	 Limited	
from April 2016 to March 2017.

A	 graduate	 of	 St.	 James’	 &	 Lucie	 Clayton	 College	 and	
Keele	University	in	the	United	Kingdom,	Ms.	Jayawardena	
was the youngest intern to work under US Senator Hilary 
Rodham Clinton and the Former US President Bill Clinton 
in	 2003.	 She	 is	 the	 Sri	 Lankan	 Ambassador	 of	 the	 EY	
NextGen Club.

She	 is	 the	 Chairperson	 of	 Splendor	 Media,	 a	 leading	
advertising and communication company. She is also 
a	 Director	 at	 Stassen	 Exports	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Milford	 Exports	
(Ceylon)	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Stassen	Natural	Foods	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Ceylon	
Garden	 Coir	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Milford	 Developers	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	
Stassen	Foods	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	C	D	B	Exports	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	EcoCorp	
Asia	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Aitken	Spence	Aviation	(Private)	Limited.

At present Ms. Jayawardena leads a team of international 
professionals in strengthening the service foundations and 
formulating a strategic road map for the tourism sector of 
the group. Cuurate a lifestyle brand with its first venture in 
high-end	hospitality	is	the	most	recent	assignment	that	Ms.	
Jayawardena heads as its Founder and Chairperson.

Mr. n. J. de silva Deva aditya

Mr.	Niranjan	Deva	Aditya,	born	in	Sri	Lanka,	was	educated	
in England with a Degree in Aero Engineering and a Post 
Graduate Research Fellowship in Economics. He has had 
an illustrious career as one of the most recognised and 
long serving politicians in the U.K. with over 35 years in 
public service.

Among his many inspirational and pivotal achievements 
are;	being	the	first	Asian	to	be	elected	as	a	Conservative	
Member	of	the	British	Parliament,	first	Asian	MP	to	serve	in	
the	British	Government,	the	first	Asian	to	be	appointed	as	
Her	Majesty’s	Deputy	Lord	Lieutenant	for	Greater	London,	
and the first Asian born MP to be elected to the European 
Parliament.	 As	 a	 recognition	 of	 his	 proficiency,	 he	 was	
nominated as a candidate for Secretary General to the 
UN in 2006 and has been honoured for his public and 
international	 services	 by	 the	UK,	 the	 Vatican,	 Sri	 Lanka,	
India	and	China.	Mr.	Deva	Aditya	 joined	Aitken	Spence	
PLC	in	2006	as	a	Non-Executive	Independent	Director	and	
holds the post to date.

He	is	a	Fellow	of	the	Royal	Society	for	Arts,	Manufacture	
and Commerce (Est. 1765).

the BoarD oF DIrectors - contd.

Mr. a. l. Gooneratne

Mr. Amitha Gooneratne has 
held several senior positions at 
Commercial	 Bank	 of	 Ceylon	 PLC	
and served as the Managing Director 
from 1997 to April 2012. He is a 
Fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered	 Accountants,	 England	
and	 Wales	 and	 a	 Fellow	 member	
of	 The	 Institute	 Of	 Chartered	
Accountants,	 Sri	 Lanka.	He	was	 the	
founder Chairman of the Financial 
Ombudsman	Sri	 Lanka	 (Guarantee)	
Ltd	 and	 was	 a	 former	Chairman	 of	
the	 Sri	 Lanka	 Bank’s	 Association	
(Guarantee)	 Ltd.	 He	 was	 the	
Managing Director of Commercial 
Development	 Company	 PLC,	 and	
was the Chairman of Commercial 
Insurance	 Brokers	 (Pvt)	 Limited.	 He	
was nominated to the Board of Sri 
Lankan	Air	Lines	during	2002	-	2004	
by	 the	 Government	 of	 Sri	 Lanka.	
On	his	 retirement,	Mr.	Gooneratne,	
assumed duties as Managing 
Director	 of	 Melstacorp	 Limited,	
which is a strategic investment arm 
of the Distilleries Company of Sri 
Lanka	 PLC.	 He	 joined	 the	 boards	
of several subsidiary Companies 
of	 Melstacorp	 Limited.	 He	 is	 an	
Independent Director of Textured 
Jersey	 Lanka	 PLC,	 Lanka	 IOC	 PLC	
and Commercial Development 
Company	PLC.

Mr. rajan asirwatham

Mr. Asirwatham was appointed 
to the Board in March 2016. At 
present,	 he	 is	 the	 Chairman	 of	 the	
Audit	 committee,	 Related	 Party	
Transactions	 Review	 committee,	
a member of the Remuneration 
committee and the Nomination 
committee. 

He was the Senior Partner and 
Country Head of KPMG from 
2001	 to	2008.	 Further,	 he	was	 the	
Chairman of the Steering Committee 
for	 the	 Sustainable	 Tourism	 Project	
funded	 by	 the	 World	 Bank	 for	
the Ministry of Tourism and was 
also a member of the Presidential 
Commission	on	Taxation,	appointed	
by His Excellency the President of Sri 
Lanka.	 Mr.	 Asirwatham	 is	 a	 Fellow	
member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants	of	Sri	Lanka.	

He is also a Board member of the 
Post Graduate Institute of Medicine 
and a member of the council of the 
University of Colombo. 

He also serves on the Boards of Aitken 
Spence	 PLC,	 Dilmah	 Tea	 Services	
PLC.,	 Royal	 Ceramics	 PLC.,	 CIC	
Holdings	PLC.,	Mercantile	Merchant	
Bank.,	 Dankotuwa	 Porcelain	 PLC.,	
Colombo	 City	 Holdings	 PLC.,	
and several other privately held 
companies.

Mr. christie ranjan stanislaus

Mr.	 Christie	 Ranjan	 Stanislaus	 is	
a graduate from Hotelfacshule 
Hannover	 West	 Germany	 in	 Hotel	
operations	and	Gastronomy,	alumnus	
of	Cornel	University,	School	of	Hotel	
administration	 USA,	 and	 L’école	
hôtellière	 de	 Lausanne,	 Switzerland.	
He	is	a	career	hotelier,	with	over	two	
decades of management experience 
in various aspects of hotel business in 
Asia,	Middle	East,	Africa	and	Europe.

He has had his corporate associations 
with international hotel chains like 
Moevenpick,	 Starwood	 and	 fairly	
long	stint	with	the	Taj	Hotels,	Resorts,	
and Palaces during which he has 
undergone extensive management 
development programs and 
managed all their three properties in 
Sri	Lanka.

His relationship with Browns Beach 
Hotels	PLC	started	in	the	year	2010,	
with the redevelopment of Heritance 
Negombo where he spearheaded 
the	 conceptualisation,	 execution	 of	
the	 project	 and	 managed	 the	 pre-
opening of the property.
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Ms. D. s. t. Jayawardena

Ms.	 Stasshani	 Jayawardena	 joined	 the	 Aitken	 Spence	
Group in January 2010 as a Management trainee. After 
gaining experience in several of its key strategic business 
units and group companies she was appointed to the 
Board	of	Aitken	Spence	PLC.,	in	December	2013	and	to	
the	Board	of	Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Holdings	PLC.,	 in	July	
2014. She was then appointed as Chairperson of Aitken 
Spence	 Hotel	Managements	 (Private)	 Limited	 in	 January	
2016 and is overall responsible for the tourism sector of 
the	Group	 that	 includes	hotels,	destination	management	
and overseas travel. She was the Joint Managing Director 
of	 Aitken	 Spence	 Hotel	 Managements	 (Private)	 Limited	
from April 2016 to March 2017.

A	 graduate	 of	 St.	 James’	 &	 Lucie	 Clayton	 College	 and	
Keele	University	in	the	United	Kingdom,	Ms.	Jayawardena	
was the youngest intern to work under US Senator Hilary 
Rodham Clinton and the Former US President Bill Clinton 
in	 2003.	 She	 is	 the	 Sri	 Lankan	 Ambassador	 of	 the	 EY	
NextGen Club.

She	 is	 the	 Chairperson	 of	 Splendor	 Media,	 a	 leading	
advertising and communication company. She is also 
a	 Director	 at	 Stassen	 Exports	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Milford	 Exports	
(Ceylon)	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Stassen	Natural	Foods	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Ceylon	
Garden	 Coir	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	 Milford	 Developers	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.,	
Stassen	Foods	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	C	D	B	Exports	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	EcoCorp	
Asia	(Pvt)	Ltd.,	Aitken	Spence	Aviation	(Private)	Limited.

At present Ms. Jayawardena leads a team of international 
professionals in strengthening the service foundations and 
formulating a strategic road map for the tourism sector of 
the group. Cuurate a lifestyle brand with its first venture in 
high-end	hospitality	is	the	most	recent	assignment	that	Ms.	
Jayawardena heads as its Founder and Chairperson.

Mr. n. J. de silva Deva aditya

Mr.	Niranjan	Deva	Aditya,	born	in	Sri	Lanka,	was	educated	
in England with a Degree in Aero Engineering and a Post 
Graduate Research Fellowship in Economics. He has had 
an illustrious career as one of the most recognised and 
long serving politicians in the U.K. with over 35 years in 
public service.

Among his many inspirational and pivotal achievements 
are;	being	the	first	Asian	to	be	elected	as	a	Conservative	
Member	of	the	British	Parliament,	first	Asian	MP	to	serve	in	
the	British	Government,	the	first	Asian	to	be	appointed	as	
Her	Majesty’s	Deputy	Lord	Lieutenant	for	Greater	London,	
and the first Asian born MP to be elected to the European 
Parliament.	 As	 a	 recognition	 of	 his	 proficiency,	 he	 was	
nominated as a candidate for Secretary General to the 
UN in 2006 and has been honoured for his public and 
international	 services	 by	 the	UK,	 the	 Vatican,	 Sri	 Lanka,	
India	and	China.	Mr.	Deva	Aditya	 joined	Aitken	Spence	
PLC	in	2006	as	a	Non-Executive	Independent	Director	and	
holds the post to date.

He	is	a	Fellow	of	the	Royal	Society	for	Arts,	Manufacture	
and Commerce (Est. 1765).

the BoarD oF DIrectors - contd.

Mr. a. l. Gooneratne

Mr. Amitha Gooneratne has 
held several senior positions at 
Commercial	 Bank	 of	 Ceylon	 PLC	
and served as the Managing Director 
from 1997 to April 2012. He is a 
Fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered	 Accountants,	 England	
and	 Wales	 and	 a	 Fellow	 member	
of	 The	 Institute	 Of	 Chartered	
Accountants,	 Sri	 Lanka.	He	was	 the	
founder Chairman of the Financial 
Ombudsman	Sri	 Lanka	 (Guarantee)	
Ltd	 and	 was	 a	 former	Chairman	 of	
the	 Sri	 Lanka	 Bank’s	 Association	
(Guarantee)	 Ltd.	 He	 was	 the	
Managing Director of Commercial 
Development	 Company	 PLC,	 and	
was the Chairman of Commercial 
Insurance	 Brokers	 (Pvt)	 Limited.	 He	
was nominated to the Board of Sri 
Lankan	Air	Lines	during	2002	-	2004	
by	 the	 Government	 of	 Sri	 Lanka.	
On	his	 retirement,	Mr.	Gooneratne,	
assumed duties as Managing 
Director	 of	 Melstacorp	 Limited,	
which is a strategic investment arm 
of the Distilleries Company of Sri 
Lanka	 PLC.	 He	 joined	 the	 boards	
of several subsidiary Companies 
of	 Melstacorp	 Limited.	 He	 is	 an	
Independent Director of Textured 
Jersey	 Lanka	 PLC,	 Lanka	 IOC	 PLC	
and Commercial Development 
Company	PLC.

Mr. rajan asirwatham

Mr. Asirwatham was appointed 
to the Board in March 2016. At 
present,	 he	 is	 the	 Chairman	 of	 the	
Audit	 committee,	 Related	 Party	
Transactions	 Review	 committee,	
a member of the Remuneration 
committee and the Nomination 
committee. 

He was the Senior Partner and 
Country Head of KPMG from 
2001	 to	2008.	 Further,	 he	was	 the	
Chairman of the Steering Committee 
for	 the	 Sustainable	 Tourism	 Project	
funded	 by	 the	 World	 Bank	 for	
the Ministry of Tourism and was 
also a member of the Presidential 
Commission	on	Taxation,	appointed	
by His Excellency the President of Sri 
Lanka.	 Mr.	 Asirwatham	 is	 a	 Fellow	
member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants	of	Sri	Lanka.	

He is also a Board member of the 
Post Graduate Institute of Medicine 
and a member of the council of the 
University of Colombo. 

He also serves on the Boards of Aitken 
Spence	 PLC,	 Dilmah	 Tea	 Services	
PLC.,	 Royal	 Ceramics	 PLC.,	 CIC	
Holdings	PLC.,	Mercantile	Merchant	
Bank.,	 Dankotuwa	 Porcelain	 PLC.,	
Colombo	 City	 Holdings	 PLC.,	
and several other privately held 
companies.

Mr. christie ranjan stanislaus

Mr.	 Christie	 Ranjan	 Stanislaus	 is	
a graduate from Hotelfacshule 
Hannover	 West	 Germany	 in	 Hotel	
operations	and	Gastronomy,	alumnus	
of	Cornel	University,	School	of	Hotel	
administration	 USA,	 and	 L’école	
hôtellière	 de	 Lausanne,	 Switzerland.	
He	is	a	career	hotelier,	with	over	two	
decades of management experience 
in various aspects of hotel business in 
Asia,	Middle	East,	Africa	and	Europe.

He has had his corporate associations 
with international hotel chains like 
Moevenpick,	 Starwood	 and	 fairly	
long	stint	with	the	Taj	Hotels,	Resorts,	
and Palaces during which he has 
undergone extensive management 
development programs and 
managed all their three properties in 
Sri	Lanka.

His relationship with Browns Beach 
Hotels	PLC	started	in	the	year	2010,	
with the redevelopment of Heritance 
Negombo where he spearheaded 
the	 conceptualisation,	 execution	 of	
the	 project	 and	 managed	 the	 pre-
opening of the property.
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corPorate GoVernance 

Corporate Governance signifies the manner in which 
Companies are directed and controlled. Good 
governance is an essential ingredient in corporate 
success and sustainable economic growth. The 
Board	 of	Directors	 of	 Browns	 Beach	Hotels	 PLC	 is	
committed	 to	maintain	 high	 standards	 of	 integrity,	
accountability,	 transparency	 and	 business	 ethics	 in	
the governance of the Group.

The Group is primarily guided by the Code of Best 
Practice on Corporate Governance issued by the 
Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	Sri	Lanka,	the	
Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	Colombo	 Stock	 Exchange	 and	
other	codes	of	Professional	 Institutes,	Chambers	of	
Commerce and Industry Associations. The report 
below sets out the Corporate Governance principles 
practiced by the organization.

the BoarD oF DIrectors 

composition and Balance 

The Board of Directors comprises seven Directors 
including the Chairman as at the end of financial 
year	 2016/17,	 of	 whom	 three	 Directors	 are	Non-
Executive Directors. Based on such declarations 
submitted	 by	 such	 Non-Executive	 Directors,	 the	
Board has determined that two out of those three 
Directors namely Messrs. Mr R. N. Asirwatham and 
Mr.	N.	J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	are	‘Independent’.

Mr. R. N. Asirwatham and Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva 
Aditya are Directors of Aitken Spence Hotel Holdings 
PLC		in	which	a	majority	of	the	other	Directors	of	the	
Company are Directors and which has a significant 
shareholding	in	the	Company.	However,	 in	view	of	
the	 fact	 that	 they	 are	 independent	 Non-Executive	
Directors	 of	 Aitken	 Spence	 Hotel	 Holdings	 PLC		
the	 Board	 was	 of	 the	 view	 that,	 their	 position	 as	
Directors	of	Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Holdings	PLC	does	
not	compromise	their	 independence	and	objectivity	
in discharging their functions as Directors of the 
Company. Hence Mr. R. N. Asirwatham and Mr. N. 
J. de Silva Deva Aditya are determined by the Board 
to	 be	 independent	 Directors.	 Independent	 Non-

Executive	Directors	remain	independent	from	day-to-
day	management	 decisions,	 activities	 and	 are	 free	
from	 any	 business	 and	 and/or	 other	 relationship,	
which may hinder their exercise of unbiased 
judgment.	

All	Non-Executive	Directors	are	expected	to	disclose	
any material business interest and submit an annual 
declaration	 confirming	 his	 independence/non-
independence in compliance with guidelines stated 
in the statutory regulations. 

The Company believes that the present composition 
of	 the	 Board,	 which	 has	 at	 its	 disposal,	 a	 vast	
reservoir of knowledge and experience in all areas 
of	 the	 Company’s	 operations	 such	 as	 Hoteliering,	
Marketing,	 Finance,	 Legal,	 Commerce	 and	
Entrepreneurship enables optimum efficiency and 
effectiveness. The name and the profiles of the 
Directors are given on pages 07 to 09 and page 
11 of this Annual Report. Mr.  C. R. Stanislaus was 
appointed to the Board with effect from 15th August 
2016	of	the	Company	and	Mr.	M.	V.	Theagarajah	
who was a Director ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 
11th September 2016. 

Directors’ Decision making

The Board regularly discusses and makes strategic 
decisions collectively on behalf of the Group. Apart 
from	taking	decisions	at	Board	Meetings,	the	Board	
also takes decisions via Circular Resolutions.

Board Meetings

Board meetings were held three times during the 
financial year and presided over by the Chairman. 
Any	 instances	 of	 non-attendance	 at	 the	 meetings	
were due to personal commitments or illness. The 
Directors	are	provided	with	minutes,	the	agenda	and	
the board papers giving them adequate time to study 
the contents prior to meetings. 

The attendance at the Board Meetings held during 
the year under review is as follows:

corPorate GoVernance - contd.

name of Directors  attendance at Board Meetings

 11th august 21st november 09th February

 2016 2016 2017

executive Directors

chairman
Deshamanya D H S Jayawardena    

Mr. J M S Brito    

Ms. D S T Jayawardena    

Mr. C R Stanislaus (Appointed w.e.f.
15th August 2016) N/A   

non-executive/non-Independent Director

Mr.	A	L	Gooneratne	    

non-executive/Independent Directors

Mr. R N Asirwatham    

Mr. N J de S Deva Aditya    

Mr.	M	V	Theagarajah	(Ceased	to	be	a
Directors w.e.f. 11th September 2016) • N/A N/A

 =   Present       •  =  Excused

the responsibilities of the Board

The	Board	of	Directors	is	responsible	for;

-	 Formulating	 business	 strategies	 taking	
into	 consideration	 the	 Group’s	 strengths,	
competencies and risks.

-	 Implementing	and	monitoring	of	such	strategies.
-	 Reviewing	 and	 ratifying	 systems	 in	 operation	
relating	 to	 risk	 management,	 internal	 control,	
codes of conduct and compliance with 
appropriate	laws,	statutes	and	regulations.

-	 Reviewing,	 monitoring	 and	 ratifying	 all	 capital	
expenditure,	acquisitions	and	divestitures.

-	 Monitoring	senior	management	performance.
-	 Ensuring	 that	 effective	 information	 and	 audit	

systems are in place.
-	 Ensuring	 that	 due	 attention	 is	 given	 to	 the	

annual and interim financial statements prior to 
publication.

-	 Approving	 and	 monitoring	 financial	 and	
operational reports.

obtaining Independent Professional advice

The Board in discharging it’s duties seeks independent 
professional advice from external parties when 
necessary	 at	 the	 Company’s	 expense.	 The	 day-to-
day management of the Company’s affairs has been 
entrusted to Aitken Spence Hotel Managements 
(Pvt)	Ltd.,	the	Managing	Agent,	with	whom	a	formal	
management contract has been signed.

audit committee

The	Audit	Committee	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	
comprises	 	of	 three	Non-Executive	Directors	and	 is	
chaired	by	an	Independent	Non-Executive	Director.	
More information on the Audit Committee can be 
found on pages 16 to 17 of this Annual Report.

remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee of Browns Beach 
Hotels	 PLC	 comprises	 of	 three	 Non-Executive	
Directors	 and	 is	 chaired	 by	 an	 Independent	 Non-
Executive Director. More information on the 
Remuneration Committee can be found on pages 
18 to 19 of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance signifies the manner in which 
Companies are directed and controlled. Good 
governance is an essential ingredient in corporate 
success and sustainable economic growth. The 
Board	 of	Directors	 of	 Browns	 Beach	Hotels	 PLC	 is	
committed	 to	maintain	 high	 standards	 of	 integrity,	
accountability,	 transparency	 and	 business	 ethics	 in	
the governance of the Group.

The Group is primarily guided by the Code of Best 
Practice on Corporate Governance issued by the 
Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	Sri	Lanka,	the	
Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	Colombo	 Stock	 Exchange	 and	
other	codes	of	Professional	 Institutes,	Chambers	of	
Commerce and Industry Associations. The report 
below sets out the Corporate Governance principles 
practiced by the organization.

the BoarD oF DIrectors 

composition and Balance 

The Board of Directors comprises seven Directors 
including the Chairman as at the end of financial 
year	 2016/17,	 of	 whom	 three	 Directors	 are	Non-
Executive Directors. Based on such declarations 
submitted	 by	 such	 Non-Executive	 Directors,	 the	
Board has determined that two out of those three 
Directors namely Messrs. Mr R. N. Asirwatham and 
Mr.	N.	J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	are	‘Independent’.

Mr. R. N. Asirwatham and Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva 
Aditya are Directors of Aitken Spence Hotel Holdings 
PLC		in	which	a	majority	of	the	other	Directors	of	the	
Company are Directors and which has a significant 
shareholding	in	the	Company.	However,	 in	view	of	
the	 fact	 that	 they	 are	 independent	 Non-Executive	
Directors	 of	 Aitken	 Spence	 Hotel	 Holdings	 PLC		
the	 Board	 was	 of	 the	 view	 that,	 their	 position	 as	
Directors	of	Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Holdings	PLC	does	
not	compromise	their	 independence	and	objectivity	
in discharging their functions as Directors of the 
Company. Hence Mr. R. N. Asirwatham and Mr. N. 
J. de Silva Deva Aditya are determined by the Board 
to	 be	 independent	 Directors.	 Independent	 Non-

Executive	Directors	remain	independent	from	day-to-
day	management	 decisions,	 activities	 and	 are	 free	
from	 any	 business	 and	 and/or	 other	 relationship,	
which may hinder their exercise of unbiased 
judgment.	

All	Non-Executive	Directors	are	expected	to	disclose	
any material business interest and submit an annual 
declaration	 confirming	 his	 independence/non-
independence in compliance with guidelines stated 
in the statutory regulations. 

The Company believes that the present composition 
of	 the	 Board,	 which	 has	 at	 its	 disposal,	 a	 vast	
reservoir of knowledge and experience in all areas 
of	 the	 Company’s	 operations	 such	 as	 Hoteliering,	
Marketing,	 Finance,	 Legal,	 Commerce	 and	
Entrepreneurship enables optimum efficiency and 
effectiveness. The name and the profiles of the 
Directors are given on pages 07 to 09 and page 
11 of this Annual Report. Mr.  C. R. Stanislaus was 
appointed to the Board with effect from 15th August 
2016	of	the	Company	and	Mr.	M.	V.	Theagarajah	
who was a Director ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 
11th September 2016. 

Directors’ Decision making

The Board regularly discusses and makes strategic 
decisions collectively on behalf of the Group. Apart 
from	taking	decisions	at	Board	Meetings,	the	Board	
also takes decisions via Circular Resolutions.

Board Meetings
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financial year and presided over by the Chairman. 
Any	 instances	 of	 non-attendance	 at	 the	 meetings	
were due to personal commitments or illness. The 
Directors	are	provided	with	minutes,	the	agenda	and	
the board papers giving them adequate time to study 
the contents prior to meetings. 

The attendance at the Board Meetings held during 
the year under review is as follows:
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the responsibilities of the Board

The	Board	of	Directors	is	responsible	for;

-	 Formulating	 business	 strategies	 taking	
into	 consideration	 the	 Group’s	 strengths,	
competencies and risks.

-	 Implementing	and	monitoring	of	such	strategies.
-	 Reviewing	 and	 ratifying	 systems	 in	 operation	
relating	 to	 risk	 management,	 internal	 control,	
codes of conduct and compliance with 
appropriate	laws,	statutes	and	regulations.

-	 Reviewing,	 monitoring	 and	 ratifying	 all	 capital	
expenditure,	acquisitions	and	divestitures.

-	 Monitoring	senior	management	performance.
-	 Ensuring	 that	 effective	 information	 and	 audit	

systems are in place.
-	 Ensuring	 that	 due	 attention	 is	 given	 to	 the	

annual and interim financial statements prior to 
publication.

-	 Approving	 and	 monitoring	 financial	 and	
operational reports.

obtaining Independent Professional advice

The Board in discharging it’s duties seeks independent 
professional advice from external parties when 
necessary	 at	 the	 Company’s	 expense.	 The	 day-to-
day management of the Company’s affairs has been 
entrusted to Aitken Spence Hotel Managements 
(Pvt)	Ltd.,	the	Managing	Agent,	with	whom	a	formal	
management contract has been signed.

audit committee

The	Audit	Committee	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	
comprises	 	of	 three	Non-Executive	Directors	and	 is	
chaired	by	an	Independent	Non-Executive	Director.	
More information on the Audit Committee can be 
found on pages 16 to 17 of this Annual Report.

remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee of Browns Beach 
Hotels	 PLC	 comprises	 of	 three	 Non-Executive	
Directors	 and	 is	 chaired	 by	 an	 Independent	 Non-
Executive Director. More information on the 
Remuneration Committee can be found on pages 
18 to 19 of this Annual Report.
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related Party transaction review committee

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee of 
Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	comprises	of	 three	Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by an Independent 
Non-Executive	 Director.	 More	 information	 on	 the	
Related Party Transactions Review Committee can 
be found on pages 20 to 21 of this Annual Report.

company secretaries

All	Directors	have	 independent	and	 joint	access	 to	
the Company Secretaries who act in a professional 
manner. The Company Secretaries advice the Board 
on	matters	relating	to	the	Companies	Act,	the	Listing	
Rules of the Stock Exchange regulations and other 
applicable rules and regulations and ensure that 
appropriate,	 timely	 and	 accurate	 information	 is	
submitted to the Board and its Committees.

related Party transactions

Related party transactions are disclosed on pages 77 
to 78 of the Annual Report.

Independent Judgment

Each	Director	exercises	independent	judgment	in	all	
matters considered by the Board and acts free from 
any undue influence and bias from other parties. 
Matters considered include making decisions on 
issues	 relating	 to	 strategy,	 implementation	 of	 such	
strategies,	performance	 review,	 resource	allocation	
and standards of conduct and business ethics.

Chairman’s role

The Chairman of the Group is one of the most 
successful and experienced business leaders in Sri 
Lanka.	 The	 Chairman	 provides	 leadership	 and	
strategic directions to the Board and ensures that all 
meetings are conducted in a professional manner.

The Chairman encourages effective participation 
of	 all	 the	Directors	 in	 decision	making,	 seeks	 and	
ascertains the views of the Directors and thereby 
ensures that the Board functions in an efficient 
manner beneficial to the stakeholders of the Group.

Financial acumen

The Board includes three Senior Professional 
Accountants who possess the necessary experience 
and expertise. 

Provision of supply of Information

The	 Group	 has	 a	 well-developed,	 streamlined	
Management Information System in place. The Board 
is provided with timely and appropriate information 
by the management by way of board papers and 
proposals.

appointments to the Board

There is a clear and transparent procedure for the 
appointment of Directors to the Board. Upon the 
appointment	 of	 a	 new	 Director	 to	 the	 Board,	 the	
Company informs the Colombo Stock Exchange with 
a brief resume of such Director containing the nature 
of	his	expertise,	other	directorships	held,	memberships	
in board committees and his independence/non 
independence. The Articles of Association of the 
Company empower the Board of Directors to either 
fill a casual vacancy in the directorate or appoint 
additional Directors. The Directors so appointed 
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting 
and	are	eligible	for	re-election.

re-election of Directors

The Company’s Articles of Association provide for 
one of the Directors to retire from office every year. 
Retiring Directors are selected on the basis of those 
who have been longest in office since their last 
election. In the event there are one or more Directors 
appointed	 on	 the	 same	 date,	 the	 retiring	 Director	
shall be determined either by agreement or by lot. 
A	retiring	Director	shall	be	eligible	for	re-election.	In	
order to ensure that the Board comprises of members 
who	add	value	to	the	Company,	the	Board	evaluates	
the qualifications and contribution of each retiring 
Director	before	 recommending	 such	person	 for	 re-
election.

appraisal of the Performance of the Board

The performance of each Director is regularly 
evaluated.

corPorate GoVernance - contd.

DireCtOrs’ remUneratiOn

Disclosure of remuneration

The Directors remuneration and fee in respect of the 
Company and its subsidiary for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2017 are disclosed on the page 
78 note 27.4 of the Annual Report.

level and Make-Up of remuneration Packages

The Group believes that its success is mainly due to 
the efforts of its employees and has structured the 
remuneration	packages	in	such	a	manner	to	attract,	
retain and motivate the best professional talent in the 
country. An attractive remuneration package in line 
with comparative industry levels is given to the Senior 
Management cadre of the Group.

relatIons wIth shareholDers 

long term shareholder Value

The Company’s market price was at Rs. 21.30 per 
share as at 31st March 2017 compared to Rs. 32.50 
per share as at 31st March 2016. The Company’s 
market	 capitalisation	 is	Rs.	2,760,480,000/-	as	at	
the date of the statement of financial position.

constructive use of the annual General Meeting 
(aGM)

The Company welcomes active participation by its 
shareholders and allows opportunity for shareholder 
participation. The Board considers the AGM as 
an opportunity to communicate and maintain 
appropriate dialogue with its shareholders and 
welcomes their suggestions. 

Making available notice of Meeting and the 
related Papers

The notice of the Annual General Meeting and the 
relevant documents are published and dispatched to 
the shareholders at least 15 working days prior to the 
Annual General Meeting as per the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007. 

Major transactions and their Impact on the 
Group’s net assets

During	 the	 financial	 year	 there	 were	 no	 major	
transactions,	 which	 materially	 altered	 the	 Group’s	

net asset base other than that disclosed in this Annual 
Report.

accoUntaBIlItY anD aUDIt

assessment of the Position and Prospects of the 
company

The Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the 
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities are presented 
on pages 23 and 22 respectively in this Annual 
Report. These reports provide a balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Group’s position 
and prospects.

Maintaining a sound system of Internal control 
and risk Management

The Board has implemented a sound system of 
Internal Control and Risk Management to safeguard 
the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. 
The Board is fully aware that Internal Controls have 
inherent limitations and do not provide absolute 
assurance against errors and fraud. The details of 
the Group’s Risk Management system are provided 
on pages 31 to 39 of this Annual Report.

Periodical review of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of Internal controls

The adequacy and the effectiveness of the Internal 
Controls are periodically reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and the Senior Management of the 
Group and the observations are reported to the 
Board for appropriate action.

Financial reporting

The Board of Directors confirms that the Financial 
Statements of the Group have been prepared in 
accordance	with	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	
and the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The Group 
has duly complied with all the reporting requirements 
of	the	relevant	Laws	and	Regulatory	Authorities.	The	
Financial Statements of the Group were audited by 
Messrs.	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants.
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related Party transaction review committee

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee of 
Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	comprises	of	 three	Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by an Independent 
Non-Executive	 Director.	 More	 information	 on	 the	
Related Party Transactions Review Committee can 
be found on pages 20 to 21 of this Annual Report.

company secretaries

All	Directors	have	 independent	and	 joint	access	 to	
the Company Secretaries who act in a professional 
manner. The Company Secretaries advice the Board 
on	matters	relating	to	the	Companies	Act,	the	Listing	
Rules of the Stock Exchange regulations and other 
applicable rules and regulations and ensure that 
appropriate,	 timely	 and	 accurate	 information	 is	
submitted to the Board and its Committees.

related Party transactions

Related party transactions are disclosed on pages 77 
to 78 of the Annual Report.

Independent Judgment

Each	Director	exercises	independent	judgment	in	all	
matters considered by the Board and acts free from 
any undue influence and bias from other parties. 
Matters considered include making decisions on 
issues	 relating	 to	 strategy,	 implementation	 of	 such	
strategies,	performance	 review,	 resource	allocation	
and standards of conduct and business ethics.

Chairman’s role

The Chairman of the Group is one of the most 
successful and experienced business leaders in Sri 
Lanka.	 The	 Chairman	 provides	 leadership	 and	
strategic directions to the Board and ensures that all 
meetings are conducted in a professional manner.

The Chairman encourages effective participation 
of	 all	 the	Directors	 in	 decision	making,	 seeks	 and	
ascertains the views of the Directors and thereby 
ensures that the Board functions in an efficient 
manner beneficial to the stakeholders of the Group.

Financial acumen

The Board includes three Senior Professional 
Accountants who possess the necessary experience 
and expertise. 

Provision of supply of Information

The	 Group	 has	 a	 well-developed,	 streamlined	
Management Information System in place. The Board 
is provided with timely and appropriate information 
by the management by way of board papers and 
proposals.

appointments to the Board

There is a clear and transparent procedure for the 
appointment of Directors to the Board. Upon the 
appointment	 of	 a	 new	 Director	 to	 the	 Board,	 the	
Company informs the Colombo Stock Exchange with 
a brief resume of such Director containing the nature 
of	his	expertise,	other	directorships	held,	memberships	
in board committees and his independence/non 
independence. The Articles of Association of the 
Company empower the Board of Directors to either 
fill a casual vacancy in the directorate or appoint 
additional Directors. The Directors so appointed 
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting 
and	are	eligible	for	re-election.

re-election of Directors

The Company’s Articles of Association provide for 
one of the Directors to retire from office every year. 
Retiring Directors are selected on the basis of those 
who have been longest in office since their last 
election. In the event there are one or more Directors 
appointed	 on	 the	 same	 date,	 the	 retiring	 Director	
shall be determined either by agreement or by lot. 
A	retiring	Director	shall	be	eligible	for	re-election.	In	
order to ensure that the Board comprises of members 
who	add	value	to	the	Company,	the	Board	evaluates	
the qualifications and contribution of each retiring 
Director	before	 recommending	 such	person	 for	 re-
election.

appraisal of the Performance of the Board

The performance of each Director is regularly 
evaluated.
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DireCtOrs’ remUneratiOn

Disclosure of remuneration

The Directors remuneration and fee in respect of the 
Company and its subsidiary for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2017 are disclosed on the page 
78 note 27.4 of the Annual Report.

level and Make-Up of remuneration Packages

The Group believes that its success is mainly due to 
the efforts of its employees and has structured the 
remuneration	packages	in	such	a	manner	to	attract,	
retain and motivate the best professional talent in the 
country. An attractive remuneration package in line 
with comparative industry levels is given to the Senior 
Management cadre of the Group.

relatIons wIth shareholDers 

long term shareholder Value

The Company’s market price was at Rs. 21.30 per 
share as at 31st March 2017 compared to Rs. 32.50 
per share as at 31st March 2016. The Company’s 
market	 capitalisation	 is	Rs.	2,760,480,000/-	as	at	
the date of the statement of financial position.

constructive use of the annual General Meeting 
(aGM)

The Company welcomes active participation by its 
shareholders and allows opportunity for shareholder 
participation. The Board considers the AGM as 
an opportunity to communicate and maintain 
appropriate dialogue with its shareholders and 
welcomes their suggestions. 

Making available notice of Meeting and the 
related Papers

The notice of the Annual General Meeting and the 
relevant documents are published and dispatched to 
the shareholders at least 15 working days prior to the 
Annual General Meeting as per the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007. 

Major transactions and their Impact on the 
Group’s net assets

During	 the	 financial	 year	 there	 were	 no	 major	
transactions,	 which	 materially	 altered	 the	 Group’s	

net asset base other than that disclosed in this Annual 
Report.
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assessment of the Position and Prospects of the 
company

The Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the 
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities are presented 
on pages 23 and 22 respectively in this Annual 
Report. These reports provide a balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Group’s position 
and prospects.

Maintaining a sound system of Internal control 
and risk Management

The Board has implemented a sound system of 
Internal Control and Risk Management to safeguard 
the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. 
The Board is fully aware that Internal Controls have 
inherent limitations and do not provide absolute 
assurance against errors and fraud. The details of 
the Group’s Risk Management system are provided 
on pages 31 to 39 of this Annual Report.

Periodical review of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of Internal controls

The adequacy and the effectiveness of the Internal 
Controls are periodically reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and the Senior Management of the 
Group and the observations are reported to the 
Board for appropriate action.

Financial reporting

The Board of Directors confirms that the Financial 
Statements of the Group have been prepared in 
accordance	with	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	
and the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The Group 
has duly complied with all the reporting requirements 
of	the	relevant	Laws	and	Regulatory	Authorities.	The	
Financial Statements of the Group were audited by 
Messrs.	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants.
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statement by the auditors about their reporting 
responsibilities

The Auditors Report on the Financial Statements is 
presented on page 44 of this Annual Report. 

Declaration by the Board as to whether the 
Business is a Going concern

The relevant declaration is presented in the Annual 
Report of the Board of Directors on page 23 of this 
Annual Report.

statutory obligations

The	 Directors,	 to	 the	 best	 of	 their	 knowledge	 and	
belief,	are	satisfied	that	all	financial	obligations	due	
to the Government and to employees have been 
duly paid or adequately provided for in the Financial 
Statements. 

relatIonshIP wIth other staKeholDers 

employees

The	Board	ensures	that	the	vision,	goals	and	objectives	
formulated by the Board are clearly communicated 
and understood by all employees. This ensures 
goal congruence and the understanding by all 
employees of the strategic direction of the Group. 
All employees are aware of their responsibilities and 
duties and the Group strictly follows the International 
Labour	Organisation	 (ILO)	 convention	 with	 regard	
to employment. The Group ensures that no person 
below the minimum age is offered employment. The 
Group offer opportunities to potential employees 
regardless	of	gender,	race,	ethnicity	and	religion	and	
once recruited would continue in their career path 
without	 discrimination.	 The	 Code	 of	 Ethics,	 which	

has	been	duly	documented,	is	given	to	all	Executives	
of the Group who confirm their acceptance of same. 
Violation of the Code of Ethics is considered an 
offense,	which	is	subject	to	disciplinary	action.

Institutions and regulatory Bodies

The Board ensures that a meaningful relationship 
is maintained with institutions such as the relevant 
Line	Ministries,	 the	Central	 Bank	 of	 Sri	 Lanka,	 the	
Board	 of	 Investment	 of	 Sri	 Lanka,	 the	 Registrar	
General	of	Companies,	the	Securities	and	Exchange	
Commission	 of	 Sri	 Lanka,	 the	 Colombo	 Stock	
Exchange,	 the	 Department	 of	 Inland	 Revenue,	
Professional and Trade Associations and various 
Chambers of Commerce. The Group’s operations 
and	activities	strictly	adhere	to	the	rules,	regulations	
and codes of conduct set out by the relevant 
regulatory and advisory bodies and the appropriate 
laws of the country.

environment

The Board is highly committed to the sustainability of 
the environment and therefore ensures that the Group 
pursues and adheres to the recommended standards 
so as to protect and promote the eco system. The 
practices adopted by the Group are recognised and 
rewarded by the relevant authorities and the awards 
bestowed upon the Group are the evidence of such 
adherence to environmental policies of the Group.

compliance 

Corporate Governance Requirements listed under 
Section	7	of	the	Listing	Rules	issued	by	the	Colombo	
Stock	Exchange,

rUle  reQUIreMent statUs oF coMPlIance  

7.10.1	(a)		 Non-Executive	Directors	 In	Compliance	

7.10.2 (a) (b) Independent Directors In Compliance 

7.10.3 Disclosure relating to Directors  In Compliance 

7.10.4 Criteria for defining Independence  In Compliance 

7.10.5 Remuneration Committee  In Compliance 

7.10.6 Audit Committee In Compliance
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once recruited would continue in their career path 
without	 discrimination.	 The	 Code	 of	 Ethics,	 which	

has	been	duly	documented,	is	given	to	all	Executives	
of the Group who confirm their acceptance of same. 
Violation of the Code of Ethics is considered an 
offense,	which	is	subject	to	disciplinary	action.

Institutions and regulatory Bodies

The Board ensures that a meaningful relationship 
is maintained with institutions such as the relevant 
Line	Ministries,	 the	Central	 Bank	 of	 Sri	 Lanka,	 the	
Board	 of	 Investment	 of	 Sri	 Lanka,	 the	 Registrar	
General	of	Companies,	the	Securities	and	Exchange	
Commission	 of	 Sri	 Lanka,	 the	 Colombo	 Stock	
Exchange,	 the	 Department	 of	 Inland	 Revenue,	
Professional and Trade Associations and various 
Chambers of Commerce. The Group’s operations 
and	activities	strictly	adhere	to	the	rules,	regulations	
and codes of conduct set out by the relevant 
regulatory and advisory bodies and the appropriate 
laws of the country.

environment

The Board is highly committed to the sustainability of 
the environment and therefore ensures that the Group 
pursues and adheres to the recommended standards 
so as to protect and promote the eco system. The 
practices adopted by the Group are recognised and 
rewarded by the relevant authorities and the awards 
bestowed upon the Group are the evidence of such 
adherence to environmental policies of the Group.

compliance 

Corporate Governance Requirements listed under 
Section	7	of	the	Listing	Rules	issued	by	the	Colombo	
Stock	Exchange,

rUle  reQUIreMent statUs oF coMPlIance  

7.10.1	(a)		 Non-Executive	Directors	 In	Compliance	

7.10.2 (a) (b) Independent Directors In Compliance 

7.10.3 Disclosure relating to Directors  In Compliance 

7.10.4 Criteria for defining Independence  In Compliance 

7.10.5 Remuneration Committee  In Compliance 

7.10.6 Audit Committee In Compliance
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aUDIt coMMIttee rePort 

Browns	 Beach	Hotels	 PLC	 together	 with	 	 its	 subsidiary	 	 signifies	 the	 necessity	 of	 achieving	 best	 practices	 in	
financial	reporting,	internal	control	and	risk	management	in	the	Group.

coMPosItIon oF the coMMIttee 

The	Audit	Committee	comprised	of	Three	Non-Executive	Directors	of	whom,	two	are	Independent.	The	Committee	
is	chaired	by	an	Independent	Non-Executive	Director.

Group audit committee Members  Member since 

Chairman	 Mr.	R.	N.	Asirwatham	 Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

Members	 Mr.	A	L	Gooneratne	 Non-Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

	 Mr.	N.	J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	 Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

Secretary Mr. H K A Rathnaweera Chief Internal Auditor of
  the Managing Agents 

attendance by Invitation 

Mr.	C.	R.	Stanislaus	 Executive	Director,	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC

Mr.	J.	T.	P.	Gunawardana		 Vice	President	-	Finance

coMMIttee MeetInGs 

The Audit Committee functioned throughout the financial year and held six formal meetings.

attendance of Members

Dates of Meetings   08.04.2016 11.04.2016 14.05.2016 11.08.2016 01.11.2016 07.02.2017

Chairman  Mr. R. N. Asirwatham      

Members		 Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne	      

 Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya      

= Present  

A comprehensive description of the Audit Committee’s activities during the year under review is set out in the 
table below:

responsibility activity

Risk Management and 
Internal Control

•	 Scrutinized	the	adequacy	and	effectiveness	of	the	Group’s	internal	controls	
and risk management activities and suggested recommendations to the 
Board.

•	 Ensured	that	the	Group	adheres	to	and	complies	with	all	relevant	laws,	rules	
and	regulations	of	the	country,	 international	laws,	and	codes	of	ethics	and	
standards	of	conduct	required	by	regulatory	authorities,	professional	bodies	
and trade associations.

responsibility activity

Financial Reporting and 
Financial Control

•	 Reviewed	the	Group’s	Quarterly	and	Annual	financial	statements,	adequacy	
of	 disclosures,	 uniformity	 and	 appropriateness	 of	 the	 accounting	 policies	
adopted,	major	judgmental	areas	and	ensured	that	they	were	in	compliance	
with	 the	Companies	Act	No.	7	of	2007,	applicable	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	
Standards and requirements of other regulatory bodies as applicable for the 
Group and suggested recommendations in line with those requirements.

•	 Reviewed	 the	 operational	 and	 other	 management	 information	 reports	
submitted by the Group’s management to the Audit Committee and made 
recommendations for improvements.

External Audit •	 Assessed	 the	 performance	 and	 effectiveness	 of	 the	 external	 auditors,	 their	
independence and professional capabilities and made recommendations to 
the Board.

•	 Reviewed	the	audit	plan	presented	by	the	external	auditors,	provided	advice	
and support regarding the execution of the plan.

•	 Discussed	the	audited	financial	statements	with	external	auditors	and	ensured	
that	 they	were	 in	 conformity	with	 the	 Sri	 Lanka	Accounting	 Standards	 and	
other regulatory requirements.

•	 Reviewed	and	discussed	the	management	 letter	of	 the	external	auditors	for	
the Group and instructed the management to take appropriate and follow up 
action on matters highlighted therein.

•	 Reviewed	the	fees	and	out	of	pocket	expenses	proposed	by	external	auditors	
and suggested recommendations to the Board.

Internal Audit •	 Reviewed	 and	 evaluated	 the	 independence	 and	 effectiveness	 of	 the	
Group’s	 Internal	Audit	Department,	 their	 resource	 requirements	and	made	
recommendations for any required changes.

•	 Reviewed	 and	 approved	 the	 Annual	 Internal	 Audit	 Plan	 together	 with	 the	
Information Technology (IT) Security Plan and Strategic Risk Plan and made 
appropriate recommendations for improvements.

•	 Reviewed	and	discussed	the	periodic	reports	submitted	by	the	Internal	Audit	
Department	 with	 management	 responses,	 on	 financial	 and	 operational	
audits,	 IT	 Security	 and	 risk	 assessments	 carried	 out	 in	 line	 with	 approved	
annual internal audit plan.

•	 The	Audit	Committee	continued	to	ensure	the	co-ordination	between	Group	
internal audit and external auditors.

re-aPPoIntMent oF aUDItors
The	Audit	Committee	having	evaluated	the	performance	of	the	external	auditors,	decided	to	recommend	to	
the	Board	the	re-appointment	of	Messrs	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants	as	the	auditors	of	the	Company	for	the	
current	year,	subject	to	approval	of	the	shareholders	at	the	forthcoming	Annual	General	Meeting.

r. n. asirwatham

Chairman
Audit Committee
Colombo 
25th August 2017

aUDIt coMMIttee rePort - contd.
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Chairman
Audit Committee
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25th August 2017

aUDIt coMMIttee rePort - contd.
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coMPosItIon oF the coMMIttee 

composition   Member since

Chairman	 Mr.	R.N.	Asirwatham	 Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

Members	 Mr.	A.L.	Gooneratne	 Non-Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

	 Mr.	N.J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	 Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

The Committee is currently composed of three 
Independent	Non-Executive	one	of	whom	functions	
as the Chairman. The members of the Committee 
have	 wide	 experience	 and	 knowledge	 of	 finance,	
business and industry. 

The Committee formally met once during the year 
under review.

InDePenDence oF the coMMIttee 

The members of the Committee are independent 
of management and are completely free from any 
business,	 personal	 or	 other	 relationships	 that	 may	
interfere	 with	 the	 exercise	 of	 their	 independent,	
unbiased	judgement.

KeY oBJectIVe 

The Committee advises the Board on the policy to 
be followed on Executive remuneration packages for 
individual Directors and Senior Management.

resPonsIBIlItIes

The	Committee	is	responsible	to	the	Board	for;	

•	 Determining	 the	 policy	 of	 the	 remuneration	
package of the Directors and the Board of 
Management,

•	 Evaluating	 performance	 of	 the	 Executive	
Directors as well as the individual and 
collective performance of Directors and 
Senior Management of the Strategic Business 
Units,

•	 Deciding	 on	 overall	 individual	 packages,	
including compensation on termination of 
employment.

reMUneratIon coMMIttee rePort - contd.

the scoPe oF the coMMIttee

•	 Remuneration	 policy	 and	 its	 specific	
application to the Executive Directors and 
general application to the Key Management 
Personnel	below	the	Main	Board,

•	 Performance	evaluation	of	 the	management	
development	and	succession	planning,

•	 Reviewing,	 monitoring	 and	 evaluating	
performance of Key Management Personnel 
as well as their management development 
and succession planning.

KeY FUnctIons oF the coMMIttee

The Group remuneration policy which was reviewed 
by the Committee remained unchanged during the 
year under review.

The Remuneration Committee operates with the key 
objective	of	 attracting	 the	most	 suitable	 talent	 and	
retaining them in the Group in order to enhance 
the performance of the Strategic Business Units. 
Performance of employees is evaluated using a 
well-structured	 performance	 evaluation	mechanism	

that is accepted by all employees thereby ensuring 
that they are treated equally. The Remuneration 
Committee approved promotions and the revision of 
individual remuneration packages after evaluating 
performance	of	 the	Group,	and	the	contribution	of	
employees to his/her respective Business Unit. Cost 
of	 living,	 inflation	 and	 comparative	 industry	 norms	
are also given the due consideration in determining 
the remuneration packages. 

No Director was involved in deciding his/her 
remuneration. 

The Remuneration Committee’s decisions were 
made in keeping with these policies.

r. n asirwatham

Chairman
Remuneration Committee
Colombo
25th August 2017
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reMUneratIon coMMIttee rePort - contd.

the scoPe oF the coMMIttee
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by the Committee remained unchanged during the 
year under review.
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objective	of	 attracting	 the	most	 suitable	 talent	 and	
retaining them in the Group in order to enhance 
the performance of the Strategic Business Units. 
Performance of employees is evaluated using a 
well-structured	 performance	 evaluation	mechanism	

that is accepted by all employees thereby ensuring 
that they are treated equally. The Remuneration 
Committee approved promotions and the revision of 
individual remuneration packages after evaluating 
performance	of	 the	Group,	and	the	contribution	of	
employees to his/her respective Business Unit. Cost 
of	 living,	 inflation	 and	 comparative	 industry	 norms	
are also given the due consideration in determining 
the remuneration packages. 

No Director was involved in deciding his/her 
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r. n asirwatham

Chairman
Remuneration Committee
Colombo
25th August 2017
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coMPosItIon oF the coMMIttee

The	Related	Party	Transactions	Review	Committee	which	was	formed	in	conformity	with	 the	Listing	Rules	of	
the Colombo Stock Exchange is entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring compliance with the rules and 
regulations	governing	Related	Party	Transactions	for	Listed	Entities.		The	Company’s	Related	Party	Transactions	
Review	Committee	 	 is	 composed	 of	 three	Non-Executive	 Directors,	 of	 whom,	 two	 are	 	 Independent.	 The	
Committee	is	chaired	by	Mr.	R.N.	Asirwatham	who	is	an	Independent	Non-Executive	Director.

sUMMarY oF resPonsIBIlItIes oF the 
coMMIttee                  

The Committee’s key focus is to review all proposed 
Related Party Transactions prior to the completion 
of the transaction according to the procedures laid 
down	 by	 the	 Section	 9	 of	 the	 Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	
Colombo Stock Exchange and its responsibilities are 
as follows:

•	 Evaluate	 any	 proposed	 Related	 Party	
Transactions	on	a	quarterly	basis,

•	 Review	 any	 post	 quarter	 confirmations	 on	
related	party	transactions,

•	 Obtain	 approval	 from	 the	 Board	 wherever	
necessary,

•	 Review	 the	 threshold	 for	 Related	 Party	
Transactions which require either 

attendance by Invitation 

Mr. C. R. Stanislaus Executive Director

Mr. J. T. P. Gunawardana  Vice	President	-	Finance

attendance of Members

Dates of Meetings 13.05.2016 01.07.2016 21.11.2016 09.02.2017

Chairman Mr. R. N. Asirwatham     

Members	 Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne	     

 Mr. N. J. de Silva
 Deva Aditya    •   

 = Present    • = Excused

composition   Member since

Chairman	 Mr.	R.N.	Asirwatham	 Independent	Non-Executive	 2016

Members	 Mr.	A.L.	Gooneratne	 Non	-	Independent	Non	-	Executive	 2016

	 Mr.	N.J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	 Independent	Non	-	Executive	 2016

coMMIttee MeetInGs

The	Committee	held	four	formal	meetings	during	the	year	under	review.	Executive	Director,	and	Chief	Financial	
Officer	attended	the	meetings	by	invitation.		

relateD PartY transactIons reVIew coMMIttee rePort - contd.

shareholders’ approval or immediate market 
disclosures

•	 Review	 the	 criteria	 of	 Key	 Management	
Personnel,

•	 Regularly	 report	 to	 the	 Board	 on	 the	
Committee’s activities.

KeY ManaGeMent Personnel

Browns	 Beach	 Hotels	 PLC	 considers	 its	 Board	 of	
Directors as the Key Management Personnel (KMPs) 
of	the	Company.	Further,	the	Board	of	Directors	of	
the subsidiary company is considered as KMPs of the 
said subsidiary company. Such KMPs were identified 
to establish greater transparency and governance. 
Declarations were obtained from each KMP of 
the Company and its subsidiary for the purpose of 
identifying related parties and for the purpose of 
annual disclosure.

KeY FUnctIons PerForMeD DUrInG the 
Year UnDer reVIew

The Committee reviewed all proposed Related Party 
Transactions as well as post quarter confirmations 
and the activities of the Committee have been 
communicated to the Board quarterly through 
tabling the minutes of the meeting of the Committee 
at Board Meetings.

“non-recUrrent transactIons 
reVIeweD BY the coMMIttee

Conseqent	 to	 the	 Financial	 Year	 2016/17,	 the	
Company’s	 subsidiary,	 Negombo	 Beach	 Resorts	
(Private)	 Limited	 (NBR)	obtained	a	Term	Loan	 from	
three	major	shareholders	of	the	Company,	which	was	
a	non-recurrent	transaction	that	required	disclosure	
in	terms	of	Rule	9.3.1	of	the	Listing		Rules.

It was reviewed by the Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee prior to the transaction being 
entered	into,	and	following	such	review,	the	approval	
of the Board of Directors was obtained to enter into 
the	 transaction.	 	 Upon	 the	 said	 Term	 Loan	 being	
obtained	by	NBR,	the	Company	made	an	immediate	
disclosure	to	the	CSE,	as	required	by	Rule	9.3.1	of	
the	Listing	Rules.”

DeclaratIon

A declaration by the Board of Directors as on 
affirmative statement of the compliance with the 
Listing	Rules	pertaining	to	Related	Party	Transactions	
is given on page 77 of the Annual Report.

r.n. asirwatham

Chairman
Related Party Transactions Review Committee
Colombo
25th August 2017
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the	 transaction.	 	 Upon	 the	 said	 Term	 Loan	 being	
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statement Of DireCtOrs’ respOnsibilities 

The Companies Act No.7 of 2007 requires the Directors 
of the Company to be responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statements and other statutory 
reports.	The	 responsibilities	of	 the	Directors,	 in	 relation	 to	
the	Financial	Statements	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	and	
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are set 
out in this Report.

The Directors confirm that the Financial Statements and 
other statutory reports of the Company and its Subsidiary for 
the year ended 31st March 2017 incorporated in this Report 
have been prepared in accordance with the Companies 
Act	No.	7	of	2007,	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	and	Auditing	
Standards	Act	No.	15	of	1995	and	the	Listing	Rules	of	the	
Colombo Stock Exchange.

The Directors have taken appropriate steps to ensure that 
the Company and its subsidiary maintain adequate and 
accurate records which reflect the true financial position 
of the Company and its subsidiary. The Directors have 
taken appropriate and reasonable steps to safeguard the 
assets of the Company and the Group. The Directors have 
instituted appropriate systems of internal control in order to 
minimise	and	detect	 fraud,	errors	and	other	 irregularities.	
The Directors in maintaining a sound system of internal 
control	and	in	protecting	the	assets	of	the	Company,	have	
further adopted risk management strategies to identify and 
evaluate the risks which the Company could be exposed 
and its impact.

The Directors having considered the Group’s business 
plans,	 and	 a	 review	 of	 its	 current	 and	 future	 operations,	
are of the view that the Company and the Group have 
adequate resources to continue in operation. The Directors 
have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the 
Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements presented in this Annual Report 
for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2017,	have	been	prepared	
based	on	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	(SLFRS/LKASs)	

which came into effect from 1st January 2012. The Directors 
have selected the appropriate accounting policies and such 
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed and explained 
in the Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors confirm that the Company and the 
Group’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
as at 31st March 2017 and the Comprehensive Income 
Statements for the Company and the Group for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2017 reflect a true and fair view of 
the Company and the Group.

The Directors have provided the Auditors with every 
opportunity to carry out any reviews and tests that they 
consider appropriate and necessary for the performance of 
their duties. The responsibility of the Independent Auditors 
in relation to the Financial Statements is set out in the 
Independent Auditors Report.

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge all 
payments	to	employees,	regulatory	and	statutory	authorities	
due and payable by the Company and its Subsidiary have 
been either duly paid or adequately provided for in the 
Financial Statements. The Directors further confirm that 
they	promote	the	highest	ethical,	environmental	and	safety	
standards within the Group. The Directors also ensure that 
the	 relevant	 national	 laws,	 international	 laws	 and	 codes	
of	 regulatory	 authorities,	 professional	 institutes	 and	 trade	
associations have been complied with by the Group.

By order of the Board

Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC

anusha wijesekara
P w corporate secretarial (Pvt) ltd
Company Secretaries
Colombo 
25th August 2017

annUal rePort oF the BoarD oF DIrectors 

The	Board	of	Directors	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC,	has	
pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and the audited 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017. 
The details set out herein provide the pertinent information 
required	 by	 the	 Companies	 Act	 No.	 07	 of	 2007,	 the	
Listing	Rules	of	the	Colombo	Stock	Exchange	and	the	best	
accounting practices.

1. PrIncIPal actIVates 

 The principal activity of the Company is hoteliering 
through	its	fully	owned	subsidiary,	Negombo	Beach	
Resorts	 (Pvt)	 Ltd.	which	engages	 in	 the	business	of	
hoteliering and there has been no change in the 
nature of such activities during the year.

2. reVIew oF oPeratIon

	 A	review	of	operational	and	financial	performance,	
the future plans of the Company and its subsidiary 
are described in greater detail in the Chairman’s 
review of the Annual Report. These reports together 
with the audited financial statements of the Company 
and its subsidiary reflect the respective state of affairs 

of the Company and its subsidiary.

For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016
  rs. ‘000 rs. ‘000

net loss before tax (482,909) (97,111)

Provision for taxation including deferred tax (91)	 (7,466)

net loss after tax (483,000) (104,577)

Other	comprehensive	income	 137,468 (332)

total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders (345,532) (104,909)

Balance brought forward from the previous year 1,059,618	 1,164,527

amount available for appropriations 714,086 1,059,618

total reserves and earnings 714,086 1,059,618

Stated Capital 2,383,449	 2,383,449

Balance attributable to equity holders of the company at the end of the year  3,097,535 3.433,067

3. accoUntInG PolIcIes anD chanGes 
DUrInG the Year

 The Company and its subsidiary prepared the 
financial	 statements	 in	 accordance	 with	 Sri	 Lanka	
Accounting	Standards	(SLFRSs/LKASs).	The	significant	
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiary are given in pages 49 to 62 There were 
no significant changes to the accounting policies 
used by the Company and its subsidiary during the 
year	under	review	vis-a-vis	those	used	in	the	previous	
year.

4. sYnoPsIs oF the IncoMe stateMent oF 
the coMPanY anD the GroUP

4.1. Group revenue and Profits

 Revenue generated by the Group during the year 
amounted	 to	Rs.594	million.	 (2016	-	Rs.	Nil).	The	
Details analysis of Group revenue is disclosed in 
note 3 to the financial statements on page 63.

 The loss before tax of the Group was Rs. 483 
million (2016 Rs.97 million). The Group’s losses 
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Parent 
Company	for	the	year	was	Rs.	483	million	(2016	-	
Rs. 105 million).

4.2 Donations

	 No	donations	were	made	during	the	year,	by	either	
the Company or its subsidiary.
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4.3 taxation

 A detailed statement of the income tax rates 
applicable to the Company and its subsidiary and 
a reconciliation of the accounting profits with the 
taxable profits are given in note 9 to the financial 
statements.

 It is the policy of the Group to provide for deferred 
taxation on all known timing differences on the 
liability method. The deferred tax balances of the 
Group are given in notes 13 and to the financial 
statements.

4.4 Dividends

 No dividends were recommended by the Board for 
the financial year 2016/17.

5. sYnoPsIs oF the stateMent oF 
FInancIal PosItIon oF the coMPanY 
anD the GroUP

5.1 stated capital and reserves

 As at 31st March 2017 the Company 
had	 issued	 129,600,000	 ordinary	 shares	
and the stated capital of the Company 
was	 Rs.	 2,383,448,970/-.	 The	 Company’s	
reserves as at 31st March 2017 were 
Rs.1.344,007,000/-	(2016	-	Rs.	1,208,743,758/-)
whereas the Group’s total reserves as at 31st 
March	2017	were	Rs.714,086,000	/-	 (2016	-	Rs.	
1,059,618,334/-).	The	movement	in	these	reserves	
is	 shown	 in	 the	 Statement	 of	 Changes	 in	 Equity	 -	
Group on page 47.

5.2. Property, Plant and equipment

 The carrying value of property plant and equipment 
for the Company and the Group as at 31st March 
2017	amounted	 to	Rs.	994	million	and	Rs.	5,907	
million respectively. The total expenditure on the 
acquisition	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	during	
the year in respect of new assets acquired by the 
Group amounted to Rs.357 million.

5.3 Market Value of Freehold Properties

	 Land	recognised	as	property,	plant	and	equipment	in	
the financial statements in the Group is recorded at 
either fair value or revalued amounts. Revaluation of 
land is performed with sufficient regularity so that the 
carrying value of the land does not differ materially 
to its market value. Revaluation was performed by 
professionally qualified independent valuers having 
appropriate experience in valuing properties in the 
locality of the land being revalued. If the fair value of 
land does not change other than by an insignificant 
amount at each reporting date the Group revalues 
such land every five years.

	 Details	 of	 the	 revalued	 land,	 revaluation	 surplus,	
and the original cost are given in note 11.2.2 of 
the financial statements. The Group records all other 
assets at cost and check for any impairment of these 
assets when the Group identifies any trigger for 
impairment

5.4 contingent liabilities

 The details of contingent liabilities are disclosed in 
note 30 of the financial statements on page 79.

6. eVents occUrrInG aFter the rePortInG 
Date

 No event of material significance that requires 
adjustments	 to	 the	 financial	 statements	 has	 arisen	
other than that disclosed in note 29 to the financial 
statements on page 79.

7. GoInG concern

 The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company 
and its subsidiary  have adequate resources to 
continue their operations without any disruption 
in the foreseeable future. The Company’s and the 
Group’s financial statements are therefore prepared 
on a going concern basis.

annUal rePort oF the BoarD oF DIrectors - contd.

8. InForMatIon on the BoarD 
oF DIrectors anD the BoarD 
sUB¬coMMIttees

8.1 Board of Directors

 The names of the Directors of the Company who 
held office during the financial year is given in the 
following table and their brief profiles are given on 
pages 7 to 9 of the Annual Report.

 
  name of Director executive non Independent
    executive non-executive
Deshamanya	D.	H.	S.	Jayawardena	-	Chairman	  

Mr. J. M. S. Brito  

Ms. D. S. T. Jayawardena  

Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya    

Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne	 	 	 

Mr. R. N. Asirwatham    

Mr. C. R. Stanislaus   

Mr.	M.	V.	Theagarajah	(Ceased	to	be	a	 	   

Director on 11th September 2016)

 All of the above Directors held office during the 
entire	year,	with	the	exception	of	Mr.	C.	R.	Stanislaus	
who was appointed to the Board w.e.f. 15th August 
2016	and	Mr.	M.	V.	Theagarajah	who	ceased	to	be	
a Director on 11th September 2016.

8.2 Board sub-committees

 The following Directors of the Company serve as 
members	of	Audit,	Remuneration	and	Related	Party	
Transactions Review Committees of the Company:

 audit committee

 Mr. R. N. Asirwatham (Chairman)

	 Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne

 Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya

 remuneration committee

 Mr. R. N. Asirwatham (Chairman)

	 Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne

 Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya

 related Party transactions review committee

 Mr. R. N. Asirwatham (Chairman)

	 Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne

 Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya

8.3 recommendation for re-election 
appointment

 It is recommended that Deshamanya D. H. S. 
Jayawardena,	Mr.	 R	N	Asirwatham	and	Mr.	 J.	M.	
S. Brito who are over 70 years of age and who 

vacate office in terms of Section 210 (2) (b) of the 
Companies	 Act,	 be	 re-appointed	 as	 Directors,	 in	
terms	of	Section	211	of	the	Companies	Act,	specially	
declaring that the age limit stipulated in Section 210 
of the Companies Act shall not apply to the said 
Directors. 

 Ms. D. S. T. Jayawardena retires by rotation in terms 
of Article 84 and 85 of the Articles of the Company 
and	being	eligible	offers	herself	for	re-election.
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8.4 Directors’ shareholding and their interests

 Shareholdings of Directors in Browns Beach Hotels 
PLC	are	tabled	below:

  
 as at 31.03.2017 as at 31.03.2016

 Directors no. of % no. of %
  shares  shares

Deshamanya	D.H.S.	Jayawardena	-	Chairman	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	M.	V.	Theagarajah	(Ceased	to	be	a 
Director	on	11th	September	2016)	 -	 -	 18,003	 0.01

Mr.	J.M.S.	Brito	 -	 -	 -	 -

Ms.	D.S.T.	Jayawardena	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	N.J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	A.L.	Gooneratne	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	R.N.	Asirwatham	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	C.R.	Stanislaus	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 	 -	 -	 18,003	 0.01

8.5 Interest register

 An Interest Register is maintained by the Company 
and the subsidiary as per the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007.

8.6 Directors remuneration

 The Directors remuneration and fee in respect of the 
Company and its subsidiary for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2017 are disclosed on the page 
78 note 27.4 of the Annual Report.

8.7 related Party transactions

 Related party transactions of the Company and the 
Group are disclosed in note 27 to the Financial 
Statements.	 These	 are	 Recurrent	 and	 Non-
Recurrent	Related	Party	Transactions,	which	required	
disclosure in the Annual Report in accordance with 
the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standard	No.	24.	Related	
Party	Disclosures.	However,	there	were	no	Recurrent	
Related Party Transactions which in aggregate value 
exceeded 10% of the Consolidated Revenue of the 
Group as per the Audited Financial Statements as at 
31st March 2016.

	 During	 the	 year	 there	 were	 no	 Non-Recurrent	
Related Party Transactions which in aggregate value 
exceeded lower of 10% of the equity or 5% of the 
total assets as per the Audited Financial Statements 
as	at	31st	March	2016,	which	 required	additional	
disclosures	 in	 the	Annual	Report	under	Listing	Rule	
9.3.2(a)

 The Key Management Personnel of the Company 
and its Subsidiary have disclosed on a quarterly 
basis,	 the	 proposed	 transactions	 (if	 any)	 falling	
under	the	ambit	of	Rule	9	of	the	Listing	Rule	of	the	
Colombo Stock Exchange which were to be entered 
into with the Company and or with its subsidiary and 
or	with	 any	 other	 ‘related	 party’	 as	 defined	 in	 the	
Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	(as	applicable).	The	
disclosures so made were tabled at the meetings of 
the Related Party Transactions Review Committee 
held	 on	 a	 quarterly	 basis,	 in	 compliance	 with	 the	
requirements	of	the	above-mentioned	Rule.

annUal rePort oF the BoarD oF DIrectors - contd.

 The Directors declare that the Company is in 
compliance	with	 Rule	9	 of	 the	 Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	
Colombo Stock Exchange pertaining to Related 
Party Transactions during the financial year ended 
31st March 2017.

8.8 Board of Directors of the subsidiary

 The names of Directors of the subsidiary company 
who held office as at 31st March 2017  are set out 
on page 87 of this Annual Report.

9. hUMan resoUrces

	 Our	 Human Resources strategies and practices 
have translated into the creation of a dynamic 
and competent human resource team with sound 
succession planning and a remarkably low attrition 
rate.	 Our	 employment	 strategies	 are	 reviewed	
periodically by the relevant Committees and the 
Board of Directors.

10. corPorate GoVernance

 The Group	has	not	engaged	 in	any	activity,	which	
contravenes the national and international laws.

 The Group rigidly adheres to relevant national and 
international laws and the regulations of Professional 
Institutes	 and	 Associations,	 Industrial	 Associations,	
Chambers of Commerce and Regulatory Bodies. 
The	 Group	 complies	 with	 the	 Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	
Colombo Stock Exchange and the Code of Best 
Practice	on	Corporate	Governance	issued	jointly	by	
the	 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	Sri	 Lanka	
and the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Sri	 Lanka.	 The	Group	 applies	 very	 high	 standards	
to protect and nurture the environment in which 
it operates and ensures strict adherence to all 
environment laws and practices. 

 The Company has no restrictions with regard to 
shareholders carrying out analysis or obtaining 
independent	advice	of	a	non-price	sensitive	nature	
regarding their investment in the Company and 
has made all endeavors to ensure the equitable 
treatment of shareholders. The Company’s corporate 
governance practices are set out on pages 10 to 14 
of this Annual Report.

11. rIsK ManaGeMent

 The Directors have established and adhere to a 
comprehensive risk management framework at 
both subsidiary and Group levels to ensure the 

achievement	 of	 their	 corporate	 objectives.	 The	
categories	of	risks	faced	by	the	Group	are	identified,	
the significance they pose are evaluated and 
mitigating strategies are adopted by the Group. The 
Board of Directors reviews the Risk Management 
Process through the Audit Committee. The Risk 
Management Report of the Group is on pages 31 to 
39 of this Report.

12. Internal controls

 The Board of Directors ensures that the Group has 
an effective internal control system which ensures 
that the assets of the Company and the Group are 
safeguarded and appropriate systems are in place 
to	minimise	and	detect	fraud,	errors	and	other	
irregularities. The system ensures that the Group 
adopts procedures which result in financial and 
operational effectiveness and efficiency.

 Board of Director’s Statement on Internal Controls 
is	 on	 page	 29,	 the	 Statement	 of	 Directors’	
Responsibilities on page 22 and the Audit Committee 
Report set out on pages 16 to 17 of this Report 
provide further information in respect of the above.

13. statUtorY PaYMents

 The Directors to the best of their knowledge and 
belief are satisfied that all statutory financial 
obligations to the Government and to the employees 
have been either duly paid or adequately provided 
for in the financial statements. A confirmation of 
same is included in the Statement of Directors’ 
Responsibilities on page 22 of this Annual Report.

14. corPorate sUstaInaBIlItY

 The Board of Directors guides and supports the 
Group’s sustainability strategy. It welcomes the 
implementation of the structured and dynamic 
integrated sustainability framework. Awards and 
recognition received during the year and previous 
years are a testament to our commitment as we 
continue to benchmark our practices against global 
standards and best practices in a myriad of aspects 
that affect or potentially affect delivery of growth.

15. shareholDer InForMatIon

	 There	 were	 2,329	 shareholders	 as	 at	 31st	 March	
2017. The distribution schedule of the number of 
shareholders and their shareholdings are detailed 
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8.4 Directors’ shareholding and their interests

 Shareholdings of Directors in Browns Beach Hotels 
PLC	are	tabled	below:

  
 as at 31.03.2017 as at 31.03.2016

 Directors no. of % no. of %
  shares  shares

Deshamanya	D.H.S.	Jayawardena	-	Chairman	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	M.	V.	Theagarajah	(Ceased	to	be	a 
Director	on	11th	September	2016)	 -	 -	 18,003	 0.01

Mr.	J.M.S.	Brito	 -	 -	 -	 -

Ms.	D.S.T.	Jayawardena	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	N.J.	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	A.L.	Gooneratne	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	R.N.	Asirwatham	 -	 -	 -	 -

Mr.	C.R.	Stanislaus	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 	 -	 -	 18,003	 0.01

8.5 Interest register

 An Interest Register is maintained by the Company 
and the subsidiary as per the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007.

8.6 Directors remuneration

 The Directors remuneration and fee in respect of the 
Company and its subsidiary for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2017 are disclosed on the page 
78 note 27.4 of the Annual Report.

8.7 related Party transactions

 Related party transactions of the Company and the 
Group are disclosed in note 27 to the Financial 
Statements.	 These	 are	 Recurrent	 and	 Non-
Recurrent	Related	Party	Transactions,	which	required	
disclosure in the Annual Report in accordance with 
the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standard	No.	24.	Related	
Party	Disclosures.	However,	there	were	no	Recurrent	
Related Party Transactions which in aggregate value 
exceeded 10% of the Consolidated Revenue of the 
Group as per the Audited Financial Statements as at 
31st March 2016.

	 During	 the	 year	 there	 were	 no	 Non-Recurrent	
Related Party Transactions which in aggregate value 
exceeded lower of 10% of the equity or 5% of the 
total assets as per the Audited Financial Statements 
as	at	31st	March	2016,	which	 required	additional	
disclosures	 in	 the	Annual	Report	under	Listing	Rule	
9.3.2(a)

 The Key Management Personnel of the Company 
and its Subsidiary have disclosed on a quarterly 
basis,	 the	 proposed	 transactions	 (if	 any)	 falling	
under	the	ambit	of	Rule	9	of	the	Listing	Rule	of	the	
Colombo Stock Exchange which were to be entered 
into with the Company and or with its subsidiary and 
or	with	 any	 other	 ‘related	 party’	 as	 defined	 in	 the	
Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	(as	applicable).	The	
disclosures so made were tabled at the meetings of 
the Related Party Transactions Review Committee 
held	 on	 a	 quarterly	 basis,	 in	 compliance	 with	 the	
requirements	of	the	above-mentioned	Rule.

annUal rePort oF the BoarD oF DIrectors - contd.

 The Directors declare that the Company is in 
compliance	with	 Rule	9	 of	 the	 Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	
Colombo Stock Exchange pertaining to Related 
Party Transactions during the financial year ended 
31st March 2017.

8.8 Board of Directors of the subsidiary

 The names of Directors of the subsidiary company 
who held office as at 31st March 2017  are set out 
on page 87 of this Annual Report.

9. hUMan resoUrces

	 Our	 Human Resources strategies and practices 
have translated into the creation of a dynamic 
and competent human resource team with sound 
succession planning and a remarkably low attrition 
rate.	 Our	 employment	 strategies	 are	 reviewed	
periodically by the relevant Committees and the 
Board of Directors.

10. corPorate GoVernance

 The Group	has	not	engaged	 in	any	activity,	which	
contravenes the national and international laws.

 The Group rigidly adheres to relevant national and 
international laws and the regulations of Professional 
Institutes	 and	 Associations,	 Industrial	 Associations,	
Chambers of Commerce and Regulatory Bodies. 
The	 Group	 complies	 with	 the	 Listing	 Rules	 of	 the	
Colombo Stock Exchange and the Code of Best 
Practice	on	Corporate	Governance	issued	jointly	by	
the	 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	Sri	 Lanka	
and the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Sri	 Lanka.	 The	Group	 applies	 very	 high	 standards	
to protect and nurture the environment in which 
it operates and ensures strict adherence to all 
environment laws and practices. 

 The Company has no restrictions with regard to 
shareholders carrying out analysis or obtaining 
independent	advice	of	a	non-price	sensitive	nature	
regarding their investment in the Company and 
has made all endeavors to ensure the equitable 
treatment of shareholders. The Company’s corporate 
governance practices are set out on pages 10 to 14 
of this Annual Report.

11. rIsK ManaGeMent

 The Directors have established and adhere to a 
comprehensive risk management framework at 
both subsidiary and Group levels to ensure the 

achievement	 of	 their	 corporate	 objectives.	 The	
categories	of	risks	faced	by	the	Group	are	identified,	
the significance they pose are evaluated and 
mitigating strategies are adopted by the Group. The 
Board of Directors reviews the Risk Management 
Process through the Audit Committee. The Risk 
Management Report of the Group is on pages 31 to 
39 of this Report.

12. Internal controls

 The Board of Directors ensures that the Group has 
an effective internal control system which ensures 
that the assets of the Company and the Group are 
safeguarded and appropriate systems are in place 
to	minimise	and	detect	fraud,	errors	and	other	
irregularities. The system ensures that the Group 
adopts procedures which result in financial and 
operational effectiveness and efficiency.

 Board of Director’s Statement on Internal Controls 
is	 on	 page	 29,	 the	 Statement	 of	 Directors’	
Responsibilities on page 22 and the Audit Committee 
Report set out on pages 16 to 17 of this Report 
provide further information in respect of the above.

13. statUtorY PaYMents

 The Directors to the best of their knowledge and 
belief are satisfied that all statutory financial 
obligations to the Government and to the employees 
have been either duly paid or adequately provided 
for in the financial statements. A confirmation of 
same is included in the Statement of Directors’ 
Responsibilities on page 22 of this Annual Report.

14. corPorate sUstaInaBIlItY

 The Board of Directors guides and supports the 
Group’s sustainability strategy. It welcomes the 
implementation of the structured and dynamic 
integrated sustainability framework. Awards and 
recognition received during the year and previous 
years are a testament to our commitment as we 
continue to benchmark our practices against global 
standards and best practices in a myriad of aspects 
that affect or potentially affect delivery of growth.

15. shareholDer InForMatIon

	 There	 were	 2,329	 shareholders	 as	 at	 31st	 March	
2017. The distribution schedule of the number of 
shareholders and their shareholdings are detailed 
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on page 83 of the Annual Report. The names of 
the	 twenty	 largest	 shareholders,	 together	with	 their	
shareholdings as at 31st March 2017 are given on 
page 84 of the Annual Report. The percentage of 
the shares held by the public as at 31st March 2017 
was	9.20%	held	by	2,320	shareholders.

16. aUDItors

 The independent auditors’ report on the financial 
statements is given on page 44 of the Annual Report. 
The	 retiring	 auditors	 Messrs	 KPMG,	 Chartered	
Accountants have communicated their willingness 
to	continue	in	office	and	a	resolution	to	re-appoint	
them as auditors and grant authority to the Board to 
determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 
Annual General Meeting.

 The fees payable to the Company auditors Messrs 
KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants	was	Rs.	175,000/-	
(2015/16	-	Rs.	140,000/-).	In	addition	to	the	above	
Rs.148,000/-	(2015/16	-	Rs.295,000/-)	was	payable	
by the Company for permitted non audit related 

services including tax advisory services. The amount 
payable by the Group to Messrs KPMG Chartered 
Accountants	 as	 audit	 fees	 was	 Rs.375,000/-	
(2015/16	 -	 Rs.315,000/-)	 while	 a	 further	
Rs.486,000/-	(2015/16	-	Rs.340,000/-)	was	payable	
for permitted non audit related services. Messrs 
KPMG,	Chartered	 Accountants	 the	 auditors	 of	 the	
Company are also the auditors of the subsidiary of 
the Group.

 As far as the Directors are aware the auditors neither 
have any other relationship with the Company nor 
its subsidiary that would have an impact on their 

independence.

D. h. s. Jayawardena
Chairman

J. M. s. Brito
Director

anusha wijesekara
P w corporate secretarial (Pvt) ltd
Secretaries

Colombo 
25th August 2017

The Board of Directors is responsible for formulating 
and implementing a sound system of internal controls 
and for periodically reviewing its effectiveness and 
integrity in terms of mitigating any risks associated with 
such,	safeguarding	the	Group	assets	and	prevention	
of their misused or unauthorized disposal.

The Board is of the opinion that the system of 
internal controls is sound and adequate to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 
Statements for external stakeholders and that they are 
in accordance with acceptable accounting principles 
and the applicable regulatory requirements.

Internal aUDIt

Any internal control system has its inherent limitations. 
However,	 the	Board	believes	 that	 adequate	 internal	
controls	are	in	place	to	mitigate	such	limitations.	We	
have	 a	 fully-equipped	 Internal	 Audit	 Department	 to	
assist the maintenance of our sound system of internal 
control for purposes of protecting all stakeholder 
interests and the Group assets.

The Group’s Internal Audit function is an independent 
function that reports directly to the Audit Committee.

It undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s operations 
and system of internal controls based on annual audit 
plans approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal 
Audit	function	carries	out	the	reviews	with	impartiality,	
proficiency and due professional care. The Internal 
Audit findings are discussed at management level 
and actions are agreed in response to the Internal 
Audit function’s recommendations. The progress of 
implementation of the agreed actions is reviewed 
and verified by the Internal Audit function through 
its	 follow-up	 reviews.	 The	 Audit	 Committee	 reviews	
all	 internal	 audit	 findings,	 management	 responses	
and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls.

the bOarD Of DireCtOrs’ statement On internal COntrOls

reVIew aDeQUacY anD eFFectIVeness

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed 
the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	 financial,	 operational,	 and	
compliance	 controls,	 and	 internal	 control	 systems,	
including risk management for the period and have 
taken appropriate remedial steps where necessary.

In	this	connection,	the	Board	and	the	Audit	committee	
concludes that an effective system of risk management 
and internal control is in place to safeguard the 
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

whIstle BlowInG PolIcY

The Group has implemented a whistle blowing policy 
which aims to provide an avenue for employees to 
raise concerns about possible irregularities in financial 
reporting,	internal	controls	or	other	matters	within	the	
Group. Proper arrangements have been put in place 
to facilitate fair and independent investigation for 
such matters (if any). The effectiveness of this policy 
will be monitored and reviewed regularly by the Audit 
Committee.

coDe oF BUsIness conDUct anD ethIcs

The	Group’s	Code	of	Ethics,	which	 is	articulated	 to	
Directors and all employees includes a strong set of 
corporate values and required conduct. The Board 
ensures that Directors and employees strictly comply 
with the Group’s Code of Ethics at all levels in the 
performance	of	their	official	duties,	communications,	
role	 modelling	 and	 in	 any	 other	 circumstances,	 so	
as to prevent the tarnishing of the Group’s image in 
any manner. The violation of the Code of Ethics is an 
offence	that	is	subject	to	disciplinary	action.

GoInG concern

The Statement of Going Concern is set out in the 
‘Annual	Report	of	Board	of	Directors’	on	page	24	of	
this report.
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on page 83 of the Annual Report. The names of 
the	 twenty	 largest	 shareholders,	 together	with	 their	
shareholdings as at 31st March 2017 are given on 
page 84 of the Annual Report. The percentage of 
the shares held by the public as at 31st March 2017 
was	9.20%	held	by	2,320	shareholders.

16. aUDItors

 The independent auditors’ report on the financial 
statements is given on page 44 of the Annual Report. 
The	 retiring	 auditors	 Messrs	 KPMG,	 Chartered	
Accountants have communicated their willingness 
to	continue	in	office	and	a	resolution	to	re-appoint	
them as auditors and grant authority to the Board to 
determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 
Annual General Meeting.

 The fees payable to the Company auditors Messrs 
KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants	was	Rs.	175,000/-	
(2015/16	-	Rs.	140,000/-).	In	addition	to	the	above	
Rs.148,000/-	(2015/16	-	Rs.295,000/-)	was	payable	
by the Company for permitted non audit related 

services including tax advisory services. The amount 
payable by the Group to Messrs KPMG Chartered 
Accountants	 as	 audit	 fees	 was	 Rs.375,000/-	
(2015/16	 -	 Rs.315,000/-)	 while	 a	 further	
Rs.486,000/-	(2015/16	-	Rs.340,000/-)	was	payable	
for permitted non audit related services. Messrs 
KPMG,	Chartered	 Accountants	 the	 auditors	 of	 the	
Company are also the auditors of the subsidiary of 
the Group.

 As far as the Directors are aware the auditors neither 
have any other relationship with the Company nor 
its subsidiary that would have an impact on their 

independence.

D. h. s. Jayawardena
Chairman

J. M. s. Brito
Director

anusha wijesekara
P w corporate secretarial (Pvt) ltd
Secretaries

Colombo 
25th August 2017

The Board of Directors is responsible for formulating 
and implementing a sound system of internal controls 
and for periodically reviewing its effectiveness and 
integrity in terms of mitigating any risks associated with 
such,	safeguarding	the	Group	assets	and	prevention	
of their misused or unauthorized disposal.

The Board is of the opinion that the system of 
internal controls is sound and adequate to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 
Statements for external stakeholders and that they are 
in accordance with acceptable accounting principles 
and the applicable regulatory requirements.

Internal aUDIt

Any internal control system has its inherent limitations. 
However,	 the	Board	believes	 that	 adequate	 internal	
controls	are	in	place	to	mitigate	such	limitations.	We	
have	 a	 fully-equipped	 Internal	 Audit	 Department	 to	
assist the maintenance of our sound system of internal 
control for purposes of protecting all stakeholder 
interests and the Group assets.

The Group’s Internal Audit function is an independent 
function that reports directly to the Audit Committee.

It undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s operations 
and system of internal controls based on annual audit 
plans approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal 
Audit	function	carries	out	the	reviews	with	impartiality,	
proficiency and due professional care. The Internal 
Audit findings are discussed at management level 
and actions are agreed in response to the Internal 
Audit function’s recommendations. The progress of 
implementation of the agreed actions is reviewed 
and verified by the Internal Audit function through 
its	 follow-up	 reviews.	 The	 Audit	 Committee	 reviews	
all	 internal	 audit	 findings,	 management	 responses	
and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls.

the bOarD Of DireCtOrs’ statement On internal COntrOls

reVIew aDeQUacY anD eFFectIVeness

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed 
the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	 financial,	 operational,	 and	
compliance	 controls,	 and	 internal	 control	 systems,	
including risk management for the period and have 
taken appropriate remedial steps where necessary.

In	this	connection,	the	Board	and	the	Audit	committee	
concludes that an effective system of risk management 
and internal control is in place to safeguard the 
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

whIstle BlowInG PolIcY

The Group has implemented a whistle blowing policy 
which aims to provide an avenue for employees to 
raise concerns about possible irregularities in financial 
reporting,	internal	controls	or	other	matters	within	the	
Group. Proper arrangements have been put in place 
to facilitate fair and independent investigation for 
such matters (if any). The effectiveness of this policy 
will be monitored and reviewed regularly by the Audit 
Committee.

coDe oF BUsIness conDUct anD ethIcs

The	Group’s	Code	of	Ethics,	which	 is	articulated	 to	
Directors and all employees includes a strong set of 
corporate values and required conduct. The Board 
ensures that Directors and employees strictly comply 
with the Group’s Code of Ethics at all levels in the 
performance	of	their	official	duties,	communications,	
role	 modelling	 and	 in	 any	 other	 circumstances,	 so	
as to prevent the tarnishing of the Group’s image in 
any manner. The violation of the Code of Ethics is an 
offence	that	is	subject	to	disciplinary	action.

GoInG concern

The Statement of Going Concern is set out in the 
‘Annual	Report	of	Board	of	Directors’	on	page	24	of	
this report.
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rIsK ManaGeMent

An overview of the Group’s framework for identifying 
and	 managing	 risk,	 both	 at	 an	 operational	 and	
strategic	 level,	 is	 set	out	on	pages	31	 to	39	of	 this	
report.

annUal rePort

The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the Annual Report and confirm that the 
quarterly	reports,	Annual	Financial	Statements	and	the	
annual review of operations of the Company and its 
subsidiary that are incorporated in this Annual Report 
have been prepared and presented in a reliable 
manner,	 based	 on	 a	 balanced	 and	 comprehensive	
assessment of the financial performance of the entire 
Group.

conFIrMatIon

All financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007,	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	and	Auditing	Standards	
Act,	Listing	Rules	of	the	Colombo	Stock	Exchange	and	
other regulatory bodies as applicable for the Group.

We	 have	 duly	 complied	 with	 all	 the	 requirements	
prescribed by the regulatory authorities including 
the Colombo Stock Exchange and the Registrar of 
Companies. The consolidated financial statements 
and the Company’s financial statements for the 
year ended 31st March 2017 have been audited by 
Messrs.	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants,

Deshamanya D h s Jayawardena
Chairman

J M s Brito
Director

r n asirwatham
Chairman Audit Committee

Colombo
25th August 2017

rIsK ManaGeMent 

STRATEGIC RISK
01. Business risk Impact risk Management strategies

Failure to implement 
strategic	plans,	for	Revenue	
improvement & cost saving 
initiatives and undertaking of 
profitable investments

Reduced	revenue,	
cash flow and 
profitability.

Integrating risk awareness directly into strategic 
decision making by holding regular meetings of 
Board of Directors and members of the Management 
committee in order to formalize future strategies 
and	plans	and	to	revise	and	update	plans,	taking	in	
to consideration the changing circumstances of the 
group.

The inability of the Group 
to achieve its business 
objectives

Hinder future growth. A sophisticated and streamlined management 
information	system,	using	the	latest	Property	
Management and Enterprise Resource Planning 
Software,	and	the	preparation	of	detailed	operational	
and capital expenditure budgets enables the group 
to assess actual performance against planned and to 
take remedial action wherever necessary.

The Company employs a structured approach 
in managing uncertainty and threats through a 
sequence	of	activities	including	risk	assessment,	risk	
evaluation and risk mitigation. The Risk Management 
system is reviewed periodically to ensure adequacy 
and effectiveness.
During the financial year construction work of the 
new hotel was completed and commercial operations 
commenced by 2nd of April 2016.
There are several key risks to which the Company 
is exposed due to our business activities. The 
assessment of such risks their impact and related 
responses are as follows.
The	Group’s	major	risks	are	categorized	in	terms	of	
three facets as follows:

Business and strategic risk

Uncertainties and untapped opportunities embedded 
in group strategic intent and how well they are 
executed.	As	such,	they	are	key	matters	for	the	board	
and have effect on the whole business.

-	 Business	risk
-	 Socio-economic,	political	&	environmental	risk
-	 Competitive	risk

operational risk

Risks that directly affect to business operations with 
a potential impact on financial position and business 

performance or the external activities which affect 
day to day activities of the group.

-	 Reputation risk
-	 Fraud	risk
-	 Debtors	risk
-	 Operations	risk
-	 Human	resources	risk
-	 Technology	risk
-	 Legal	risk

Financial risk

Risks faced by the Group relate to the availability of 

funds to meet business needs and ability to deliver 

adequate return to the group.

Risks of losses arising from the adverse movements 

in	 market	 prices,	 risks	 that	 the	 Company	may	 not	

have sufficient funds to meet financial obligations 

and failure of a customer to meet its contractual 

obligations.

-	 Credit	risk
-	 Foreign	exchange	risk
-	 Interest	rate	risk
-	 Liquidity	risk
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rIsK ManaGeMent

An overview of the Group’s framework for identifying 
and	 managing	 risk,	 both	 at	 an	 operational	 and	
strategic	 level,	 is	 set	out	on	pages	31	 to	39	of	 this	
report.

annUal rePort

The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the Annual Report and confirm that the 
quarterly	reports,	Annual	Financial	Statements	and	the	
annual review of operations of the Company and its 
subsidiary that are incorporated in this Annual Report 
have been prepared and presented in a reliable 
manner,	 based	 on	 a	 balanced	 and	 comprehensive	
assessment of the financial performance of the entire 
Group.

conFIrMatIon

All financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007,	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	and	Auditing	Standards	
Act,	Listing	Rules	of	the	Colombo	Stock	Exchange	and	
other regulatory bodies as applicable for the Group.

We	 have	 duly	 complied	 with	 all	 the	 requirements	
prescribed by the regulatory authorities including 
the Colombo Stock Exchange and the Registrar of 
Companies. The consolidated financial statements 
and the Company’s financial statements for the 
year ended 31st March 2017 have been audited by 
Messrs.	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants,

Deshamanya D h s Jayawardena
Chairman

J M s Brito
Director

r n asirwatham
Chairman Audit Committee

Colombo
25th August 2017

rIsK ManaGeMent 

STRATEGIC RISK
01. Business risk Impact risk Management strategies

Failure to implement 
strategic	plans,	for	Revenue	
improvement & cost saving 
initiatives and undertaking of 
profitable investments

Reduced	revenue,	
cash flow and 
profitability.

Integrating risk awareness directly into strategic 
decision making by holding regular meetings of 
Board of Directors and members of the Management 
committee in order to formalize future strategies 
and	plans	and	to	revise	and	update	plans,	taking	in	
to consideration the changing circumstances of the 
group.

The inability of the Group 
to achieve its business 
objectives

Hinder future growth. A sophisticated and streamlined management 
information	system,	using	the	latest	Property	
Management and Enterprise Resource Planning 
Software,	and	the	preparation	of	detailed	operational	
and capital expenditure budgets enables the group 
to assess actual performance against planned and to 
take remedial action wherever necessary.

The Company employs a structured approach 
in managing uncertainty and threats through a 
sequence	of	activities	including	risk	assessment,	risk	
evaluation and risk mitigation. The Risk Management 
system is reviewed periodically to ensure adequacy 
and effectiveness.
During the financial year construction work of the 
new hotel was completed and commercial operations 
commenced by 2nd of April 2016.
There are several key risks to which the Company 
is exposed due to our business activities. The 
assessment of such risks their impact and related 
responses are as follows.
The	Group’s	major	risks	are	categorized	in	terms	of	
three facets as follows:

Business and strategic risk

Uncertainties and untapped opportunities embedded 
in group strategic intent and how well they are 
executed.	As	such,	they	are	key	matters	for	the	board	
and have effect on the whole business.

-	 Business	risk
-	 Socio-economic,	political	&	environmental	risk
-	 Competitive	risk

operational risk

Risks that directly affect to business operations with 
a potential impact on financial position and business 

performance or the external activities which affect 
day to day activities of the group.

-	 Reputation risk
-	 Fraud	risk
-	 Debtors	risk
-	 Operations	risk
-	 Human	resources	risk
-	 Technology	risk
-	 Legal	risk

Financial risk

Risks faced by the Group relate to the availability of 

funds to meet business needs and ability to deliver 

adequate return to the group.

Risks of losses arising from the adverse movements 

in	 market	 prices,	 risks	 that	 the	 Company	may	 not	

have sufficient funds to meet financial obligations 

and failure of a customer to meet its contractual 

obligations.

-	 Credit	risk
-	 Foreign	exchange	risk
-	 Interest	rate	risk
-	 Liquidity	risk
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01. Business risk Impact risk Management strategies

Damaged confidence 
of investors

Focus on strategic resiliency by consider how strategic 
decisions	can	affect	resiliency,	incorporate	resiliency	
into	all	decision	making,	and	always	be	on	the	lookout	
for more strategically resilient alternatives in order to 
build greater corporate agility.
All	members	of	the	Board	attend	regular	workshops,	
seminars and professional training programs in order 
to update their skills and knowledge.
Thorough	due	diligence	and	project	feasibility	
studies	are	conducted	for	all	major	investments	and	
professional advice from outside sources is obtained 
when necessary. 
The Group monitors its main competitor’s in order to 
lower the response time needed to counter any new 
strategies implemented by them.
Implementation of cost control procedures and 
innovative cost saving initiatives particularly with 
regard to energy costs. 

02. socio-economic,  
Political & 
environmental 
risk

Impact risk Management strategies

Major	events	affecting	either	
economic or political stability 
on a global and local level 
represent an exposure to the 
Company

Lowering	the	
competitiveness 
of the group’s 
product offering on 
the national and 
international market.

The	group	works	closely	with	lobby	groups,	relevant	
authorities and trade associations to ensure the best 
interests of the tourism industry are fulfilled at all times.

Risks from natural or 
manmade disasters

Loss	of	assets	
resulting in significant 
losses to the group

Appropriate contingency plans and disaster 
management systems are adopted to safeguard the 
assets of the Group.
Transferring risks to third parties through insurance 
policies. The adequacy of insurance covers is regularly 
reviewed	and	adjusted	when	necessary.	
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03. competitive risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risks from competitive 
actions from existing market 
participants and new entrants

Reduced market 
share and rates 
reducing	revenue,	
cash flow and 
profitability

The	group’s	service	excellence,	committed	and	award	
winning	staff,	uniqueness	of	property,	innovative	
product and service developments and the strength 
of its brand enables the group to counter threats from 
new and existing players.

Increased 
promotional 
expenditure

Leveraging	the	group’s	long-term	relationship	with	
major	tour	operators,	and	the	strength	of	the	sister	
company in the travel industry (Aitken Spence Travels 
Ltd.)	gives	the	group	a	significant	advantage	over	its	
competitors.

The Positive 
correlation between 
cost of resources and 
competition

Maintaining a positive relationship with employees 
with a better remuneration and performance appraisal 
scheme.

OPERATIONAL RISK
04. reputation risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risks to the group’s 
reputation and Brand image

Decline in the 
customer base and 
difficulties in securing 
future management 
contracts resulting 
in reduced market 
share,	revenues,	cash	
flow and profitability.

The	group	employs	a	well-defined	hygiene	quality	
assurance system to ensure the highest quality of 
service.	At	operational	level,	systems	are	in	place	to	
promptly address any issues/complaints brought about 
by the clients and to take proactive steps to mitigate 
similar occurrences in the future.
Ensuring all statutory and legal obligations are met in 
all transactions.

Deterioration of the 
corporate image.

Regular training sessions are held to train and educate 
staff on quality standards and new developments 
in the hospitality industry ensuring the quality of the 
group’s product offering and to maintain our trusted 
reputation.
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build greater corporate agility.
All	members	of	the	Board	attend	regular	workshops,	
seminars and professional training programs in order 
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lower the response time needed to counter any new 
strategies implemented by them.
Implementation of cost control procedures and 
innovative cost saving initiatives particularly with 
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product offering on 
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03. competitive risk Impact risk Management strategies
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cash flow and 
profitability
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new and existing players.
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promotional 
expenditure

Leveraging	the	group’s	long-term	relationship	with	
major	tour	operators,	and	the	strength	of	the	sister	
company in the travel industry (Aitken Spence Travels 
Ltd.)	gives	the	group	a	significant	advantage	over	its	
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correlation between 
cost of resources and 
competition

Maintaining a positive relationship with employees 
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scheme.

OPERATIONAL RISK
04. reputation risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risks to the group’s 
reputation and Brand image

Decline in the 
customer base and 
difficulties in securing 
future management 
contracts resulting 
in reduced market 
share,	revenues,	cash	
flow and profitability.

The	group	employs	a	well-defined	hygiene	quality	
assurance system to ensure the highest quality of 
service.	At	operational	level,	systems	are	in	place	to	
promptly address any issues/complaints brought about 
by the clients and to take proactive steps to mitigate 
similar occurrences in the future.
Ensuring all statutory and legal obligations are met in 
all transactions.

Deterioration of the 
corporate image.

Regular training sessions are held to train and educate 
staff on quality standards and new developments 
in the hospitality industry ensuring the quality of the 
group’s product offering and to maintain our trusted 
reputation.
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04. reputation risk Impact risk Management strategies

The group may have 
to face litigation 
which can be costly

Deployment	of	an	effective	compliance	system,	The	
group is committed to best environmental practices 
to ensure strict compliance with local regulations and 
maintains harmonious relationships with the localities 
in which the hotel operates.
The Board ensures that the company strictly complies 
with all relevant laws and codes of best practices and 
is not involved in any unethical business practices. A 
code of ethics booklet is given to all executives of the 
company and they confirm their acceptance of the 
same.

05. Fraud risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risks from break down 
of	internal	controls,	
processes
and procedures

Wastage	of	
management time 
and resources

Regular reviews of the effectiveness of internal 
controls by the corporate Internal Audit department 
supplemented by regular management audits carried 
out by internal teams within the group ensure the 
robustness of internal controls.
The Group uses comprehensive general & specific 
reporting	and	monitoring	systems	to	identify,	assess	
and manage risks.

Possible loss of data. Making each employee accountable for ethical 
behaviour,	high	standards	for	business	conduct	and	
adherence to laws.
Ensures that transactions occur in a reliable way.
Staff rotation & special verification audits across the 
group.

Increased possibility 
of fraud and misuse.

External auditors are also engaged to carry out special 
reviews wherever necessary.

Disruptions to the 
normal course of 
operations.

The Group uses comprehensive general & specific 
reporting	and	monitoring	systems	to	identify,	assess	
and manage risks.

Lack	of	ability	to	track
performance against
budgets,	forecasts
and schedules

Ensuring	that	only	trained,	trustworthy,	knowledgeable	
and competent personnel perform tasks prevents 
errors,	irregularities	and	fraud.
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05. Fraud risk Impact risk Management strategies

Illegal transactions
include theft or
misappropriation of
assets by employees

06. Debtors Impact risk Management strategies

Risk of default by debtors Reduced cash flow
and profitability

Thorough credit policies and stringent controls to 
check credit worthiness prior to granting credit.
Comprehensive systems are in place to monitor and 
review debtors. The group conducts excellent working 
capital practices and take legal or industrial action 
where appropriate.
The Group has implemented a thorough credit 
appraisal procedure prior to granting a credit facility.

07. operations risk Impact risk Management strategies

Project	Implementation	Risk Unbudgeted spend/
cost over runs and 
delays	in	project	
implementation may 
have a significant 
impact on the 
estimated profit 
margins.

Project	timelines	decided	should	be	realistic	and	
achievable after consulting all required stake holders.
Communicating the strategic planning messages and 
associated data to middle and first line managers 
helps	them	educate	their	personnel.	Well	informed	
employees are most likely to commit to and support 
the plan.
Standardized processes have been set up to cover 
project	consultancy,	project	award	and	material	
procurement.
Dedicated	teams	monitor	the	project	progress	
against the defined timelines and check whether the 
achievements comply with the group sustainability 
credentials.

Health and Safety Risk Affect group 
reputation and brand 
image.

Increase food and hygiene standards through 
obtaining	ISO	22000	and	HACCP	certifications.
The group’s centralized security division constantly 
reviews and monitors security status of individual 
resorts.
Conducting quality audits and risk management 
reviews,	guest	satisfaction	surveys,	intelligence	
gathering.

Risk of fire Damage to the 
property 
and clients.

Adequate automatic and manual fire detection and 
suppression systems are in place and are tested 
frequently.
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07. operations risk Impact risk Management strategies

Supply Chain Risk. Hinders operational
efficiencies leading to
the inability to meet
guest’s demands

An effective group wide supply chain risk management 
(SCRM) is practiced to ensure that supply chain risks 
are kept at minimal levels.
Adequate inventory levels are maintained at all hotels 
to compensate for any unforeseen supply disruptions.

Contractual Risk arising from
third party service providers.

May result in claims
and loss of reputation
of	the	hotel,	if	service
standards are not met
by	these	third-party
service providers.

The hotel has adequate contractual risk transfer 
clauses built into the agreements.
Where	necessary,	insurance	policies	have	been	
obtained from service providers to cover potential 
claims arising due to poor service standards.

Risk of increasing energy
cost

Significant impact on 
profit margins due to 
fluctuations in fuel/ 
energy prices.

Implement	an	energy	purchase	strategy,	offer	utility	bill	
management,	and	continually	monitor	the	market	to	
advise Hotels on purchase opportunities.

08. human resources 
risk

Impact risk Management strategies

Risk from not being able to 
attract and retain skilled and 
experienced staff

Reduced productivity Significant resources are invested in strengthening our 
human capital through the deployment of the latest 
Human	Resource	Information	Systems,	regular	staff	
training	and	development,	succession	planning	and	
fostering	a	performance-based	culture.

Reduced quality of
service resulting in
reduced market share 
and Group’s image

Maintaining cordial relationships with labour unions 
and	adopting	interest	based	negotiations	for	win-win	
solutions.
Rewards and Recognition (e.g.: Employee of the 
month and extra miler)

Risk of organized labour
activities and Trade Union
actions

Adverse impact
on	service	levels,
expected quality
standards,	
operational
efficiency and group
reputation

Maintain cordial relationship with Trade Unions and 

adopting	 interest-based	 negotiations	 for	 win-win	

solutions.

Development	 of	 a	 multi-skilled	 work	 force	 through	

structured and focused training programmes.

Standardization	of	policies,	procedures	and	practices	in	

order to achieve ease of work.

Loss	of	revenue Practice an open door policy where employees are free 

to express their concerns openly.
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09. technology risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risks relating to Information
Technology and security

Loss	of	revenue	and	
business opportunities 
due to outdated 
software resulting in 
reduction in cash flow 
and profitability.

The group has implemented the latest in Property 

Management	 and	 Reservation	 software,	 along	 with	

the	group	wide	Enterprise	Resource	Planning	software,	

facilitating	faster,	more	accurate	information	for	decision	

making. Regular review of systems and upgrades where 

appropriate.

Loss	of	key	
confidential 
information to 
competitors resulting 
in reduced market 
share

Implementation of a comprehensive IT policy within the 
group,	supported	by	adequate	systems	and	controls,	
ensure the safety and security of data. Contingency 
plans are in place to mitigate any short term loss on IT 
services.

Loss	of	data	and	
transactions

All employees are bound by the code of conduct to 
safeguard	the	group’s	information,	irrespective	of	its	
physical form.

Increasing number of 
Online	Travel	Agents
(OTAs)

The Group allocating significant proportion of its 
marketing	budget	for	non-traditional	tools	such	as	
online search engines and loyalty programmes and 
mobile apps.
The Group continues to aim to be fully compliant with 
payment	card	industry-Data	security	standards	using	
tools and services from a leading specialist third party 
provider with respect to payment card processing.
A dedicated central IT team is in place to support all IT 
related aspects of the group.

10. legal risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risk of legal action due to
nonperformance of legal 
and statutory requirements

High cost of legal 
and penalty fees 
resulting in reduced 
profitability.

A comprehensive internal control system is in place 
supplemented by regular audit from the corporate 
internal audit department in collaboration with the 
corporate legal division.

Adverse impact to the 
group’s reputation 
and Brand image.

Ensuring all statutory and legal obligations are met in 
all transactions.
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FINANCIAL RISK
11. credit risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risks from high 
operational
gearing

Significantly reduced 
cash flow and 
profitability during 
low occupancy 
periods.

Increased flexibility of the group’s operational cost 

structure	 through	 seasonal	 recruitments,	 using	 rental	

agreements as opposed to outright purchase and 

outsourcing	non-core	operations.

Sound capital structure and availability of adequate 

funding options in the group.

Actively monitor and review debtors.

Entering in to guaranteed performance contracts with 

travel agents and tour operators. All the assigned 

rates,	 credit	 limits,	 settlement	 procedures,	 termination	

and penalties imposed for delayed payments are 

incorporated in to the agreements.

12. Foreign 
      exchange risk

Impact risk Management strategies

Risks from adverse 
exchange
rate fluctuations

Reduced cash flow 
and profitability.

Negotiation of room rates in stronger currencies. Strong 

counter party backing and use of sophisticated financial 

instruments where appropriate.

Matching outflows with inflows of the same currency to 

the extent that is permitted by the prevailing laws.

Considering the possibility of contracting in local 

currency with local travel agents instead of foreign 

currency in order to transfer the possible exchange rate 

risk.

Apply	a	bottom-up	approach	to	identifying	consolidated	

foreign currency exposures. Determine in what 

currencies each foreign subsidiary collects receivables 

and makes payments.

Develop a strategy to manage consolidated exposure.

13. Interest rate risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risk arising due to the
volatility of fair value 
or future cash flows of 
a financial instrument 
fluctuating because of 
changes in market interest 
rates

Reduced cash flow 
and profitability.

Entering in to loans with interest rate caps mitigated 
this risk and other instruments to minimise the volatility 
of cash flows.
Working	closely	with	the	company’s	banks	to	negotiate	
favourable terms and conditions for loan facilities 
obtained.

14. liquidity risk Impact risk Management strategies

Risk of not being able to 
meet financial commitments
as and when they fall due

Penalty charges and 
unfavorable terms 
when obtaining future 
loans resulting in 
reduced profitability.

Preparation of regular cash flow forecasts in line with 

projected	occupancy	fluctuations	in	order	to	assess	the	

liquidity position of the group in the short term.

Strong capital structure of the group with sustainable 

growth in operating earnings.

Making optimum use of cash inflows with the help of 

the	 corporate	 treasury	 division,	 ensuring	 the	 group-

wide interest exposure is kept to a minimum.

Regular review of actual performance against planned 

to ensure achievement of budgeted targets.

rIsK ManaGeMent - contd.
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inDepenDent aUDitOrs’ repOrt 

to the shareholDers oF Browns Beach 
hotels Plc

report on the Financial statements

We	have	audited	 the	accompanying	 financial	statements	
of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	 PLC,	 (“the	Company”),	and	 the	
consolidated financial statements of the Company and 
its	 subsidiaries	 (“Group”),	 which	 comprise	 the	 statement	
of	 financial	 position	 as	 at	 March	 31,	 2017,	 and	 the	
income	 statement,	 statements	of	profit	or	 loss	and	other	
comprehensive	income,	changes	in	equity	and,	cash	flows	
for	 the	 year	 then	 ended,	 and	 a	 summary	 of	 significant	
accounting policies and other explanatory information set 
out on pages 45 to 79 of the Annual Report.

board’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for 
the preparation of these financial statements that give 
a	 true	 and	 fair	 view	 in	 accordance	 with	 Sri	 Lanka	
Accounting	 Standards,	 and	 for	 such	 internal	 control	 as	
Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.

auditors’ responsibility

Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	these	financial	
statements	based	on	our	audit.	We	conducted	our	audit	
in	 accordance	with	 Sri	 Lanka	Auditing	 Standards.	 Those	
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the	 auditors’	 judgment,	 including	 the	 assessment	 of	 the	
risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments,	the	auditor	considers	internal	control	relevant	
to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that	are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances,	but	not	for	the	
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

Board,	as	well	as	evaluating	the	overall	presentation	of	the	
financial statements. 

We	believe	 that	 the	audit	 evidence	we	have	obtained	 is	
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

opinion

In	our	opinion,	the	consolidated	financial	statements	give	
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group 
as	at	March	31,	2017,	and	of	 its	 financial	performance	
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards.

report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 
07	of	2007,	we	state	the	following:

a) The basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the 
audit are as stated above.

b) In our opinion:

-	 we	 have	 obtained	 all	 the	 information	 and	
explanations	 that	were	 required	 for	 the	 audit	 and,	
as	 far	 as	 appears	 from	 our	 examination,	 proper	
accounting	records	have	been	kept	by	the	Company,

-	 the	financial	statements	of	the	Company	give	a	true	
and fair view of its financial position as at March 
31,	2017,	and	of	its	financial	performance	and	cash	
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri 
Lanka	Accounting	Standards,	

-	 and	 the	 financial	 statements	of	 the	Company,	and	
the Group comply with the requirements of sections 
151 and 153 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007. 

Chartered Accountants

Colombo

25th August 2017

IncoMe stateMent

 Group company
For the year ended 31st March   2017 2016 2017 2016
  note rs.'000 Rs.'000 rs.'000 Rs.'000

revenue  3  593,861   -    -     -  

Revenue taxes   (13,034)  -     -     -  

net revenue   580,827   -     -     -  

Other	income   4 2,222   -     4,905   4,905 

Staff costs  5  (135,040)  (57,252)  (729) 	(4,207)

Depreciation  11  (222,658)  (907)  (463)  (907)

Other	operating	expenses	-	Direct  6  (131,982)  -     -     - 

Other	operating	expenses	-	Indirect  7 (290,973) 	(39,140)	  (5,700)	 	(7,142)	

Profit / (loss) from operations   (197,604) (97,299)	 (1,987)	 (7,351)

Finance income   499   188   -     188

Finance expense   (285,804)	 	-				  - 			 	-			

Net financing income / (expense)   (285,305) 188   -     188  

Profit /(loss) before taxation  8 (482,909)	 (97,111)	 (1,987)	 	(7,163)

Income tax expense  9 (91) 			 	(7,466)	  - 			 	(7,466)

Profit /(loss) for the year attributable to the 
equity holders of the parent company   (483,000)  (104,577) (1,987) (14,629)

Earnings / (loss) per share (Rs.)  10 (3.73) (0.81) (0.02) (0.11)
(Basic/diluted)

stateMent oF ProFIt or loss anD other coMPrehensIVe IncoMe

 Group company
For the Year enDeD 31st March   2017 2016 2017 2016

   rs.’000 Rs.’000 rs.’000 Rs.’000

Profit/(loss) for the year     (483,000)  (104,577)  (1,987)  (14,629)

other comprehensive income
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment    137,250  	-	    137,250  	-	  
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations    218  (332)  -				 	-			

     137,468  (332) 137,250		 	-

other comprehensive income for the year net of tax   137,468   (332)  137,250		 	-			

total comprehensive income for the year net of tax    (345,532)		(104,909)	 	135,263		 	(14,629)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent company   (345,532)	 (104,909)	 135,263	 (14,629)

Non-controlling	interests		 	 	 	-				 	-				  -				 	-			

    (345,532)	 (104,909)	 135,263		 	(14,629)

The notes on pages 49 to 79 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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stateMent oF ProFIt or loss anD other coMPrehensIVe IncoMe

 Group company
For the Year enDeD 31st March   2017 2016 2017 2016

   rs.’000 Rs.’000 rs.’000 Rs.’000

Profit/(loss) for the year     (483,000)  (104,577)  (1,987)  (14,629)

other comprehensive income
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment    137,250  	-	    137,250  	-	  
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The notes on pages 49 to 79 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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stateMent oF FInancIal PosItIon

 Group company
as at 31st March     2017 2016 2017 2016
   note   rs.’000 Rs.’000 rs.’000 Rs.’000

assets
non-current assets
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 11  5,906,680 	 	5,635,284		 	993,767		 	856,980	
Investments in subsidiary  12  -				 	-				 	2,700,000		 	2,700,000
Deferred tax assets  13	 	 -	 -	 -	 -
     5,906,680 	 	5,635,284		 	3,693,767 	 	3,556,980
current assets
Inventories  14  22,429	 2,504	 -	 -			
Trade and other receivables  15  32,042	 -	 -	 -
Deposits and prepayments     14,392 	 5,642		 2,145 	 	2,206
Amounts due from related companies   16  31,614 	 	-				  33,550 	 	31,617	
Cash and cash equivalents  17  42,124	 13,135	 392	 6,205	
     142,601 	 21,281		 36,087 	 40,028
total assets    6,049,281 	 	5,656,565		 3,729,854	 3,597,008

eQUItY anD lIaBIlItIes
equity 
Stated capital  18  2,383,449	 2,383,449	 2,383,449	 2,383,449	
Revaluation reserve     978,057 	 840,807		 978,057		 	840,807	
General Reserve     10,000 	 	10,000		  10,000 	 	10,000	
Retained earnings      (273,971)	 	208,811		 	355,950		 	357,937
total equity attributable to equity holders of the company    3,097,535  3,443,067 3,727,456 3,592,193
non-current liabilities
Employee benefits   19  2,260	 1,513	 351 351
Interest bearing loans and borrowing   20  968,700	 1,969,482	 -	 -			
      970,960 	 	1,970,995		 	351		 	351
current liabilities
Trade and other payables   21  283,927	 142,387	 1,514	 2,207
Amount due to related companies   22  1,457	 3,103	 516	 2,204	
Interest bearing loans and borrowings   20  1,598,970 	 	96,960		 -	 -
Income tax payable   23  108 53 17 53
Short-term	bank	borrowings	 	 	 	96,324 	 -				  -	 	-			
     1,980,786	 242,503	 2,047	 4,464		
total lIaBIlItIes     2,951,746	 	2,213,498		  2,398 	 	4,815
total eQUItY anD lIaBIlItIes    6,049,281		 	5,656,565		 3,729,854		 	3,597,008

The	above	Statement	of	Financial	Position	are	to	be	read	in	conjunction	with	Notes	to	the	Financial	Statements	on	pages		49	to	79	 
I	certify	that	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March,2017	are	in	compliance	with	the	requirements	of	the	Companies	Act	
No.07 of 2007.

D. G. P. ekanayake
Asst.	Vice	President-Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the Board

D.h.s. Jayawardena  J.M.s. Brito
Chairman  Director 

25 August 2017
Colombo. 
Sri	Lanka

stateMent oF chanGes In eQUItY

Group  ......... attributable to the equity holders of the Parent ..........

  stated General revaluation retained total non total
  capital reserve reserve earnings  controlling equity
       Interests 
  rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000

Balance as at 1st april 2015  2,383,449  10,000  840,807 316,220  3,550,476   _     3,550,476

Loss	for	the	year	 	 –				 	–				 	–				 	(104,577)	 	(104,577)	 	–				 	(104,577)

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 –				 	–				 	–				 	(332)	 	(332)	 	–				 	(332)	

total comprehensive income for the year    –      –      –     (104,909)	 	(104,909)	 	–				 	(104,909)	

Share	issue	expenses	 	 -	 -	 -	 (2,500)	 (2,500)	 -	 (2,500)

Balance as at 31st March 2016  2,383,449   10,000   840,807   208,811   3,443,067  –     3,443,067

Loss	for	the	year	 	 	–	 	–	 	–		 (483,000)	 	(483,000)	 –				 	(483,000)

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 	–  – 137,250  218		 	137,468		 	–				 	137,468

total comprehensive income for the year	 	 –				 	–				 	137,250		 	(482,782)	 	(345,532)	 	–				 	(345,532)

Balance as at 31st March 2017   2,383,449   10,000   978,057   (273,971)  3,097,535  –     3,097,535

company

   stated General revaluation retained total
   capital reserve reserve earnings equity
   rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000

Balance as at 01st april 2015   2,383,449  10,000  840,807  372,566   3,606,822 

Loss	for	the	year	 	 	 	–	 –			 –				 	(14,629)	 	(14,629)	

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 	–	

total comprehensive income for the year   –     –    –  (14,629)  (14,629) 

Balance as at 31st March 2016   2,383,449 10,000 840,807 357,937 3,592,193

       

Loss	for	the	year	 	 	 –			 	–				 	–				 	(1,987)	 	(1,987)	

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 	 –	 –	 137,250	 	–	 137,250

total comprehensive income for the year   –   –     137,250   (1,987)  135,263 

Balance as at 31st March 2017   2,383,449 10,000 978,057 355,950 3,727,456

The notes on pages 49 to 79 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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 Group company
as at 31st March     2017 2016 2017 2016
   note   rs.’000 Rs.’000 rs.’000 Rs.’000

assets
non-current assets
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 11  5,906,680 	 	5,635,284		 	993,767		 	856,980	
Investments in subsidiary  12  -				 	-				 	2,700,000		 	2,700,000
Deferred tax assets  13	 	 -	 -	 -	 -
     5,906,680 	 	5,635,284		 	3,693,767 	 	3,556,980
current assets
Inventories  14  22,429	 2,504	 -	 -			
Trade and other receivables  15  32,042	 -	 -	 -
Deposits and prepayments     14,392 	 5,642		 2,145 	 	2,206
Amounts due from related companies   16  31,614 	 	-				  33,550 	 	31,617	
Cash and cash equivalents  17  42,124	 13,135	 392	 6,205	
     142,601 	 21,281		 36,087 	 40,028
total assets    6,049,281 	 	5,656,565		 3,729,854	 3,597,008

eQUItY anD lIaBIlItIes
equity 
Stated capital  18  2,383,449	 2,383,449	 2,383,449	 2,383,449	
Revaluation reserve     978,057 	 840,807		 978,057		 	840,807	
General Reserve     10,000 	 	10,000		  10,000 	 	10,000	
Retained earnings      (273,971)	 	208,811		 	355,950		 	357,937
total equity attributable to equity holders of the company    3,097,535  3,443,067 3,727,456 3,592,193
non-current liabilities
Employee benefits   19  2,260	 1,513	 351 351
Interest bearing loans and borrowing   20  968,700	 1,969,482	 -	 -			
      970,960 	 	1,970,995		 	351		 	351
current liabilities
Trade and other payables   21  283,927	 142,387	 1,514	 2,207
Amount due to related companies   22  1,457	 3,103	 516	 2,204	
Interest bearing loans and borrowings   20  1,598,970 	 	96,960		 -	 -
Income tax payable   23  108 53 17 53
Short-term	bank	borrowings	 	 	 	96,324 	 -				  -	 	-			
     1,980,786	 242,503	 2,047	 4,464		
total lIaBIlItIes     2,951,746	 	2,213,498		  2,398 	 	4,815
total eQUItY anD lIaBIlItIes    6,049,281		 	5,656,565		 3,729,854		 	3,597,008

The	above	Statement	of	Financial	Position	are	to	be	read	in	conjunction	with	Notes	to	the	Financial	Statements	on	pages		49	to	79	 
I	certify	that	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March,2017	are	in	compliance	with	the	requirements	of	the	Companies	Act	
No.07 of 2007.

D. G. P. ekanayake
Asst.	Vice	President-Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the Board

D.h.s. Jayawardena  J.M.s. Brito
Chairman  Director 

25 August 2017
Colombo. 
Sri	Lanka

stateMent oF chanGes In eQUItY

Group  ......... attributable to the equity holders of the Parent ..........

  stated General revaluation retained total non total
  capital reserve reserve earnings  controlling equity
       Interests 
  rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000

Balance as at 1st april 2015  2,383,449  10,000  840,807 316,220  3,550,476   _     3,550,476

Loss	for	the	year	 	 –				 	–				 	–				 	(104,577)	 	(104,577)	 	–				 	(104,577)

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 –				 	–				 	–				 	(332)	 	(332)	 	–				 	(332)	

total comprehensive income for the year    –      –      –     (104,909)	 	(104,909)	 	–				 	(104,909)	

Share	issue	expenses	 	 -	 -	 -	 (2,500)	 (2,500)	 -	 (2,500)

Balance as at 31st March 2016  2,383,449   10,000   840,807   208,811   3,443,067  –     3,443,067

Loss	for	the	year	 	 	–	 	–	 	–		 (483,000)	 	(483,000)	 –				 	(483,000)

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 	–  – 137,250  218		 	137,468		 	–				 	137,468

total comprehensive income for the year	 	 –				 	–				 	137,250		 	(482,782)	 	(345,532)	 	–				 	(345,532)

Balance as at 31st March 2017   2,383,449   10,000   978,057   (273,971)  3,097,535  –     3,097,535

company

   stated General revaluation retained total
   capital reserve reserve earnings equity
   rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000

Balance as at 01st april 2015   2,383,449  10,000  840,807  372,566   3,606,822 

Loss	for	the	year	 	 	 	–	 –			 –				 	(14,629)	 	(14,629)	

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 	–	

total comprehensive income for the year   –     –    –  (14,629)  (14,629) 

Balance as at 31st March 2016   2,383,449 10,000 840,807 357,937 3,592,193

       

Loss	for	the	year	 	 	 –			 	–				 	–				 	(1,987)	 	(1,987)	

Other	comprehensive	income	 	 	 –	 –	 137,250	 	–	 137,250

total comprehensive income for the year   –   –     137,250   (1,987)  135,263 

Balance as at 31st March 2017   2,383,449 10,000 978,057 355,950 3,727,456

The notes on pages 49 to 79 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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 Group company
For the Year enDeD 31st March   2017 2016 2017 2016
   rs.’000 Rs.’000 rs.’000 Rs.’000

Profit/(loss) before taxation  (482,909)  (97,111)  (1,987)  (7,163) 
adjustments for,
Depreciation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 222,658 907 463 907 
Interest expense  285,804 - - -
Interest income  (499)	 (188)	 -	 (188)
Provision for retirement benefit obligations   965 	 333		 	-	 -

operating Profit / (loss) before working capital changes 26,019	 (96,059)	  (1,524)	 	(6,444)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories    (19,925)	 	(2,489)	 	-				 	15
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  (32,042)	 	4,438		 	-				 	4,438	
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments   (8,750)	 60,471		 61   (97)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from related companies  (31,614)	 	-				 	-				 	-			
Increase/(decrease) in  trade and other payables    141,540   7,355   (693)  199
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to related companies  (1,646)	 	1,110		  (1,688)	 	1,298
cash generated/(used) from operations  73,582	 	(25,174)	  (3,844)  (591) 

Interest expense paid  (285,804) - - -
Income taxes paid  (36)	 	(7,375)	 	(36)	 (7,375)
net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (212,258)	 	(32,549)	  (3,880)	 	(7,966)

cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property plant and equipment   (356,804) (1,369,999)	 -		 -
Investment	in	Subsidiary	 	 	-				 -				 -	 	(500,000)
Share	issue	expenses	 	 	-				 	(2,500)	 	-				 	-			
Settlement	by	Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd.	 	 -				 	-				  (1,933)	 	497,561	
Interest Income received  499		 200		 	-				 	200	
net cash used in investing activities   (356,305) 	(1,372,299)	  (1,933)	 	(2,239)

cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from interest bearing loans and borrowings   503,558	 1,401,442		 			-				 	-

Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings  (2,330) - - -

net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities  501,228		 1,401,442		 	-				 	-

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (67,335)	 (3,406)	 (5,813)	 	(10,205)

cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,135		 	16,541		  6,205 	 	16,410

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (54,200)	 	13,135		  392		 	6,205

analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

cash at bank and in hand    42,124 	 	13,135		  392 	 	6,205

Short term bank borrowings    (96,324)	 	-				 	-				 	-

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   (54,200) 	13,135		 	392 	 	6,205

The notes on pages  49 to 79 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents

1. accoUntInG PolIcIes

1.1 reporting entity

	 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC,	 (the	 “Company”)	
is	 a	 Public	 Limited	 Company	 incorporated	
and	domiciled	in	Sri	Lanka	and	listed	on	the	
Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered 
office	of	the	Company	is	located	at	No.	315,	
Vauxhall	Street,	Colombo	02.

 The consolidated financial statements of the 
Company as at and for the year ended 31st 
March 2017 comprise the Company and its 
Subsidiary.

1.1.1 Principal activity and nature of 
operations

 The principal activity of the company is 
hoteliering,	 which	 is	 carried	 out	 through	 its	
subsidiary	 company,	 and	 there	 has	been	no	
change in the nature of such activities during 
the year.

1.2 Basis of preparation

1.2.1 statement of compliance

 The Consolidated financial statements of the 
Group and the separated financial statements 
of the Company which comprise of the Income 
Statement,	 Statement	 of	 Profit	 or	 Loss	 and	
Other	 Comprehensive	 Income,	 Statement	 of	
Financial	 Position,	 Statement	 of	 Changes	 in	
Equity,	 Statement	 of	 Cash	 Flows	 and	 Notes	
thereto have been prepared in accordance with 
Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	(herein	referred	
to	as	SLFRSs/LKASs)	effective	from	1st	January	
2012,	 laid	down	by	 the	 Institute	of	Chartered	
Accountants	 of	 Sri	 Lanka	 (CA	 Sri	 Lanka)	 and	
in compliance with the requirement of the 
Companies	Act	No.	07	of	2007	and	Sri	Lanka	
Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No.15 
of	1995.	These	Financial	Statements,	except	for	
information on cash flows have been prepared 
following the accrual basis of accounting.

 The Group did not adopt any inappropriate 
accounting	treatment,	which	is	not	in	compliance	
with	the	requirements	of	the	SLFRSs	and	LKASs,	
regulations governing the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statements.

1.2.2 responsibility for financial statements

 The Board of Directors of the Company 
acknowledges their responsibility for the 
Financial	Statements,	as	set	out	in	the	“Annual	
Report	 of	 the	 Board	 of	Directors”,	 “Statement	
of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial 
Statements” and the “certification on the 
Statement of Financial Position”.

1.2.3 reporting date

 The financial statements of both companies in 
the Group are prepared for common financial 
year,	which	ends	on	31st	March.

1.2.4 approval of Financial statements

 The financial statements of the Group and the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 
were approved and authorised for issue by the 
Board of Directors on 25th August 2017.

1.2.5 Basis of measurement

 The financial statements of the Group and the 
Company have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis except for the following material items 
in the statement of financial position.

i.	 Land	 -	 Measured	 at	 cost	 at	 the	 time	 of	
acquisition and subsequently at revalued 
amounts	which	are	the	fair	-Note	11.2.

ii.	 Financial	assets	classified	as	available-for-
sale financial assets – Measured at fair 
value note 24.

iii.	Retirement	benefit	obligations	-	Measured	
at the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation note 19.

1.2.6 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Sri 
Lankan	Rupees,	which	is	the	Group’s	functional	
currency. All financial information presented has 
been rounded to the nearest thousand unless 
indicated otherwise.
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stateMent oF cash Flows

 Group company
For the Year enDeD 31st March   2017 2016 2017 2016
   rs.’000 Rs.’000 rs.’000 Rs.’000

Profit/(loss) before taxation  (482,909)  (97,111)  (1,987)  (7,163) 
adjustments for,
Depreciation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 222,658 907 463 907 
Interest expense  285,804 - - -
Interest income  (499)	 (188)	 -	 (188)
Provision for retirement benefit obligations   965 	 333		 	-	 -

operating Profit / (loss) before working capital changes 26,019	 (96,059)	  (1,524)	 	(6,444)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories    (19,925)	 	(2,489)	 	-				 	15
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  (32,042)	 	4,438		 	-				 	4,438	
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments   (8,750)	 60,471		 61   (97)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from related companies  (31,614)	 	-				 	-				 	-			
Increase/(decrease) in  trade and other payables    141,540   7,355   (693)  199
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to related companies  (1,646)	 	1,110		  (1,688)	 	1,298
cash generated/(used) from operations  73,582	 	(25,174)	  (3,844)  (591) 

Interest expense paid  (285,804) - - -
Income taxes paid  (36)	 	(7,375)	 	(36)	 (7,375)
net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (212,258)	 	(32,549)	  (3,880)	 	(7,966)

cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property plant and equipment   (356,804) (1,369,999)	 -		 -
Investment	in	Subsidiary	 	 	-				 -				 -	 	(500,000)
Share	issue	expenses	 	 	-				 	(2,500)	 	-				 	-			
Settlement	by	Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd.	 	 -				 	-				  (1,933)	 	497,561	
Interest Income received  499		 200		 	-				 	200	
net cash used in investing activities   (356,305) 	(1,372,299)	  (1,933)	 	(2,239)

cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from interest bearing loans and borrowings   503,558	 1,401,442		 			-				 	-

Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings  (2,330) - - -

net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities  501,228		 1,401,442		 	-				 	-

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (67,335)	 (3,406)	 (5,813)	 	(10,205)

cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,135		 	16,541		  6,205 	 	16,410

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (54,200)	 	13,135		  392		 	6,205

analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

cash at bank and in hand    42,124 	 	13,135		  392 	 	6,205

Short term bank borrowings    (96,324)	 	-				 	-				 	-

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   (54,200) 	13,135		 	392 	 	6,205

The notes on pages  49 to 79 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents

1. accoUntInG PolIcIes

1.1 reporting entity

	 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC,	 (the	 “Company”)	
is	 a	 Public	 Limited	 Company	 incorporated	
and	domiciled	in	Sri	Lanka	and	listed	on	the	
Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered 
office	of	the	Company	is	located	at	No.	315,	
Vauxhall	Street,	Colombo	02.

 The consolidated financial statements of the 
Company as at and for the year ended 31st 
March 2017 comprise the Company and its 
Subsidiary.

1.1.1 Principal activity and nature of 
operations

 The principal activity of the company is 
hoteliering,	 which	 is	 carried	 out	 through	 its	
subsidiary	 company,	 and	 there	 has	been	no	
change in the nature of such activities during 
the year.

1.2 Basis of preparation

1.2.1 statement of compliance

 The Consolidated financial statements of the 
Group and the separated financial statements 
of the Company which comprise of the Income 
Statement,	 Statement	 of	 Profit	 or	 Loss	 and	
Other	 Comprehensive	 Income,	 Statement	 of	
Financial	 Position,	 Statement	 of	 Changes	 in	
Equity,	 Statement	 of	 Cash	 Flows	 and	 Notes	
thereto have been prepared in accordance with 
Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards	(herein	referred	
to	as	SLFRSs/LKASs)	effective	from	1st	January	
2012,	 laid	down	by	 the	 Institute	of	Chartered	
Accountants	 of	 Sri	 Lanka	 (CA	 Sri	 Lanka)	 and	
in compliance with the requirement of the 
Companies	Act	No.	07	of	2007	and	Sri	Lanka	
Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No.15 
of	1995.	These	Financial	Statements,	except	for	
information on cash flows have been prepared 
following the accrual basis of accounting.

 The Group did not adopt any inappropriate 
accounting	treatment,	which	is	not	in	compliance	
with	the	requirements	of	the	SLFRSs	and	LKASs,	
regulations governing the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statements.

1.2.2 responsibility for financial statements

 The Board of Directors of the Company 
acknowledges their responsibility for the 
Financial	Statements,	as	set	out	in	the	“Annual	
Report	 of	 the	 Board	 of	Directors”,	 “Statement	
of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial 
Statements” and the “certification on the 
Statement of Financial Position”.

1.2.3 reporting date

 The financial statements of both companies in 
the Group are prepared for common financial 
year,	which	ends	on	31st	March.

1.2.4 approval of Financial statements

 The financial statements of the Group and the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 
were approved and authorised for issue by the 
Board of Directors on 25th August 2017.

1.2.5 Basis of measurement

 The financial statements of the Group and the 
Company have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis except for the following material items 
in the statement of financial position.

i.	 Land	 -	 Measured	 at	 cost	 at	 the	 time	 of	
acquisition and subsequently at revalued 
amounts	which	are	the	fair	-Note	11.2.

ii.	 Financial	assets	classified	as	available-for-
sale financial assets – Measured at fair 
value note 24.

iii.	Retirement	benefit	obligations	-	Measured	
at the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation note 19.

1.2.6 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Sri 
Lankan	Rupees,	which	is	the	Group’s	functional	
currency. All financial information presented has 
been rounded to the nearest thousand unless 
indicated otherwise.
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notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

1.2.7 Use of estimates and judgements

 The preparation of the financial statements of 
the Group and the Company in conformity with 
SLFRSs/LKASs	 requires	 management	 to	 make	
judgments,	 estimates	 and	 assumptions	 that	
affect the application of accounting policies 
and	 the	 reported	 values	 of	 assets,	 liabilities,	
income	and	expenses,	accompany	disclosures	
(including contingent liabilities). Those which 
management has assessed to have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements have been 
discussed in the individual notes of the related 
financial statement line items. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances,	 the	 results	 of	 which	 form	 the	
basis	of	making	a	judgment	about	the	carrying	
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future periods affected.

 The key assumptions concerning the future 
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at	 the	 reporting	 date,	 that	 have	 a	 significant	
risk	 of	 causing	 a	 material	 adjustment	 to	 the	
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the	 next	 financial	 year,	 are	 also	 described	 in	
the individual notes of the related financial 
statement line items below. The Group 
based its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the consolidated 
financial statements were prepared. Existing 
circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments,	 however,	 may	 change	 due	 to	
market changes or circumstances arising that 
are beyond the control of the Group. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when 
they occur.

1.2.8. Use of materiality and offsetting

 Materiality and aggregation

 Each material class of similar items is presented 
separately in the Financial Statements. Items 
of dissimilar nature or function are presented 
separately unless they are immaterial as 
permitted	by	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standard	-	
LKAS	1	on	‘Presentation	of	Financial	Statements’	
and	amendments	to	the	LKAS	1	on	‘Disclosure	
Initiative’	which	was	effective	from	January	01,	
2016.

 Notes to the Financial Statements are presented 
in a systematic manner which ensures the 
understandability and comparability of Financial 
Statements of the Group and the Company. 
Understandability of the Financial Statements 
is not compromised by obscuring material 
information with immaterial information or by 
aggregating material items that have different 
natures or functions.

 offsetting

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial	position,	only	when	 there	 is	a	 legally	
enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses 
are	not	offset	 in	 the	 income	statement,	unless	
required	or	permitted	by	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	
Standards and as specifically disclosed in the 
Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

1.2.9 Going concern

 The Directors have made an assessment of the 
Group’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern,	
and being satisfied that it has the resources 
to continue in business for the foreseeable 
future confirm that they do not intend either to 
liquidate or to cease operations of any business 
unit of the Group. The financial statements are 
prepared on the going concern basis.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

2. sUMMarY oF sIGnIFIcant 
accoUntInG PolIcIes

 The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented in 
the financial statement of the Group and the 
Company.

2.1 Basis of consolidation

 The group’s financial statements comprise 
consolidation of the financial statements of the 
company and its subsidiary prepared in terms 
of	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	standard	(SLFRS	-10)	-	
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

2.1.1 Business combinations

 Business combinations are accounted for using 
the acquisition method as at the acquisition 
date,	 which	 is	 the	 date	 on	 which	 control	 is	
transferred to the Group.

	 As	per	the	requirements	of	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	
Standard	 (SLFRS	 3)	 -	 Business	 Combinations.	
When	the	Group	acquires	a	business	it	assesses	
the financial assets and liabilities assumed under 
classifications or designations on the basis of 
the	 contractual	 terms,	 economic	 conditions,	
its operating or accounting policies and other 
pertinent conditions existing at the acquisition 
date,	 which	 is	 the	 date	 on	 which	 control	 is	
transferred to the Group. Control exists when the 
Company	has	 the	power,	 directly	 or	 indirectly	
to govern the financial and operating policies 
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.	In	assessing	control,	the	Group	takes	
into consideration potential voting rights that 
are	currently	exercisable,	and	other	contractual	
arrangements.

 The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition 
date as the fair value of the consideration 
transferred plus the recognised amount of any 
non-controlling	 interests	 in	 the	 acquire	 plus	 if	
the	 business	 combination	 achieved	 in	 stages,	
the	 fair	 value	 of	 the	 pre-existing	 interest	 in	
the acquiree less the net recognised amount 
(generally fair value) of the identifiable assets 
acquired	and	liabilities	assumed,	all	measured	
as	 of	 the	 acquisition	 date.	 Transaction	 costs,	
other than those associated with the issue of 

debt	or	equity	securities,	that	the	Group	incurs	
in connection with a business combination are 
expensed as incurred.

 Any contingent consideration payable is 
measured at fair value at the acquisition date. 
If the contingent consideration is classified as 
equity,	then	it	is	not	re-measured	and	settlement	
is	 accounted	 within	 equity.	 Otherwise,	
subsequent changes in the fair value of the 
contingent consideration are recognised in the 
income statement.

 The goodwill arising on acquisition of 
subsidiaries is presented as an intangible asset.

	 After	initial	recognition,	goodwill	is	measured	at	
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
For	the	purpose	of	impairment	testing,	goodwill	
acquired	 in	 a	 business	 combination	 is,	 from	
the	 acquisition	 date,	 allocated	 to	 each	 of	 the	
Group’s	cash-generating	units	that	are	expected	
to	benefit	from	the	combination,	irrespective	of	
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree 
are assigned to those units.

 If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of 
the	identifiable	assets,	liabilities	and	contingent	
liabilities of the entity acquired exceed the cost 
of	the	acquisition	of	the	entity,	the	surplus,	which	
is a gain on bargain purchase is recognised 
immediately in the consolidated income 
statement.

	 Where	goodwill	has	been	allocated	to	a	cash-
generating unit and part of the operation within 
that	unit	is	disposed	of,	the	goodwill	associated	
with the operation disposed of is included in 
the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal of 
the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this 
circumstance is measured based on the relative 
values of the operation disposed of and the 
portion of the cash generating unit retained.
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1.2.7 Use of estimates and judgements

 The preparation of the financial statements of 
the Group and the Company in conformity with 
SLFRSs/LKASs	 requires	 management	 to	 make	
judgments,	 estimates	 and	 assumptions	 that	
affect the application of accounting policies 
and	 the	 reported	 values	 of	 assets,	 liabilities,	
income	and	expenses,	accompany	disclosures	
(including contingent liabilities). Those which 
management has assessed to have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements have been 
discussed in the individual notes of the related 
financial statement line items. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances,	 the	 results	 of	 which	 form	 the	
basis	of	making	a	judgment	about	the	carrying	
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future periods affected.

 The key assumptions concerning the future 
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at	 the	 reporting	 date,	 that	 have	 a	 significant	
risk	 of	 causing	 a	 material	 adjustment	 to	 the	
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the	 next	 financial	 year,	 are	 also	 described	 in	
the individual notes of the related financial 
statement line items below. The Group 
based its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the consolidated 
financial statements were prepared. Existing 
circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments,	 however,	 may	 change	 due	 to	
market changes or circumstances arising that 
are beyond the control of the Group. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when 
they occur.

1.2.8. Use of materiality and offsetting

 Materiality and aggregation

 Each material class of similar items is presented 
separately in the Financial Statements. Items 
of dissimilar nature or function are presented 
separately unless they are immaterial as 
permitted	by	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standard	-	
LKAS	1	on	‘Presentation	of	Financial	Statements’	
and	amendments	to	the	LKAS	1	on	‘Disclosure	
Initiative’	which	was	effective	from	January	01,	
2016.

 Notes to the Financial Statements are presented 
in a systematic manner which ensures the 
understandability and comparability of Financial 
Statements of the Group and the Company. 
Understandability of the Financial Statements 
is not compromised by obscuring material 
information with immaterial information or by 
aggregating material items that have different 
natures or functions.

 offsetting

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial	position,	only	when	 there	 is	a	 legally	
enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses 
are	not	offset	 in	 the	 income	statement,	unless	
required	or	permitted	by	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	
Standards and as specifically disclosed in the 
Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

1.2.9 Going concern

 The Directors have made an assessment of the 
Group’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern,	
and being satisfied that it has the resources 
to continue in business for the foreseeable 
future confirm that they do not intend either to 
liquidate or to cease operations of any business 
unit of the Group. The financial statements are 
prepared on the going concern basis.
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2. sUMMarY oF sIGnIFIcant 
accoUntInG PolIcIes

 The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented in 
the financial statement of the Group and the 
Company.

2.1 Basis of consolidation

 The group’s financial statements comprise 
consolidation of the financial statements of the 
company and its subsidiary prepared in terms 
of	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	standard	(SLFRS	-10)	-	
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

2.1.1 Business combinations

 Business combinations are accounted for using 
the acquisition method as at the acquisition 
date,	 which	 is	 the	 date	 on	 which	 control	 is	
transferred to the Group.

	 As	per	the	requirements	of	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	
Standard	 (SLFRS	 3)	 -	 Business	 Combinations.	
When	the	Group	acquires	a	business	it	assesses	
the financial assets and liabilities assumed under 
classifications or designations on the basis of 
the	 contractual	 terms,	 economic	 conditions,	
its operating or accounting policies and other 
pertinent conditions existing at the acquisition 
date,	 which	 is	 the	 date	 on	 which	 control	 is	
transferred to the Group. Control exists when the 
Company	has	 the	power,	 directly	 or	 indirectly	
to govern the financial and operating policies 
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.	In	assessing	control,	the	Group	takes	
into consideration potential voting rights that 
are	currently	exercisable,	and	other	contractual	
arrangements.

 The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition 
date as the fair value of the consideration 
transferred plus the recognised amount of any 
non-controlling	 interests	 in	 the	 acquire	 plus	 if	
the	 business	 combination	 achieved	 in	 stages,	
the	 fair	 value	 of	 the	 pre-existing	 interest	 in	
the acquiree less the net recognised amount 
(generally fair value) of the identifiable assets 
acquired	and	liabilities	assumed,	all	measured	
as	 of	 the	 acquisition	 date.	 Transaction	 costs,	
other than those associated with the issue of 

debt	or	equity	securities,	that	the	Group	incurs	
in connection with a business combination are 
expensed as incurred.

 Any contingent consideration payable is 
measured at fair value at the acquisition date. 
If the contingent consideration is classified as 
equity,	then	it	is	not	re-measured	and	settlement	
is	 accounted	 within	 equity.	 Otherwise,	
subsequent changes in the fair value of the 
contingent consideration are recognised in the 
income statement.

 The goodwill arising on acquisition of 
subsidiaries is presented as an intangible asset.

	 After	initial	recognition,	goodwill	is	measured	at	
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
For	the	purpose	of	impairment	testing,	goodwill	
acquired	 in	 a	 business	 combination	 is,	 from	
the	 acquisition	 date,	 allocated	 to	 each	 of	 the	
Group’s	cash-generating	units	that	are	expected	
to	benefit	from	the	combination,	irrespective	of	
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree 
are assigned to those units.

 If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of 
the	identifiable	assets,	liabilities	and	contingent	
liabilities of the entity acquired exceed the cost 
of	the	acquisition	of	the	entity,	the	surplus,	which	
is a gain on bargain purchase is recognised 
immediately in the consolidated income 
statement.

	 Where	goodwill	has	been	allocated	to	a	cash-
generating unit and part of the operation within 
that	unit	is	disposed	of,	the	goodwill	associated	
with the operation disposed of is included in 
the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal of 
the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this 
circumstance is measured based on the relative 
values of the operation disposed of and the 
portion of the cash generating unit retained.
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2.1.2 subsidiary

 Subsidiary is the entity that is controlled by the 
Group. Control is achieved when the Group is 
exposed,	or	has	rights	to	variable	returns	from	its	
involvement with the investee and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee. The group controls an investee if and 
only	if,	the	Group	has

*	 Power	over	the	investee	(ie;	existing	rights	
that give it the current ability to direct the 
relevant activities of the investee)

* Exposure or rights to variable returns from 
its involvement with the investee

* The ability to use its power over the investee 
to affect the amount of the investor’s 
returns

	 When	 assessing	 control	 of	 an	 investee,	 an	
investor shall consider the purpose and design 
of the investee in order to identify the relevant 
activities,	 how	 decision	 about	 the	 relevant	
activities	are	made,	who	has	the	current	ability	
to direct those activities and who receives returns 
from those activities.

	 When	 an	 investee’s	 purpose	 and	 design	 are	
considered,	it	may	be	clear	that	an	investee	is	
controlled by means of equity instruments that 
give	the	holder	proportionate	voting	rights,	such	
as ordinary shares in the investee. In this case 
in the absence of any additional arrangements 
that	 alter	 decision	making,	 the	 assessment	 of	
control	 focuses	on	which	party,	 if	any,	 is	able	
to exercise voting rights sufficient to determine 
the investee’s operating and financing policies. 
The	investor	that	holds	a	majority	of	those	voting	
rights,	 in	 the	 absence	 of	 any	 other	 factors,	
controls the investee.

	 Therefore,	 Group	 considers	 all	 relevant	 facts	
and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee including:

* The contractual arrangement with the 
other vote holders of the investee

* Rights arising from other contractual 
arrangements

* The Group’s voting rights and potential 
voting rights

 The Group reassesses whether or not it controls 
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the 
above.

 Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when 
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary 
and ceases when the Group loses control of 
the	 subsidiary.	 Assets,	 liabilities,	 income	 and	
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date the Group 
gains control until the date the Group ceases to 
control the subsidiary.

2.1.3 transaction eliminated on consolidation

	 Intra-group	 balances	 and	 transactions,	 and	
any unrealised gains and losses or income and 
expenses	arising	from	intra-group	transactions,	
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. Unrealised gains arising 
from transactions with equity accounted 
investees are eliminated against the investment 
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the 
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 
same	way	as	unrealised	gains,	but	only	to	the	
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.2 Foreign currency

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 
to the functional currencies of Group entities 
at exchange rates at the dates of transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currency at the reporting date are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency 
gains or loss on monetary items is the difference 
between the amortised cost in the functional 
currency	at	the	beginning	of	the	period,	adjusted	
for effective interest and payments during the 
period,	and	amortised	cost	in	foreign	currency	
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the 
reporting period.

	 Non-monetary	assets	and	liabilities	in	a	foreign	
currency that are measured in terms of historical 
cost are translated using the exchange rate at 
the	 date	 of	 transaction.	 Non-monetary	 assets	
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
that	are	measured	at	fair	value	are	re-translated	
to reporting currency using the exchange rate 
that was prevailing on the date the fair value 
was determined. The resulting gains or losses 
on translations are dealt with in the income 
statement. 

 Foreign currency differences arising on 
retranslation are recognised in income 
statement,	 except	 for	 differences	 arising	 on	
the retranslation of available for sale equity 
investments which was recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Foreign currency gains 
and losses are reported on a net basis in the 
income statement.

2.3 Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
recognised when a Group Company becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

 The classification of financial instruments at 
initial recognition is dependent on their purpose 
and characteristics and the management’s 
intention in acquiring them.

 Financial instruments are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial 
assets or financial liabilities other than financial 
instruments recognised as fair value through 
profit	 and	 loss,	 are	 added	 to	 or	 deducted	
from the fair value of the financial instruments. 
Transaction	 costs,	 which	 are	 insignificant	 are	
expensed immediately to the income statement.

2.3.1 non-derivative financial assets

 Financial assets are classified as financial assets 
at	 fair	 value	 through	profit	 or	 loss,	 loans	and	
receivables,	 held-to-maturity	 financial	 assets	
and	available-for-sale	financial	assets

 The Group initially recognises loans and 
receivables and deposits on the date that they are 
originated. All other financial assets (including 
assets designated at fair value through profit 
or loss) are recognised initially on the trade 
date at which the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
The Group determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition.

 The Group derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset	expire,	or	it	transfers	the	rights	to	receive	
the contractual cash flows on the financial asset 
in a transaction in which substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred 
financial assets that is created or retained by 
the Group is recognised as a separate asset or 
liability.

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and 
the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial	 position	 when,	 and	 only	 when,	 the	
Group has a legal right to offset the amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis 
or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.
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2.1.2 subsidiary

 Subsidiary is the entity that is controlled by the 
Group. Control is achieved when the Group is 
exposed,	or	has	rights	to	variable	returns	from	its	
involvement with the investee and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee. The group controls an investee if and 
only	if,	the	Group	has

*	 Power	over	the	investee	(ie;	existing	rights	
that give it the current ability to direct the 
relevant activities of the investee)

* Exposure or rights to variable returns from 
its involvement with the investee

* The ability to use its power over the investee 
to affect the amount of the investor’s 
returns

	 When	 assessing	 control	 of	 an	 investee,	 an	
investor shall consider the purpose and design 
of the investee in order to identify the relevant 
activities,	 how	 decision	 about	 the	 relevant	
activities	are	made,	who	has	the	current	ability	
to direct those activities and who receives returns 
from those activities.

	 When	 an	 investee’s	 purpose	 and	 design	 are	
considered,	it	may	be	clear	that	an	investee	is	
controlled by means of equity instruments that 
give	the	holder	proportionate	voting	rights,	such	
as ordinary shares in the investee. In this case 
in the absence of any additional arrangements 
that	 alter	 decision	making,	 the	 assessment	 of	
control	 focuses	on	which	party,	 if	any,	 is	able	
to exercise voting rights sufficient to determine 
the investee’s operating and financing policies. 
The	investor	that	holds	a	majority	of	those	voting	
rights,	 in	 the	 absence	 of	 any	 other	 factors,	
controls the investee.

	 Therefore,	 Group	 considers	 all	 relevant	 facts	
and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee including:

* The contractual arrangement with the 
other vote holders of the investee

* Rights arising from other contractual 
arrangements

* The Group’s voting rights and potential 
voting rights

 The Group reassesses whether or not it controls 
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the 
above.

 Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when 
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary 
and ceases when the Group loses control of 
the	 subsidiary.	 Assets,	 liabilities,	 income	 and	
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date the Group 
gains control until the date the Group ceases to 
control the subsidiary.

2.1.3 transaction eliminated on consolidation

	 Intra-group	 balances	 and	 transactions,	 and	
any unrealised gains and losses or income and 
expenses	arising	from	intra-group	transactions,	
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. Unrealised gains arising 
from transactions with equity accounted 
investees are eliminated against the investment 
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the 
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 
same	way	as	unrealised	gains,	but	only	to	the	
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.2 Foreign currency

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 
to the functional currencies of Group entities 
at exchange rates at the dates of transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currency at the reporting date are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency 
gains or loss on monetary items is the difference 
between the amortised cost in the functional 
currency	at	the	beginning	of	the	period,	adjusted	
for effective interest and payments during the 
period,	and	amortised	cost	in	foreign	currency	
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the 
reporting period.

	 Non-monetary	assets	and	liabilities	in	a	foreign	
currency that are measured in terms of historical 
cost are translated using the exchange rate at 
the	 date	 of	 transaction.	 Non-monetary	 assets	
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
that	are	measured	at	fair	value	are	re-translated	
to reporting currency using the exchange rate 
that was prevailing on the date the fair value 
was determined. The resulting gains or losses 
on translations are dealt with in the income 
statement. 

 Foreign currency differences arising on 
retranslation are recognised in income 
statement,	 except	 for	 differences	 arising	 on	
the retranslation of available for sale equity 
investments which was recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Foreign currency gains 
and losses are reported on a net basis in the 
income statement.

2.3 Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
recognised when a Group Company becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

 The classification of financial instruments at 
initial recognition is dependent on their purpose 
and characteristics and the management’s 
intention in acquiring them.

 Financial instruments are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial 
assets or financial liabilities other than financial 
instruments recognised as fair value through 
profit	 and	 loss,	 are	 added	 to	 or	 deducted	
from the fair value of the financial instruments. 
Transaction	 costs,	 which	 are	 insignificant	 are	
expensed immediately to the income statement.

2.3.1 non-derivative financial assets

 Financial assets are classified as financial assets 
at	 fair	 value	 through	profit	 or	 loss,	 loans	and	
receivables,	 held-to-maturity	 financial	 assets	
and	available-for-sale	financial	assets

 The Group initially recognises loans and 
receivables and deposits on the date that they are 
originated. All other financial assets (including 
assets designated at fair value through profit 
or loss) are recognised initially on the trade 
date at which the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
The Group determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition.

 The Group derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset	expire,	or	it	transfers	the	rights	to	receive	
the contractual cash flows on the financial asset 
in a transaction in which substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred 
financial assets that is created or retained by 
the Group is recognised as a separate asset or 
liability.

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and 
the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial	 position	 when,	 and	 only	 when,	 the	
Group has a legal right to offset the amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis 
or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.
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	 The	Group	classifies	its	non-derivative	financial	
assets into following categories:

-	 Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	profit	
or loss

-	 Held-to-maturity

-	 Loans	and	receivables

-	 Available	for	sale	financial	assets

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

A financial asset is recognised at fair value through 
profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is 
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial 
assets are designated at fair value through profit or 
loss if the Group manages such investments and 
make purchases and sale decisions based on their fair 
value in accordance with the Group’s documented 
risk management or investment strategy. Upon initial 
recognition attributable transaction costs are recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value 
through	profit	or	loss	are	measured	at	fair	value,	and	
changes	therein,	which	takes	into	account	any	dividend	
income,	are	recognised	in	income	statement.

Attributable transaction costs of fair value through profit 
or loss financial assets are recognised in the income 
statement when incurred.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
comprise of its portfolio of investments in treasury bills 
and treasury bonds

The Group has not classified any financial assets as fair 
value through profit or loss as of the reporting date and 
during the reporting period.

held-to-maturity financial assets

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold 
debt	 securities	 to	 mature,	 then	 such	 financial	 assets	
are	 classified	 as	 held-to-maturity.	 Held-to-maturity	
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus 
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to	 initial	 recognition	 held-to-maturity	 financial	 assets	
are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest	method,	less	any	impairment	losses.	Any	sale	or	
reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of 
held-to-maturity	investment	not	closed	to	their	maturity	
would	 result	 in	 the	 reclassification	 of	 all	 held-to-

maturity	investments	as	available	for	sale,	and	prevent	
the Group from classifying investments securities as 
held-to-maturity	 for	 the	current	and	the	following	two	
financial years.

The Group has not classified any financial assets as 
held-to-maturity	of	 the	 reporting	date	and	during	 the	
reporting period.

loans and receivables

Loans	and	receivables	are	financial	assets	with	fixed	or	
determinable payments that are not quoted in active 
market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair 
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables 
are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method (EIR) less any impairment losses.

Loans	 and	 receivables	 comprise	 cash	 and	 cash	
equivalents,	trade	and	other	receivables.

available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non derivative 
financial assets that are designated as available for sale 
or are not classified in any of the previous categories. 
The Group investments in equity securities and certain 
debt securities are classified as available for sale 
financial assets. 

Available for sale financial assets are recognised initially 
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs.	 Subsequent	 to	 initial	 recognition,	 they	 are	
measured	at	fair	value	and	changes	therein,	other	than	
impairment losses and foreign currency differences 
on available for sale debt instruments are recognized 
in other comprehensive income and presented in the 
fair	 value	 reserve	 in	 equity.	 When	 an	 investment	 is	
derecognised the gain or loss accumulated in equity is 
reclassified to income statement.

The Group recognizes listed and unlisted equity 
investments that are not held for trading purposes as 
available for sale financial assets

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit 
or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether	there	is	objective	evidence	that	is	impaired.	A	
financial	asset	is	impaired	if,	there	is	objective	evidence	
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the financial asset (an incurred 

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

‘loss	event’)	and	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	of	the	
investment have been affected.

2.3.2. loan & receivables

	 The	 objective	 evidence	 of	 impairment	 could	
include significant financial difficulty of the 
issuer	or	counter	party,	breach	of	contract	such	
as	default	in	interest	or	principal	payments,	or	it	
becomes probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or financial reorganization

 The Group considers impairment of trade 
receivables at both a specific significant 
individual debtor level and collectively. Any 
Group company which has any individually 
significant debtors assesses them for specific 
impairment. All individually insignificant debtors 
that are not specifically impaired are then 
collectively assessed for any impairment that has 
been incurred but not yet identified by grouping 
together based on similar risk characteristics. In 
assessing	collective	impairment,	the	Group	uses	
historical	 trends	 of	 the	 probability	 of	 default,	
the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss 
incurred	 and	 adjusted	 for	 the	 management’s	
judgment.	 The	 carrying	 amount	 of	 the	 trade	
receivables is reduced through the use of the 
bad debt provision account and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in the income statement. 
If there is no realistic prospect of future recovery 
of	a	debt,	the	amount	is	written	off.

 An impairment loss in respect of other financial 
assets measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount 
and the present value of the estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar financial asset. 
When	a	 subsequent	event	 causes	 the	amount	
of	impairment	loss	to	decrease,	the	decrease	in	
impairment loss is reversed through the income 
statement to the extent that the carrying amount 
of the financial asset at the date the impairment 
is	reversed,	does	not	exceed	what	the	amortised	
cost would have been had the impairment not 
been recognized.

Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 
recognised in the income statement.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit 
or loss.

offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement 
of	financial	if,	and	only	if,	there	is	a	currently	enforceable	
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is	an	intention	to	settle	on	a	net	basis,	or	to	realise	the	
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

For	financial	instruments	not	traded	in	an	active	market,	
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation 
techniques. Such techniques may include using 
recent	 arm’s	 length	 market	 transactions;	 reference	
to the current fair value of another instrument that is 
substantially	the	same;	a	discounted	cash	flow	analysis	
or other valuation models. 

2.3.3 stated capital

 ordinary shares

	 Ordinary	 shares	 are	 classified	 as	 equity.	
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a 
deduction from equity.

2.4 assets and bases of their valuation

2.4.1. Property, plant and equipment

2.4.1.1 recognition and measurement

	 Items	 of	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment	 other	
than	land,	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	
depreciation and accumulated impairment 
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	 The	Group	classifies	its	non-derivative	financial	
assets into following categories:

-	 Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	profit	
or loss

-	 Held-to-maturity

-	 Loans	and	receivables

-	 Available	for	sale	financial	assets

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

A financial asset is recognised at fair value through 
profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is 
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial 
assets are designated at fair value through profit or 
loss if the Group manages such investments and 
make purchases and sale decisions based on their fair 
value in accordance with the Group’s documented 
risk management or investment strategy. Upon initial 
recognition attributable transaction costs are recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value 
through	profit	or	loss	are	measured	at	fair	value,	and	
changes	therein,	which	takes	into	account	any	dividend	
income,	are	recognised	in	income	statement.

Attributable transaction costs of fair value through profit 
or loss financial assets are recognised in the income 
statement when incurred.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
comprise of its portfolio of investments in treasury bills 
and treasury bonds

The Group has not classified any financial assets as fair 
value through profit or loss as of the reporting date and 
during the reporting period.

held-to-maturity financial assets

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold 
debt	 securities	 to	 mature,	 then	 such	 financial	 assets	
are	 classified	 as	 held-to-maturity.	 Held-to-maturity	
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus 
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to	 initial	 recognition	 held-to-maturity	 financial	 assets	
are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest	method,	less	any	impairment	losses.	Any	sale	or	
reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of 
held-to-maturity	investment	not	closed	to	their	maturity	
would	 result	 in	 the	 reclassification	 of	 all	 held-to-

maturity	investments	as	available	for	sale,	and	prevent	
the Group from classifying investments securities as 
held-to-maturity	 for	 the	current	and	the	following	two	
financial years.

The Group has not classified any financial assets as 
held-to-maturity	of	 the	 reporting	date	and	during	 the	
reporting period.

loans and receivables

Loans	and	receivables	are	financial	assets	with	fixed	or	
determinable payments that are not quoted in active 
market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair 
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables 
are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method (EIR) less any impairment losses.

Loans	 and	 receivables	 comprise	 cash	 and	 cash	
equivalents,	trade	and	other	receivables.

available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non derivative 
financial assets that are designated as available for sale 
or are not classified in any of the previous categories. 
The Group investments in equity securities and certain 
debt securities are classified as available for sale 
financial assets. 

Available for sale financial assets are recognised initially 
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs.	 Subsequent	 to	 initial	 recognition,	 they	 are	
measured	at	fair	value	and	changes	therein,	other	than	
impairment losses and foreign currency differences 
on available for sale debt instruments are recognized 
in other comprehensive income and presented in the 
fair	 value	 reserve	 in	 equity.	 When	 an	 investment	 is	
derecognised the gain or loss accumulated in equity is 
reclassified to income statement.

The Group recognizes listed and unlisted equity 
investments that are not held for trading purposes as 
available for sale financial assets

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit 
or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether	there	is	objective	evidence	that	is	impaired.	A	
financial	asset	is	impaired	if,	there	is	objective	evidence	
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the financial asset (an incurred 
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‘loss	event’)	and	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	of	the	
investment have been affected.

2.3.2. loan & receivables

	 The	 objective	 evidence	 of	 impairment	 could	
include significant financial difficulty of the 
issuer	or	counter	party,	breach	of	contract	such	
as	default	in	interest	or	principal	payments,	or	it	
becomes probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or financial reorganization

 The Group considers impairment of trade 
receivables at both a specific significant 
individual debtor level and collectively. Any 
Group company which has any individually 
significant debtors assesses them for specific 
impairment. All individually insignificant debtors 
that are not specifically impaired are then 
collectively assessed for any impairment that has 
been incurred but not yet identified by grouping 
together based on similar risk characteristics. In 
assessing	collective	impairment,	the	Group	uses	
historical	 trends	 of	 the	 probability	 of	 default,	
the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss 
incurred	 and	 adjusted	 for	 the	 management’s	
judgment.	 The	 carrying	 amount	 of	 the	 trade	
receivables is reduced through the use of the 
bad debt provision account and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in the income statement. 
If there is no realistic prospect of future recovery 
of	a	debt,	the	amount	is	written	off.

 An impairment loss in respect of other financial 
assets measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount 
and the present value of the estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar financial asset. 
When	a	 subsequent	event	 causes	 the	amount	
of	impairment	loss	to	decrease,	the	decrease	in	
impairment loss is reversed through the income 
statement to the extent that the carrying amount 
of the financial asset at the date the impairment 
is	reversed,	does	not	exceed	what	the	amortised	
cost would have been had the impairment not 
been recognized.

Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 
recognised in the income statement.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit 
or loss.

offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement 
of	financial	if,	and	only	if,	there	is	a	currently	enforceable	
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is	an	intention	to	settle	on	a	net	basis,	or	to	realise	the	
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

For	financial	instruments	not	traded	in	an	active	market,	
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation 
techniques. Such techniques may include using 
recent	 arm’s	 length	 market	 transactions;	 reference	
to the current fair value of another instrument that is 
substantially	the	same;	a	discounted	cash	flow	analysis	
or other valuation models. 

2.3.3 stated capital

 ordinary shares

	 Ordinary	 shares	 are	 classified	 as	 equity.	
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a 
deduction from equity.

2.4 assets and bases of their valuation

2.4.1. Property, plant and equipment

2.4.1.1 recognition and measurement

	 Items	 of	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment	 other	
than	land,	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	
depreciation and accumulated impairment 
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losses.	 The	 cost	 of	 property,	 plant	 and	
equipment comprises its purchase price and 
any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use. 
The cost of self constructed assets includes the 
cost	of	materials,	direct	 labour	and	any	other	
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset 
to working condition for its intended use. The 
cost includes costs dismantling and removing 
the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located and borrowing costs on qualifying 
assets.

 All items of property plant and equipment are 
recognized initially at cost.

 The Group recognised land owned in the 
statement of financial position at their revalued 
amount. Revaluations are performed with 
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount 
does not differ materially from that which would 
be determined using fair value at the end of 
reporting period. If the fair value of the land 
does not change other than by insignificant 
amount at reporting period.

 Any surplus arising on the revaluation is 
recognized in other comprehensive income 
except to the extent that the surplus reverses a 
previous revaluation deficit on the same asset 
recognized	 in	 income	 statement,	 in	 which	
case the credit to that extent is recognized in 
income statement. Any deficit on revaluation is 
recognized in income statement except to the 
extent that it reverses a previous revaluation 
surplus	 on	 the	 same	 asset,	 in	which	 case	 the	
debit to that extent is recognized in other 
comprehensive	 income.	Therefore,	 revaluation	
increases	and	decreases	cannot	be	offset,	even	
within a class of assets.

	 External,	 independent	qualified	 valuers	 having	
appropriate experience in valuing properties in 
locations	of	properties	being	valued,	value	the	
land owned by the Group based on market 
values,	this	is	the	price	that	would	be	received	
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date.

	 Upon	disposal,	any	related	revaluation	reserve	
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to 
accumulated profits and is not taken into account 
in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The 
details of land valuation are disclosed in note 
11.2 to the financial statements.

	 When	parts	of	an	 item	of	property,	plant	and	
equipment	have	different	useful	 lives,	 they	are	
accounted for as separate items of property 
plant and equipment and depreciated separately 
based on their useful life.

 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of 
property,	plant	and	equipment	are	determined	
by comparing the proceeds from disposal of 
with	the	carrying	amount	of	property,	plant	and	
equipment and are recognized net within other 
income in income statement.

2.4.1.2 subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing a component of an item of 
property,	plant	and	equipment	is	recognised	in	
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits embodied with 
the	item	will	flow	to	the	Group,	and	the	cost	of	
the item can be measured reliably. The costs of 
the	day-to-day	servicing	and	any	other	costs	are	
recognised in the income statement as incurred.

2.4.1.3 Depreciation

 Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset 
less its residual value. Significant components 
of individual assets are assessed and if a 
component has a useful life that is different from 
the	remainder	of	that	asset,	that	component	is	
depreciated separately.

 Depreciation is recognised in the income 
statement on a straight line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each component of 
an	 item	 of	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment.	
Depreciation is provided proportionately in the 
year of purchase and in the year of disposal of 
the asset. Depreciation of an asset begins when 
it is available for use and ceases at the earlier 
of the date that the asset is classified as held for 
sale or on the date that the asset is disposed. 
Leased	assets	are	depreciated	over	the	shorter	
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of the lease term and their useful lives unless 
it is reasonably certain that Group will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term.

 The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings	 08-50	years
Plant	&	Equipment	 10-20	years
Kitchen	Equipment	 05-15	years
Office	Equipment	 03-10	years
Sports	Equipment	 05-10	years	
Motor	Vehicles	 04-06	years	
Swimming	Pool	Equipment	 15-30	years	
Furniture	&	Fittings	 10-20	years	
Crockery,	Cutlery	&	Glassware	 03-05	years	
Soft	Furnishing	 05-10	years

 Depreciation is not provided on land and assets 
under construction.

	 The	 depreciation	 methods,	 useful	 lives	 and	
residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year	end	and	adjusted	if	appropriate.

2.4.2 leased assets

	 Leases	 in	 terms	 of	 which	 the	Group	 assumes	
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. The 
owner occupied property acquired by way of 
finance lease is stated at an amount equal to 
the lower of its fair value and the present value 
of the minimum lease payments at inception of 
the	 lease,	 less	 accumulated	 depreciation	 and	
impairment losses if any.

2.4.3 computer software

	 All	 computer	 software	 cost	 incurred,	 licensed	
for	use	by	 the	Group,	which	does	not	 form	a	
integral part of related hardware and which can 
be	clearly	identified,	reliably	measured	and	it	is	
probable that they will lead to future economic 
benefits are included under intangible assets and 
carried at cost less accumulated amortization 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

 subsequent measurement

 Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized 
only when it is probable that this expenditure will 
enable the asset to generate future economic 
benefits in excess of its originally assessed 
standards of performance and this expenditure 

can be measured and attributed to the asset 
reliably.

 amortisation

 Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the 
asset,	or	other	amount	substituted	for	cost,	less	
its residual value.

 Amortisation is recognized in the income 
statement on a straight line basis over the 
estimated	useful	lives	of	intangible	assets,	other	
than	 goodwill,	 from	 the	 date	 that	 they	 are	
available	for	use,	since	this	most	closely	reflects	
the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. 
The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are three years.

	 Amortisation	methods,	useful	lives	and	residual	
values are reviewed at each financial year end 
and	adjusted	if	appropriate

2.4.4 website costs

 Costs incurred on development of websites 
are capitalized when the entity is satisfied that 
the web site will generate probable economic 
benefits in the future. The estimated useful lives 
for the current and comparative periods are 
three years.

2.4.5 Investment properties

 Investment properties are land and buildings 
that are held either to earn rental income or for 
capital	appreciation	or	for	both,	but	not	for	sale	
in	 the	 ordinary	 course	 of	 business,	 use	 in	 the	
production or supply of goods and services or 
for administrative purposes. Investment property 
is measured at cost at initial recognition and 
subsequently at cost less aggregate depreciation. 
However,	if	there	is	impairment	in	value,	other	
than	of	a	temporary	nature,	the	carrying	amount	
is reduced to recognize the decline

2.4.6 Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost 
and net releasable value. The cost of inventories 
is based on a weighted average principle and 
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories and bringing them to their existing 
location and condition.



00 00

B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

losses.	 The	 cost	 of	 property,	 plant	 and	
equipment comprises its purchase price and 
any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use. 
The cost of self constructed assets includes the 
cost	of	materials,	direct	 labour	and	any	other	
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset 
to working condition for its intended use. The 
cost includes costs dismantling and removing 
the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located and borrowing costs on qualifying 
assets.

 All items of property plant and equipment are 
recognized initially at cost.

 The Group recognised land owned in the 
statement of financial position at their revalued 
amount. Revaluations are performed with 
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount 
does not differ materially from that which would 
be determined using fair value at the end of 
reporting period. If the fair value of the land 
does not change other than by insignificant 
amount at reporting period.

 Any surplus arising on the revaluation is 
recognized in other comprehensive income 
except to the extent that the surplus reverses a 
previous revaluation deficit on the same asset 
recognized	 in	 income	 statement,	 in	 which	
case the credit to that extent is recognized in 
income statement. Any deficit on revaluation is 
recognized in income statement except to the 
extent that it reverses a previous revaluation 
surplus	 on	 the	 same	 asset,	 in	which	 case	 the	
debit to that extent is recognized in other 
comprehensive	 income.	Therefore,	 revaluation	
increases	and	decreases	cannot	be	offset,	even	
within a class of assets.

	 External,	 independent	qualified	 valuers	 having	
appropriate experience in valuing properties in 
locations	of	properties	being	valued,	value	the	
land owned by the Group based on market 
values,	this	is	the	price	that	would	be	received	
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date.

	 Upon	disposal,	any	related	revaluation	reserve	
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to 
accumulated profits and is not taken into account 
in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The 
details of land valuation are disclosed in note 
11.2 to the financial statements.

	 When	parts	of	an	 item	of	property,	plant	and	
equipment	have	different	useful	 lives,	 they	are	
accounted for as separate items of property 
plant and equipment and depreciated separately 
based on their useful life.

 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of 
property,	plant	and	equipment	are	determined	
by comparing the proceeds from disposal of 
with	the	carrying	amount	of	property,	plant	and	
equipment and are recognized net within other 
income in income statement.

2.4.1.2 subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing a component of an item of 
property,	plant	and	equipment	is	recognised	in	
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits embodied with 
the	item	will	flow	to	the	Group,	and	the	cost	of	
the item can be measured reliably. The costs of 
the	day-to-day	servicing	and	any	other	costs	are	
recognised in the income statement as incurred.

2.4.1.3 Depreciation

 Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset 
less its residual value. Significant components 
of individual assets are assessed and if a 
component has a useful life that is different from 
the	remainder	of	that	asset,	that	component	is	
depreciated separately.

 Depreciation is recognised in the income 
statement on a straight line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each component of 
an	 item	 of	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment.	
Depreciation is provided proportionately in the 
year of purchase and in the year of disposal of 
the asset. Depreciation of an asset begins when 
it is available for use and ceases at the earlier 
of the date that the asset is classified as held for 
sale or on the date that the asset is disposed. 
Leased	assets	are	depreciated	over	the	shorter	
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of the lease term and their useful lives unless 
it is reasonably certain that Group will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term.

 The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings	 08-50	years
Plant	&	Equipment	 10-20	years
Kitchen	Equipment	 05-15	years
Office	Equipment	 03-10	years
Sports	Equipment	 05-10	years	
Motor	Vehicles	 04-06	years	
Swimming	Pool	Equipment	 15-30	years	
Furniture	&	Fittings	 10-20	years	
Crockery,	Cutlery	&	Glassware	 03-05	years	
Soft	Furnishing	 05-10	years

 Depreciation is not provided on land and assets 
under construction.

	 The	 depreciation	 methods,	 useful	 lives	 and	
residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year	end	and	adjusted	if	appropriate.

2.4.2 leased assets

	 Leases	 in	 terms	 of	 which	 the	Group	 assumes	
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. The 
owner occupied property acquired by way of 
finance lease is stated at an amount equal to 
the lower of its fair value and the present value 
of the minimum lease payments at inception of 
the	 lease,	 less	 accumulated	 depreciation	 and	
impairment losses if any.

2.4.3 computer software

	 All	 computer	 software	 cost	 incurred,	 licensed	
for	use	by	 the	Group,	which	does	not	 form	a	
integral part of related hardware and which can 
be	clearly	identified,	reliably	measured	and	it	is	
probable that they will lead to future economic 
benefits are included under intangible assets and 
carried at cost less accumulated amortization 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

 subsequent measurement

 Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized 
only when it is probable that this expenditure will 
enable the asset to generate future economic 
benefits in excess of its originally assessed 
standards of performance and this expenditure 

can be measured and attributed to the asset 
reliably.

 amortisation

 Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the 
asset,	or	other	amount	substituted	for	cost,	less	
its residual value.

 Amortisation is recognized in the income 
statement on a straight line basis over the 
estimated	useful	lives	of	intangible	assets,	other	
than	 goodwill,	 from	 the	 date	 that	 they	 are	
available	for	use,	since	this	most	closely	reflects	
the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. 
The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are three years.

	 Amortisation	methods,	useful	lives	and	residual	
values are reviewed at each financial year end 
and	adjusted	if	appropriate

2.4.4 website costs

 Costs incurred on development of websites 
are capitalized when the entity is satisfied that 
the web site will generate probable economic 
benefits in the future. The estimated useful lives 
for the current and comparative periods are 
three years.

2.4.5 Investment properties

 Investment properties are land and buildings 
that are held either to earn rental income or for 
capital	appreciation	or	for	both,	but	not	for	sale	
in	 the	 ordinary	 course	 of	 business,	 use	 in	 the	
production or supply of goods and services or 
for administrative purposes. Investment property 
is measured at cost at initial recognition and 
subsequently at cost less aggregate depreciation. 
However,	if	there	is	impairment	in	value,	other	
than	of	a	temporary	nature,	the	carrying	amount	
is reduced to recognize the decline

2.4.6 Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost 
and net releasable value. The cost of inventories 
is based on a weighted average principle and 
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories and bringing them to their existing 
location and condition.
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 Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price	 in	 the	 ordinary	 course	 of	 business,	 less	
the estimated costs of completion and selling 
expenses.

2.4.7 trade and other receivables

 Trade and other receivables are stated at the 
amounts estimated to be realised after providing 
for impairment on trade and other receivables.

	 Other	 receivables	 and	 dues	 from	 related	
parties	are	recognised	at	cost,	less	provision	for	
impairment.

2.4.8 cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in 
hand and short term deposits with original 
maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities. 
For purpose of Cash flow Bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral 
part of the Group’s cash management are 
included as components of cash and cash 
equivalent.

2.5 liabilities and Provisions

2.5.1 liabilities

	 Liabilities	 classified	as	 current	 liabilities	on	 the	
statement of financial position are those which 
fall due for payment on demand or within one 
year	 from	 the	 reporting	 date.	 Non-current	
liabilities are those balances payable after one 
year from the reporting date.

 All known liabilities are accounted for in the 
statement of financial position.

2.5.2 Provisions

	 A	 provision	 is	 recognised	 if,	 as	 a	 result	 of	 a	
past	 event,	 the	Group	 has	 a	 present	 legal	 or	
constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably,	 and	 it	 is	 probable	 that	 an	outflow	of	
economic benefit will be required to settle the 
obligation.

 Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected	 future	 cash	 flows	 at	 a	 pre-tax	 rate	
that reflect current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to 

the liability. The unwinding of discount is 
recognised as finance cost.

2.5.3 trade and other payables

 Trade payables are obligations to pay for 
goods or services that have been acquired in 
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. 
Accounts payable are classified as current 
liabilities if payment is due within one year or 
less.	 If	 not,	 they	are	presented	as	non-current	
liabilities. 

2.5.4 employee Benefits

2.5.4.1 Defined contribution Plan

	 A	defined	contribution	plan	is	a	post-employment	
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions to a separate entity and will have 
no legal or constructive obligations to pay 
further amounts. All employees of the Company 
are members of the Employees’ Provident Fund 
and	 Employees’	 Trust	 Fund,	 to	 which	 their	
employers contribute 12% and 3% respectively 
of such employees’ basic or consolidated wage 
or	salary,	cost	of	living	and	all	other	allowances.	
Obligations	for	contributions	to	defined	benefit	
plans,	EPF	&	ETF,	are	recognised	as	an	employee	
benefit expense in income statement in the 
periods during which services are rendered by 
employees.

2.5.4.2 Defined Benefit Plans - retiring 
gratuities

	 A	 defined	 benefit	 plan	 is	 a	 post-employment	
benefit plan other than a defined contribution 
plan. The liability recognised in the statement of 
financial position in respect of defined benefit 
plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the reporting date. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually using the 
Projected	Unit	Credit	method.	The	present	value	
of the defined benefit obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash flows 
using interest rates that are denominated in the 
currency	in	which	the	benefits	will	be	paid,	and	
that have terms of maturity approximating to the 
terms of the liability.

 Provision has been made in the financial 
statements for retiring gratuities from the first 
year of service for all employees. 

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

	 However,	according	to	the	Payment	of	Gratuity	
Act	No.	12	of	1983,	the	liability	for	payment	to	
an employee arises only after the completion of 
5 years continued service. 

 The liability is not externally funded.

 The Group recognises all actuarial gains and 
losses arising from defined benefit plans in other 
comprehensive income and all expenses related 
to defined benefit plans in staff costs in income 
statement.

2.5.4.3 short-term benefits

	 Short-term	 employee	 benefit	 obligations	 are	
measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A 
liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to	be	paid	under	short-term	cash	bonus	 if	 the	
Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past service rendered by the employee and the 
obligation can be measured reliably.

2.6 revenue

 Group revenue represents sales to customers 
outside the Group and excludes Value Added 
Tax. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured,	 regardless	 of	 when	 the	 payment	
is being received. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable,	net	of	trade	discounts,	Value	Added	
Taxes	and	intra-group	revenue.	No	revenue	is	
recognised if there are significant uncertainties 
regarding recovery of the consideration due.

 The following specific criteria are used for the 
purpose of recognition of revenue:

•	 Apartment	 revenue	 is	 recognised	 for	 the	
room	 occupied	 on	 a	 daily	 basis,	 whilst	
food and beverage sales are accounted 
for at the time of sale. All revenues are 
recognised on an accrual basis and 
matched with the related expenditure.

•	 Dividend	income	is	recognised	in	income	
statement when the right to receive 
dividends is established.

•	 Interest	income	is	recognised	as	it	accrues.	
Interest income is included under finance 
income in the income statement.

2.7 expenses

 All expenditure incurred in the running of the 
business	and	in	maintaining	the	property,	plant	
& equipment in a state of efficiency has been 
charged to income statement in arriving at the 
profit for the year.

2.8 Financing income/(expenses)

 Finance income comprises interest income 
on	 funds	 invested,	 including	 the	 income	 from	
investment categorized under available for sale 
financial assets.

 Gains on the disposal of interest generating 
investment classified under available for sale 
financial assets is recognised under finance 
income.

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues in 
income	 statement,	 using	 the	 effective	 interest	
method

 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on 
borrowings,	preference	dividends	of	preference	
shares classified as debt and impairment losses 
recognised on financial assets. Borrowing costs 
that	are	not	directly	attributable	to	the	acquisition,	
construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are recognised in income statement 
using	 the	 effective	 interest	 method.	 However,	
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the	acquisition,	construction	or	production	of	a	
qualifying asset that takes a substantial period of 
time	to	get	ready	for	its	intended	use	or	sale,	are	
capitalized as part of the asset.

 Foreign currency gains and losses are reported 
on a net basis.

2.9 Income tax expenses

 Income tax expense comprises both current and 
deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised 
in profit or loss except to the extent that it 
relates	 to	 items	 recognised	 directly	 in	 equity,	
in which case is recognised in equity or other 
comprehensive income or statement of changes 
in equity in which case it is recognised directly in 
the respective statements.

2.9.1 current taxes

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the 
taxable	 income	 for	 the	 year,	 using	 tax	 rates	
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting 
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 Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price	 in	 the	 ordinary	 course	 of	 business,	 less	
the estimated costs of completion and selling 
expenses.

2.4.7 trade and other receivables

 Trade and other receivables are stated at the 
amounts estimated to be realised after providing 
for impairment on trade and other receivables.

	 Other	 receivables	 and	 dues	 from	 related	
parties	are	recognised	at	cost,	less	provision	for	
impairment.

2.4.8 cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in 
hand and short term deposits with original 
maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities. 
For purpose of Cash flow Bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral 
part of the Group’s cash management are 
included as components of cash and cash 
equivalent.

2.5 liabilities and Provisions

2.5.1 liabilities

	 Liabilities	 classified	as	 current	 liabilities	on	 the	
statement of financial position are those which 
fall due for payment on demand or within one 
year	 from	 the	 reporting	 date.	 Non-current	
liabilities are those balances payable after one 
year from the reporting date.

 All known liabilities are accounted for in the 
statement of financial position.

2.5.2 Provisions

	 A	 provision	 is	 recognised	 if,	 as	 a	 result	 of	 a	
past	 event,	 the	Group	 has	 a	 present	 legal	 or	
constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably,	 and	 it	 is	 probable	 that	 an	outflow	of	
economic benefit will be required to settle the 
obligation.

 Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected	 future	 cash	 flows	 at	 a	 pre-tax	 rate	
that reflect current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to 

the liability. The unwinding of discount is 
recognised as finance cost.

2.5.3 trade and other payables

 Trade payables are obligations to pay for 
goods or services that have been acquired in 
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. 
Accounts payable are classified as current 
liabilities if payment is due within one year or 
less.	 If	 not,	 they	are	presented	as	non-current	
liabilities. 

2.5.4 employee Benefits

2.5.4.1 Defined contribution Plan

	 A	defined	contribution	plan	is	a	post-employment	
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions to a separate entity and will have 
no legal or constructive obligations to pay 
further amounts. All employees of the Company 
are members of the Employees’ Provident Fund 
and	 Employees’	 Trust	 Fund,	 to	 which	 their	
employers contribute 12% and 3% respectively 
of such employees’ basic or consolidated wage 
or	salary,	cost	of	living	and	all	other	allowances.	
Obligations	for	contributions	to	defined	benefit	
plans,	EPF	&	ETF,	are	recognised	as	an	employee	
benefit expense in income statement in the 
periods during which services are rendered by 
employees.

2.5.4.2 Defined Benefit Plans - retiring 
gratuities

	 A	 defined	 benefit	 plan	 is	 a	 post-employment	
benefit plan other than a defined contribution 
plan. The liability recognised in the statement of 
financial position in respect of defined benefit 
plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the reporting date. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually using the 
Projected	Unit	Credit	method.	The	present	value	
of the defined benefit obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash flows 
using interest rates that are denominated in the 
currency	in	which	the	benefits	will	be	paid,	and	
that have terms of maturity approximating to the 
terms of the liability.

 Provision has been made in the financial 
statements for retiring gratuities from the first 
year of service for all employees. 
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	 However,	according	to	the	Payment	of	Gratuity	
Act	No.	12	of	1983,	the	liability	for	payment	to	
an employee arises only after the completion of 
5 years continued service. 

 The liability is not externally funded.

 The Group recognises all actuarial gains and 
losses arising from defined benefit plans in other 
comprehensive income and all expenses related 
to defined benefit plans in staff costs in income 
statement.

2.5.4.3 short-term benefits

	 Short-term	 employee	 benefit	 obligations	 are	
measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A 
liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to	be	paid	under	short-term	cash	bonus	 if	 the	
Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past service rendered by the employee and the 
obligation can be measured reliably.

2.6 revenue

 Group revenue represents sales to customers 
outside the Group and excludes Value Added 
Tax. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured,	 regardless	 of	 when	 the	 payment	
is being received. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable,	net	of	trade	discounts,	Value	Added	
Taxes	and	intra-group	revenue.	No	revenue	is	
recognised if there are significant uncertainties 
regarding recovery of the consideration due.

 The following specific criteria are used for the 
purpose of recognition of revenue:

•	 Apartment	 revenue	 is	 recognised	 for	 the	
room	 occupied	 on	 a	 daily	 basis,	 whilst	
food and beverage sales are accounted 
for at the time of sale. All revenues are 
recognised on an accrual basis and 
matched with the related expenditure.

•	 Dividend	income	is	recognised	in	income	
statement when the right to receive 
dividends is established.

•	 Interest	income	is	recognised	as	it	accrues.	
Interest income is included under finance 
income in the income statement.

2.7 expenses

 All expenditure incurred in the running of the 
business	and	in	maintaining	the	property,	plant	
& equipment in a state of efficiency has been 
charged to income statement in arriving at the 
profit for the year.

2.8 Financing income/(expenses)

 Finance income comprises interest income 
on	 funds	 invested,	 including	 the	 income	 from	
investment categorized under available for sale 
financial assets.

 Gains on the disposal of interest generating 
investment classified under available for sale 
financial assets is recognised under finance 
income.

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues in 
income	 statement,	 using	 the	 effective	 interest	
method

 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on 
borrowings,	preference	dividends	of	preference	
shares classified as debt and impairment losses 
recognised on financial assets. Borrowing costs 
that	are	not	directly	attributable	to	the	acquisition,	
construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are recognised in income statement 
using	 the	 effective	 interest	 method.	 However,	
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the	acquisition,	construction	or	production	of	a	
qualifying asset that takes a substantial period of 
time	to	get	ready	for	its	intended	use	or	sale,	are	
capitalized as part of the asset.

 Foreign currency gains and losses are reported 
on a net basis.

2.9 Income tax expenses

 Income tax expense comprises both current and 
deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised 
in profit or loss except to the extent that it 
relates	 to	 items	 recognised	 directly	 in	 equity,	
in which case is recognised in equity or other 
comprehensive income or statement of changes 
in equity in which case it is recognised directly in 
the respective statements.

2.9.1 current taxes

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the 
taxable	 income	 for	 the	 year,	 using	 tax	 rates	
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting 
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date	 and	 any	 adjustment	 to	 tax	 payable	 in	
respect of previous years.

 Taxation for the current and previous periods to 
the extent unpaid is recognised as a liability in 
the	 financial	 statements.	When	 the	amount	of	
taxation already paid in respect of current and 
prior periods exceeds the amount due for those 
periods,	the	excess	is	recognised	as	an	asset	in	
the financial statements.

 Provision for current tax for companies has 
been computed in accordance with the Inland 
Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and section 17A 
of	BOI	Law	No.04	of	1978	amendments	thereto		

2.9.2 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of 
temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes.

 Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary 
differences arising on initial recognition of 
goodwill,	 the	 initial	 recognition	 of	 assets	 or	
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profits and differences relating to 
investment	in	subsidiaries	and	jointly	controlled	
entities to the extent that they probably will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences	 when	 they	 reverse,	 based	 on	 the	
laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax 
losses and deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can 
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised 
by individual companies within the Group are 
disclosed separately as assets and liabilities in 
the Group statement of financial position and 
are not offset against each other.

2.9.3 economic service charge (esc)

 As per the provisions of the Economic Service 
Charge	Act	No.	13	of	2006,	ESC	 is	payable	
on the liable turnover at specified rates. ESC 
is deductible from the income tax liability. Any 
unclaimed liability can be carried forward and 
set off against the income tax payable as per the 
relevant provisions in the Act.

2.10 statement cash flow

 The statement cash flow has been prepared 
using the “Indirect Method”.

2.11 capital commitments and contingencies

 Contingencies are possible assets or obligations 
that arise from a past event and would be 
confirmed only on the occurrence or non 
occurrence	 of	 uncertain	 future	 events,	 which	
are beyond the Group’s control. Capital 
commitments and contingent liabilities of the 
Company are disclosed in notes 28 and 30 to 
the financial statements.

2.12 events occurring after the reporting 
period

 All material post reporting date events have 
been considered and where appropriate 
adjustment	to	or	disclosures	have	been	made	in	
the financial statements.

2.13 earnings/(loss) per share (ePs)

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings/
(deficit) per share for its ordinary shares. Basic 
earnings/(deficit) per share is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by 
adjusting	the	profit	or	loss	attributable	to	ordinary	
shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of 
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.14 Determination of fair values

 A number of the Group’s accounting policies 
and disclosures require the determination of 
fair	values,	for	both	financial	and	non-financial	
assets and liabilities.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date.

	 When	measuring	fair	value	of	an	asset	or	liability,	
the Group uses observable market data as far 
as possible. Fair values are categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based 
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques.

	 -	Level	1	inputs	are	unadjusted	quoted	prices	in	
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

		 -	 Level	 2	 inputs	 are	 inputs	 other	 than	 quoted	
prices	included	within	Level	1	that	are	observable	
for the

 asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

	 -	Level	3	inputs	are	inputs	that	are	not	based	on	
observable market data (unobservable inputs).  

 If inputs used to measure the fair value of an 
asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value	hierarchy,	then	the	fair	value	measurement	
is categorised in its entirety in the same

 level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest 
level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement.

 Fair values have been determined for 
measurement and disclosure purposes based 
on	 the	 following	 methods.	 Where	 applicable	
further information about the assumptions made 
in determining fair value is disclosed in the notes 
specific to that asset or liability.

 Fair value of non-financial assets

 The fair value used by the Group in the 
measurement	 of	 non-financial	 assets	 is	 based	
on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either 
in	the	principal	market	for	the	asset	or	liability,	
or	in	the	absence	of	a	principal	market,	in	the	
most advantageous market that is accessible by 
the Group for the asset or liability.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants 

would act in their economic best interest when 
pricing the asset or liability.

 A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial 
asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling

 it to another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient

	 data	 are	 available	 to	 measure	 fair	 value,	
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.15 new accounting standards issued but 
not effective as at the reporting date

 The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka	has	issued	the	following	standards	which	
become effective for annual periods beginning 
after the current financial year. Accordingly these 
standards have not been applied in preparing 
theses financial statements and the Group 
plans to apply these standards on the respective 
effective dates. The Group is currently in the 
process of evaluating the potential effect of 
adoption of these standards and amendments 
on its financial statements. Such impact has not 
been quantified as at the balance sheet date. 
The Group will be adopting these standards as 
and when they become effective.

2.15.1 slFrs 9 - Financial Instruments -  
effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1st January 2018

	 The	 final	 version	 of	 SLFRS	 9	 Financial	
Instruments	 that	 replaces	 LKAS	 39	 Financial	
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and 
all	previous	versions	of	SLFRS	9.	SLFRS	9	brings	
together all three aspects of the accounting for 
the	 financial	 instruments	 project:	 classification	
and	 measurement;	 impairment;	 and	 hedge	
accounting.	 SLFRS	 9	 is	 effective	 for	 annual	
periods	beginning	on	or	after	1st	January	2018,	
with early application permitted. Except for 
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date	 and	 any	 adjustment	 to	 tax	 payable	 in	
respect of previous years.

 Taxation for the current and previous periods to 
the extent unpaid is recognised as a liability in 
the	 financial	 statements.	When	 the	amount	of	
taxation already paid in respect of current and 
prior periods exceeds the amount due for those 
periods,	the	excess	is	recognised	as	an	asset	in	
the financial statements.

 Provision for current tax for companies has 
been computed in accordance with the Inland 
Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and section 17A 
of	BOI	Law	No.04	of	1978	amendments	thereto		

2.9.2 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of 
temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes.

 Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary 
differences arising on initial recognition of 
goodwill,	 the	 initial	 recognition	 of	 assets	 or	
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profits and differences relating to 
investment	in	subsidiaries	and	jointly	controlled	
entities to the extent that they probably will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences	 when	 they	 reverse,	 based	 on	 the	
laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax 
losses and deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can 
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised 
by individual companies within the Group are 
disclosed separately as assets and liabilities in 
the Group statement of financial position and 
are not offset against each other.

2.9.3 economic service charge (esc)

 As per the provisions of the Economic Service 
Charge	Act	No.	13	of	2006,	ESC	 is	payable	
on the liable turnover at specified rates. ESC 
is deductible from the income tax liability. Any 
unclaimed liability can be carried forward and 
set off against the income tax payable as per the 
relevant provisions in the Act.

2.10 statement cash flow

 The statement cash flow has been prepared 
using the “Indirect Method”.

2.11 capital commitments and contingencies

 Contingencies are possible assets or obligations 
that arise from a past event and would be 
confirmed only on the occurrence or non 
occurrence	 of	 uncertain	 future	 events,	 which	
are beyond the Group’s control. Capital 
commitments and contingent liabilities of the 
Company are disclosed in notes 28 and 30 to 
the financial statements.

2.12 events occurring after the reporting 
period

 All material post reporting date events have 
been considered and where appropriate 
adjustment	to	or	disclosures	have	been	made	in	
the financial statements.

2.13 earnings/(loss) per share (ePs)

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings/
(deficit) per share for its ordinary shares. Basic 
earnings/(deficit) per share is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by 
adjusting	the	profit	or	loss	attributable	to	ordinary	
shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of 
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.14 Determination of fair values

 A number of the Group’s accounting policies 
and disclosures require the determination of 
fair	values,	for	both	financial	and	non-financial	
assets and liabilities.
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 Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date.

	 When	measuring	fair	value	of	an	asset	or	liability,	
the Group uses observable market data as far 
as possible. Fair values are categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based 
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques.

	 -	Level	1	inputs	are	unadjusted	quoted	prices	in	
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

		 -	 Level	 2	 inputs	 are	 inputs	 other	 than	 quoted	
prices	included	within	Level	1	that	are	observable	
for the

 asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

	 -	Level	3	inputs	are	inputs	that	are	not	based	on	
observable market data (unobservable inputs).  

 If inputs used to measure the fair value of an 
asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value	hierarchy,	then	the	fair	value	measurement	
is categorised in its entirety in the same

 level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest 
level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement.

 Fair values have been determined for 
measurement and disclosure purposes based 
on	 the	 following	 methods.	 Where	 applicable	
further information about the assumptions made 
in determining fair value is disclosed in the notes 
specific to that asset or liability.

 Fair value of non-financial assets

 The fair value used by the Group in the 
measurement	 of	 non-financial	 assets	 is	 based	
on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either 
in	the	principal	market	for	the	asset	or	liability,	
or	in	the	absence	of	a	principal	market,	in	the	
most advantageous market that is accessible by 
the Group for the asset or liability.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants 

would act in their economic best interest when 
pricing the asset or liability.

 A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial 
asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling

 it to another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient

	 data	 are	 available	 to	 measure	 fair	 value,	
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.15 new accounting standards issued but 
not effective as at the reporting date

 The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka	has	issued	the	following	standards	which	
become effective for annual periods beginning 
after the current financial year. Accordingly these 
standards have not been applied in preparing 
theses financial statements and the Group 
plans to apply these standards on the respective 
effective dates. The Group is currently in the 
process of evaluating the potential effect of 
adoption of these standards and amendments 
on its financial statements. Such impact has not 
been quantified as at the balance sheet date. 
The Group will be adopting these standards as 
and when they become effective.

2.15.1 slFrs 9 - Financial Instruments -  
effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1st January 2018

	 The	 final	 version	 of	 SLFRS	 9	 Financial	
Instruments	 that	 replaces	 LKAS	 39	 Financial	
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and 
all	previous	versions	of	SLFRS	9.	SLFRS	9	brings	
together all three aspects of the accounting for 
the	 financial	 instruments	 project:	 classification	
and	 measurement;	 impairment;	 and	 hedge	
accounting.	 SLFRS	 9	 is	 effective	 for	 annual	
periods	beginning	on	or	after	1st	January	2018,	
with early application permitted. Except for 
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hedge	 accounting,	 retrospective	 application	 is	
required,	but	providing	comparative	information	
is	 not	 compulsory.	 For	 hedge	 accounting,	
the requirements are generally applied 
prospectively,	with	some	limited	exceptions

 The Group plans to adopt the new standard on 
the	 required	 effective	 date.	 During	 2016/17,	
the	Group	has	performed	a	high-level	 impact	
assessment	of	all	three	aspects	of	SLFRS	9.	This	
preliminary assessment is based on currently 
available	 information	 and	 may	 be	 subject	 to	
changes arising from further detailed analyses 
or additional reasonable and supportable 
information being made available to the Group 
in	 the	 future.	 Overall,	 the	 Group	 expects	 no	
significant impact on its balance sheet and 
equity.

2.15.2  slFrs 15 - revenue from contracts 
with customers- effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1st 
January 2018

	 SLFRS	 15	 establishes	 a	 five-step	 model	 to	
account for revenue arising from contracts 
with	 customers.	 Under	 SLFRS	 15,	 revenue	
is recognised at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which an entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or 
services to a customer.

 The new revenue standard will supersede all 
current revenue recognition requirements under 
SLFRS.	Either	a	full	retrospective	application	or	
a modified retrospective application is required 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. 
The Group plans to adopt the new standard 
on the required effective date using the full 
retrospective	 method.	 During	 2016/17,	 the	
Group performed a preliminary assessment of 
SLFRS	15,	which	 is	 subject	 to	changes	arising	
from a more detailed ongoing analysis.

2.15.3 slFrs 16 - leases - effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1st of 
January 2019

	 SLFRS	 16	 replaces	 LKAS	 17	 Leases	 and	
related interpretations (IFRIC 4 Determining 
whether	 an	 arrangement	 contains	 a	 Lease,	
SIC-15	Operating	 Leases-Incentives	 and	 SIC-
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 

Involving	 the	 Legal	 Form	 of	 a	 Lease).	 SLFRS	
16	 sets	 out	 the	 principles	 for	 the	 recognition,	
measurement,	 presentation	 and	 disclosure	 of	
leases and requires lessees to account for all 
leases	under	a	single	on-balance	sheet	model	
similar to the accounting for finance leases under 
LKAS	17.	The	standard	includes	two	recognition	
exemptions	 for	 lessees	 -	 leases	 of	 ’low-value’	
assets	 (e.g.,	 personal	 computers)	 and	 short-
term	leases	(i.e.,	leases	with	a	lease	term	of	12	
months or less). At the commencement date 
of	a	lease,	a	lessee	will	recognise	a	liability	to	
make	 lease	 payments	 (i.e.,	 the	 lease	 liability)	
and an asset representing the right to use the 
underlying	asset	during	the	lease	term	(i.e.,	the	
right-of-use	 asset).	 Lessees	will	 be	 required	 to	
separately recognise the interest expense on the 
lease liability and the depreciation expense on 
the	right-of-use	asset.

	 Lessees	will	be	also	required	to	re-measure	the	
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain 
events	 (e.g.,	 a	 change	 in	 the	 lease	 term,	 a	
change in future lease payments resulting from 
a change in an index or rate used to determine 
those payments). The lessee will generally 
recognise	the	amount	of	the	re-measurement	of	
the	lease	liability	as	an	adjustment	to	the	right-
of-use	asset.

	 Lessor	accounting	under	SLFRS	16	is	substantially	
unchanged from the current requirements under 
LKAS	 17.	 Lessors	 will	 continue	 to	 classify	 all	
leases using the same classification principle as 
in	LKAS	17	and	distinguish	between	two	types	of	
leases: operating and finance leases.

 SLFRS	16	also	requires	lessees	and	lessors	to	
make more extensive disclosures than under 
LKAS	17.

	 SLFRS	 16	 is	 effective	 for	 annual	 periods	
beginning on or after 1st January 2019. Early 
application	is	permitted,	but	not	before	an	entity	
applies	SLFRS	15.	A	lessee	can	choose	to	apply	
the standard using either a full retrospective 
or a modified retrospective approach. The 
standard’s transition provisions permit certain 
reliefs.

	 In	 2017/18,	 the	 Group	 plans	 to	 assess	 the	
potential	effect	of	SLFRS	16	on	its	consolidated	
financial statements.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

3 reVenUe

 Group company 
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
 Apartment  326,267	 -	 -	 -
 Restaurant  176,501		 	-				 	-				 -
 Bar  39,058 	 -				 	-		 	-
 Banquets  43,375	 -	 	-	 -
	 Laundry	and	others	 	 8,660 	 -				 	-	 -
 total  593,861	 -	 -	 -

4 other  IncoMe
 Group company
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
	 Lease	land	rental	 	 -	 -	 4,905	 4,905
 Sundry income  481	 -	 	-	 -
 Net foreign exchange gain  1,741	 -	 -	 -
 total  2,222 - 4,905 4,905

5 staFF costs
 Group company
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
 Salaries and wages  86,358 49,261 635 3,663
 Defined	contribution	plan	cost	-	EPF	and	ETF  10,540 1,660 - -
 Defined	benefit	plan	cost	-	Retirement	benefit  965 333 - -
 Other	staff	related	expenses  37,177 5,998 94 544
 total  135,040 57,252 729 4,207

6 other oPeratInG eXPenses - DIrect
 Group company
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
 Apartment  19,654	 -	 -	 -
 Restaurant  97,017	 -	 -	 -
 Bar  12,986 	 -				 	-	 -
 Banquet  1,707	 -	 	-				 -
	 Laundry	&	other	costs	 	 618	 -	 -
 total  131,982 -  - -

7 other oPeratInG eXPenses - InDIrect
 Group company
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
 Administration and establishment  177,899	 38,932	 5,700	 7,142
 Repairs and maintenance expenses  10,955	 -	 -	 -
 Energy charges  102,119	 208	 -	 -
 total  290,973  39,140 5,700 7,142
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hedge	 accounting,	 retrospective	 application	 is	
required,	but	providing	comparative	information	
is	 not	 compulsory.	 For	 hedge	 accounting,	
the requirements are generally applied 
prospectively,	with	some	limited	exceptions
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the	 required	 effective	 date.	 During	 2016/17,	
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preliminary assessment is based on currently 
available	 information	 and	 may	 be	 subject	 to	
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or additional reasonable and supportable 
information being made available to the Group 
in	 the	 future.	 Overall,	 the	 Group	 expects	 no	
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periods beginning on or after 1st 
January 2018
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2.15.3 slFrs 16 - leases - effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1st of 
January 2019

	 SLFRS	 16	 replaces	 LKAS	 17	 Leases	 and	
related interpretations (IFRIC 4 Determining 
whether	 an	 arrangement	 contains	 a	 Lease,	
SIC-15	Operating	 Leases-Incentives	 and	 SIC-
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 

Involving	 the	 Legal	 Form	 of	 a	 Lease).	 SLFRS	
16	 sets	 out	 the	 principles	 for	 the	 recognition,	
measurement,	 presentation	 and	 disclosure	 of	
leases and requires lessees to account for all 
leases	under	a	single	on-balance	sheet	model	
similar to the accounting for finance leases under 
LKAS	17.	The	standard	includes	two	recognition	
exemptions	 for	 lessees	 -	 leases	 of	 ’low-value’	
assets	 (e.g.,	 personal	 computers)	 and	 short-
term	leases	(i.e.,	leases	with	a	lease	term	of	12	
months or less). At the commencement date 
of	a	lease,	a	lessee	will	recognise	a	liability	to	
make	 lease	 payments	 (i.e.,	 the	 lease	 liability)	
and an asset representing the right to use the 
underlying	asset	during	the	lease	term	(i.e.,	the	
right-of-use	 asset).	 Lessees	will	 be	 required	 to	
separately recognise the interest expense on the 
lease liability and the depreciation expense on 
the	right-of-use	asset.

	 Lessees	will	be	also	required	to	re-measure	the	
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain 
events	 (e.g.,	 a	 change	 in	 the	 lease	 term,	 a	
change in future lease payments resulting from 
a change in an index or rate used to determine 
those payments). The lessee will generally 
recognise	the	amount	of	the	re-measurement	of	
the	lease	liability	as	an	adjustment	to	the	right-
of-use	asset.

	 Lessor	accounting	under	SLFRS	16	is	substantially	
unchanged from the current requirements under 
LKAS	 17.	 Lessors	 will	 continue	 to	 classify	 all	
leases using the same classification principle as 
in	LKAS	17	and	distinguish	between	two	types	of	
leases: operating and finance leases.

 SLFRS	16	also	requires	lessees	and	lessors	to	
make more extensive disclosures than under 
LKAS	17.

	 SLFRS	 16	 is	 effective	 for	 annual	 periods	
beginning on or after 1st January 2019. Early 
application	is	permitted,	but	not	before	an	entity	
applies	SLFRS	15.	A	lessee	can	choose	to	apply	
the standard using either a full retrospective 
or a modified retrospective approach. The 
standard’s transition provisions permit certain 
reliefs.

	 In	 2017/18,	 the	 Group	 plans	 to	 assess	 the	
potential	effect	of	SLFRS	16	on	its	consolidated	
financial statements.
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8 ProFIt / (loss)  BeFore taXatIon     
Profit /(loss) before Taxation is stated after charging all expenses including the following:

 Group company
    2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
 auditors remuneration
  -	Audit  375 315 175 140
  -	Non	Audit  486  340  148 295
	 Legal	fees	 	 94 190 52 190
 Depreciation of property plant and equipment  222,658 907 463 907

 Non audit fee consist of tax consultancy fee and computation of self assessment and filling returns.

9 IncoMe taX eXPense

 Group company 
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 current tax
 Taxation on current year profit (Note 9.2)  91	 53	 -	 53

 Under provision in respect of previous year  -	 7,375	 -	 7,375

   91			 7,428		 	-	 7,428

 Deferred tax
	 Origination/(reversal)	of	temporary	difference	(Note	13)	 	 -	 38	 -	 38

 Income tax expenses recognised in
 income statement  91 7,466	 	-	 7,466

9.1 taxation on profits
 The	business	profit	and	income	of	the	company	arising	from	leasing	out	land,	is	liable	for	income	tax	at	standard	rate	

of 28% as per Inland Revenue Act 10 of 2006.
	 The	business	profits	of	Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd,	would	be	exempt	from	income	tax	under	section	17A	of	

Inland Revenue (amendment) Act No. 08 of 2012 for a period of 12 years from either the first year the company 
makes profits or not later than two years from the commencement of commercial operations.

9.2 reconciliation of the accounting profit /(loss) and to Income tax expense

   Group company 
    2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016

    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 
 reconciliation of the accounting profit/(loss) with taxable Profit
 Profit/(loss) before taxation   (482,909)	 (97,111)	  (1,987)	 	(7,163)
 Income not liable for taxation   (499)	 	-				  -   
 Aggregate disallowed expenses   239,123 	 	1,120		  463		 	1,120	
 Capital Allowances  (780,767)    (75) (53)    (75)
 Statutory income from business   (1,025,051)	 (96,066)	  (1,576)	 (6,118)
 Non business income   499   188   -     188 
 Tax loss utilised during the year   (175)	 	-				  -				 	-			
 Taxable Profit/(loss) for the year   (1,024,727)	 (95,878)	  (1,576)	 (5,930)
       
 Taxation @ 28%   91   53   -     53 
 Taxation on profit for the year   91   53   -     53 

  reconciliation of tax loss
 Tax loss brought forward   -				 	-		
 Tax loss for the period   1,025,051		 	-				  1,576	 	-			
 Tax loss utilised during the year   (175)	 	-				 	-				 	-			
 Tax loss carried forward   1,024,877	 	-				 	1,576	 	-	

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

10 earnInGs / (loss) Per share
 Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year attributable to the ordinary shareholders by 

weighted average member of shares outstanding during the year. There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares 
in	issue	at	any	time	during	the	year,	hence	diluted	earnings	per	share	is	equal	to	the	basic	earnings	per	share.

 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings / (deficit) per share computations.

   Group company 
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016 
 Net profit /(loss) attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the parent (Rs.)  (482,909,126)	 (104,577,349)	 (1,987,102)	 (14,629,185)
	 Weighted	average	number	of	ordinary 

shares in issue  129,600,000	 129,600,000	 129,600,000	 129,600,000
 earnings/(loss) per  share (rs.)  (3.73) (0.81) (0.02) (0.11)

 (Basic/diluted)

11 ProPertY, Plant anD eQUIPMent
11.1
Group   Plant       
   machinery Furniture  crockery, capital   
  Freehold and office and Motor cutlery work-in total total
 Buildings land equipment Fittings Vehicles  & linen Progress  31.03.2017 31.03.2016
 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000  rs.’000
cost/Valuation
Balance at the beginning of the year  - 856,500 927 72 4,905 - 4,778,304 5,640,708 4,258,075
Surplus	on	revaluation	 	-	 137,250	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	 137,250		 -
Additions	 	-		 	-				 	-			 	-		 -				 	-		 356,804	 356,804	 1,362,633
Transfer		 3,522,149	 	-				 1,185,701	 166,327	 	-				 98,468	 (4,972,645)	 -		 -
Balance at the end of the year 3,522,149  993,750   1,186,628  166,399  4,905   98,468  162,463   6,134,762 5,640,708
accumulated Depreciation        
Balance at the begin of the year  -  -  859  67 4,498  -  -  5,424  4,517
Charge	for	the	year	 116,942		 	-	 	71,545	 11,256	 407	 22,508	 	-		 222,658			 907
Balance at the end of the year 116,942 - 72,404 11,323  4,905 22,508 - 228,082 5,424
carrying value
as at 31.03.2017 3,405,207 993,750 1,114,224 155,076 - 75,960 162,463  5,906,680   
As	at	31.03.2016	 -				 856,500		 	68		 5		 407		 -				 	4,778,304		 		 5,635,284

company  Plant     
  machinery Furnitur 
 Freehold and office and Motor total total
 land equipment Fittings Vehicles  31.03.2017 31.03.2016
 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000   rs.’000
cost/Valuation
Balance at the beginning of the year 856,500 927 72 4,905  862,404  862,404
Surplus	on	revaluation	 			137,250		 -				 -				 -						 	137,250	 -
Additions	 		-	 	-				 	-				 	-									 	-				 -
Transfer		 -				 -				 	-				 	-					 	-					 -
Balance at the end of the year 993,750   927  72  4,905          999,654   862,404
accumulated Depreciation
Balance at the begin of the year  -     859  67   4,498        5,424  4,517
Charge	for	the	year	 		-				 52		 4		 407						 	463	 907
Balance at the end of the year -    911  71  4,905        5,887   5,424
Carrying Value      
as at 31.03.2017  993,750  16  1   -  993,767   
As	at	31.03.	2016	 856,500		 68		 5		 407							 		 856,980	
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8 ProFIt / (loss)  BeFore taXatIon     
Profit /(loss) before Taxation is stated after charging all expenses including the following:

 Group company
    2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
 auditors remuneration
  -	Audit  375 315 175 140
  -	Non	Audit  486  340  148 295
	 Legal	fees	 	 94 190 52 190
 Depreciation of property plant and equipment  222,658 907 463 907

 Non audit fee consist of tax consultancy fee and computation of self assessment and filling returns.

9 IncoMe taX eXPense

 Group company 
   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 current tax
 Taxation on current year profit (Note 9.2)  91	 53	 -	 53

 Under provision in respect of previous year  -	 7,375	 -	 7,375

   91			 7,428		 	-	 7,428

 Deferred tax
	 Origination/(reversal)	of	temporary	difference	(Note	13)	 	 -	 38	 -	 38

 Income tax expenses recognised in
 income statement  91 7,466	 	-	 7,466

9.1 taxation on profits
 The	business	profit	and	income	of	the	company	arising	from	leasing	out	land,	is	liable	for	income	tax	at	standard	rate	

of 28% as per Inland Revenue Act 10 of 2006.
	 The	business	profits	of	Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd,	would	be	exempt	from	income	tax	under	section	17A	of	

Inland Revenue (amendment) Act No. 08 of 2012 for a period of 12 years from either the first year the company 
makes profits or not later than two years from the commencement of commercial operations.

9.2 reconciliation of the accounting profit /(loss) and to Income tax expense

   Group company 
    2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016

    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 
 reconciliation of the accounting profit/(loss) with taxable Profit
 Profit/(loss) before taxation   (482,909)	 (97,111)	  (1,987)	 	(7,163)
 Income not liable for taxation   (499)	 	-				  -   
 Aggregate disallowed expenses   239,123 	 	1,120		  463		 	1,120	
 Capital Allowances  (780,767)    (75) (53)    (75)
 Statutory income from business   (1,025,051)	 (96,066)	  (1,576)	 (6,118)
 Non business income   499   188   -     188 
 Tax loss utilised during the year   (175)	 	-				  -				 	-			
 Taxable Profit/(loss) for the year   (1,024,727)	 (95,878)	  (1,576)	 (5,930)
       
 Taxation @ 28%   91   53   -     53 
 Taxation on profit for the year   91   53   -     53 

  reconciliation of tax loss
 Tax loss brought forward   -				 	-		
 Tax loss for the period   1,025,051		 	-				  1,576	 	-			
 Tax loss utilised during the year   (175)	 	-				 	-				 	-			
 Tax loss carried forward   1,024,877	 	-				 	1,576	 	-	
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10 earnInGs / (loss) Per share
 Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year attributable to the ordinary shareholders by 

weighted average member of shares outstanding during the year. There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares 
in	issue	at	any	time	during	the	year,	hence	diluted	earnings	per	share	is	equal	to	the	basic	earnings	per	share.

 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings / (deficit) per share computations.
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   2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016 
 Net profit /(loss) attributable to ordinary 
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	 Weighted	average	number	of	ordinary 
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	 The	gross	carrying	amount	of	fully	depreciated	property,	plant	and	equipment	that	is	still	in	use	for	the	Group	and	
Company	as	at	31st	March	2017	was	Rs.	589,902/-	(2016	-Rs.	589,902/-).

	 The	total	interest	cost	capitalised	to	date	under	property	plant	and	equipment	amounts	to	Rs.	113,236,213	/-

 Assets pledged as security against borrowings are disclosed in note 20.1.

	 Capital	work	in	progress	represents	the	amount	of	expenditure	recognised	under	property,	plant	and	equipment	
during the construction of capital assets.

11.2 revaluation details of land

11.2.1	Freehold	Land	at	No.175,	Lewis	Place,	Negombo	of	Browns	Beach	Hotel	PLC	was	revalued	by	Mr.K.C.B.Condegama,	
(A.I.V.	Sri	Lanka)	an	independent	professional	valuer	on	05th	December	2016	on	“	Market	Pricing	Basis”.

11.2.2 The carrying value of freehold land if they were carried at cost is as follows:

   last land carrying land carrying
 company location revalued extent value revaluation amount
   Date perches  surplus as cost as at 

    31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2017
     rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000

 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	 Lewis	Place,	 5/12/2016	 1027.73	 993,750	 978,057	 15,693	

  Negombo

11.2.3 The freehold and leasehold land of the Company was leased out to the subsidiary Company for the construction 
of the new Hotel. A lease agreement has been executed between the Companies for 99 years for an annual lease 
rent	of	Rs.	4,905,000/-.	The	lease	rent	shall	be	increased	by	50%	annually	every	five	years	for	the	first	20	years	
and remain unchanged subsequently.

11.3 leasehold land

11.3.1	A	part	of	the	land	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	has	been	acquired	on	a	30	year	lease	from	the	Government	of	Sri	
Lanka	until	the	year	2030.		(	Extent	216.7	perches	).	This	is	classified	as	an	operational	lease.

	 A	sum	of	LKR	2,160,000		has	been	charged	to	the	Income	statement	for	2016/17	on	account	of	annual	lease	rent	
for this property.

11.3.2 Unexpired lease period of leasehold land 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 
  13 Years 14 Years

11.3.3 lease commitments 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

	 Lease	Rental	payable	within	one	year	 2,160,000	 2,160,000

	 Lease	Rental	payable	within	one	to	five	years	 14,040,000	 12,960,000

	 Lease	Rental	payable	after	five	years	 30,780,000	 34,020,000

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

12 InVestMent In sUBsIDIarIes

 name of the subsidiary Principal activity  Group
    holding % 
 Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd	 Own	and	operate	Tourist	Resort	 	 	100

  2017 2016 
   no of shares rs no of shares rs

ordinary shares

Balance at beginning of the year  270,000,001 2,700,000,010	 220,000,001	 2,200,000,010	

Investment during the year   -     -     50,000,000	 500,000,000

Balance at end of the year  270,000,001 2,700,000,010 270,000,001	 2,700,000,010 

13 DeFerreD taX assets

 Group company 
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

	 Balance	as	at	the	beginning	of	the	year	 	 -	 	38	 -	 38
	 Origination/(reversal)	of	temporary	differences
	 transferred	from/(to)	Income	statement	(Note	9)	 	 -	 (38)	 -	 (38)
	 Balance	as	at	the	end	of	the	year	 	 	-	 	-	 -	 	-
 

13.1 Movement in tax effect of temporary differences

   2016 / 2017 2015 / 2016
 Group Balance as at recognised Balance as at Balance as at recognised Balance as at 
   01.04.2016  in Income 31.03.2017 01.04.2015  in Income 31.03.2016 
   statement   statement
  rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

Deferred tax asset
Tax effect on defined
	 benefit	obligations	 -	 -	 -	 40	 (40)	 -	  
	 	 -				 -				 -				 40		 (40)	 	-	  
Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and Equipment	 -				 	-				 -				 (2)	 2		 -	  
	 	 -				 -				 -				 (2)	 2		 -	
Net deferred  tax	assets/(liabilities)	 -				 -				 -				 38		 (38)	 -   

      
 2016 / 2017 2015 / 2016

 company Balance as at recognised   Balance as at  Balance as at recognised Balance as at 
  01.04.2016  in Income   31.03.2017  01.04.2015  in Income  31.03.2016 
    statement   statement
  rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

Deferred tax asset
Tax effect on defined
	 benefit	obligations	 	-				 -				 -				 40		 (40)	 	-        
	 	 -				 -				 -				 40		 (40)	 	-      
Deferred tax  liabilities
Property plant and Equipment	 -				 -				 -				 (2)	 2		 -        
	 	 -				 -				 -				 (2)	 2		 -     
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)	 -				 -				 -				 38		 (38)	 -
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   Date perches  surplus as cost as at 
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  Negombo

11.2.3 The freehold and leasehold land of the Company was leased out to the subsidiary Company for the construction 
of the new Hotel. A lease agreement has been executed between the Companies for 99 years for an annual lease 
rent	of	Rs.	4,905,000/-.	The	lease	rent	shall	be	increased	by	50%	annually	every	five	years	for	the	first	20	years	
and remain unchanged subsequently.
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11.3.1	A	part	of	the	land	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	has	been	acquired	on	a	30	year	lease	from	the	Government	of	Sri	
Lanka	until	the	year	2030.		(	Extent	216.7	perches	).	This	is	classified	as	an	operational	lease.

	 A	sum	of	LKR	2,160,000		has	been	charged	to	the	Income	statement	for	2016/17	on	account	of	annual	lease	rent	
for this property.

11.3.2 Unexpired lease period of leasehold land 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 
  13 Years 14 Years

11.3.3 lease commitments 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

	 Lease	Rental	payable	within	one	year	 2,160,000	 2,160,000

	 Lease	Rental	payable	within	one	to	five	years	 14,040,000	 12,960,000

	 Lease	Rental	payable	after	five	years	 30,780,000	 34,020,000
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13.2 A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in respect of tax losses carried forward and other temporary differences 
as it is currently not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Company can utilize the 
benefits thereon.

14 InVentorIes
 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Food  5,281   2,316   -    	-

 Beverage  8,384 - - -

 House Keeping & General  6,115 - - -

 Printing & Stationery  845 187 - -

 Gas & Fuel  1,804 -  - -

  total  22,429 2,504  - -

 There	 were	 no	 inventories	 pledged	 as	 security	 for	 bank	 facilities	 as	 at	 31st	March,	 2017.	 (as	 at	 31st	March 
2016 Nil)

15 traDe anD other receIVaBles 
 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 
15.1 Trade Debtors  32,042		 	-				 	-		 	-

     32,042	 -	 	-	 -

15.2	 No	loans	were	given	to	employees	over	and	above	Rs.	20,000/-	of	the	Company	/	Group.
15.3 No loans have been given to Directors of the Company / Group.

16 aMoUnt DUe FroM relateD coMPanIes
 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 Aitken	Spence	PLC  2,452 - - -

 Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Management	(Pvt)	Ltd.  16,566  	-    - -

 Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd  - - 33,550 31,617

 Amount due from other related companies  12,596 - - -

  total  31,614  	-	   33,550	 31,617

          

17 cash anD cash eQUIValents

 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 
 Cash at bank and in hand  42,124  13,135  392 6,205

 Short term bank borrowing  (96,324) -     -    -

 Cash and cash equivalents as in the statement of cash flows  (54,200) 13,135 392 6,205

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

18 stateD caPItal anD reserVes
 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 
18.1 stated capital
 Issued	and	fully	paid	Ordinary	Share	Capital

 At the beginning of the year  2,383,449  2,383,449 2,383,449  2,383,449 
 at the end of the year  2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449

 number of shares  129,600,000 129,600,000 129,600,000 129,600,000

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one 
vote per individual present at the meetings of shareholders or one vote per share in case of a poll.

18.2 revaluation reserve
 Revaluation reserve relates to the freehold land which has been revalued by the Group.

 General reserve
 The general reserve relates to the amount the group has reserved over the years from its earnings.

19 eMPloYee BeneFIts
19.1 Provision for retirement benefit obligations
 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  retirement Benefit obligations
 Present value of unfunded obligations  2,260 1,513 351 351 
 recognised liability for defined benefit obligations  2,260 1,513 351 351

19.2 Movement in present Value of the defined benefit obligations

 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year  1,513 848 351 351

 Recognised in the income statement  965 333  - -

 Recognised in other comprehensive income  (218) 332 - -	

 Defined benefit obligations at the end of the year  2,260 1,513 351 351

19.3 expenses recognised in comprehensive Income
 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 
 expenses recognised in the income statement
 Current service cost  838	 279	 -	 -

 Interest cost   127	 54	 -	 -

   965 	 	333		 	-				 	-

 expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
 Net actuarial (gains)/losses  (218)	 332	 -	 -

   747	 665	 -	 -
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as it is currently not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Company can utilize the 
benefits thereon.
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19.4 sensitivity analysis

  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key  assumptions employed with all other 
variables	held	constant	in	the	employment	benefit	liability	measurement,	in	respect	of	the	year	2016/17.

  The sensitivity of the comprehensive income statement and statement of financial position is the effect of the assumed changes 
in discount rate and salary increment rate on the profit or loss for the year and employment benefit obligations as at 
31st March 2017.

 effect on effect on retirement
 comprehensive income benefit liability
 (reduction)/increase (reduction)/increase
 rs. ’000 rs. ’000   
  Increase /(decrease) in discount rate
	 +1%	 188	 (188)
	 -1%	 (218)	 218
 Increase /(decrease) in salary escalation rate
	 +1%	 (232)	 232
	 -1	%	 201	 (201)

19.5 the principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the liability were:

	 (i)	 Discount	rate	of	12.5%	(2015/16	-11%)
	 (ii)	 Salary	increment	will	range	between	7.5%-11%	per	annum	(2015/16	-	7.5%	-	11%p.a.).
 (iii) Retirement age of 55 years.
 (iv) The Company will continue in business as a going concern.

19.6 The actuarial valuation was made on 31st March 2017.

19.7 The liability is not externally funded.

19.8	 The	actuarial	valuation	was	carried	out	by	professionally	qualified	actuaries,	Mr.	Poopalanathan	of	M/s	Actuarial	
Management	Consultants	(Pvt)	Ltd	using	projected	unit	credit	(PUC)	method.

20 Interest BearInG BorrowInGs.
20.1 analysed by lending Institution

 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 	 Lending	Institution

  Hatton	National	Bank	PLC  2,567,670 2,066,442 - -
    2,567,670 2,066,442 - -

  Borrowing terms 

  Facility - 1

	 	 Rs.1	Billion	Term	Loan	repayable	 in	120	monthly	 installments	commencing	March	2017	for	which	freehold	
land	and	building	of	the	Hotel	has	been	mortgaged.	The	interest	rate	is	linked	to	monthly	AWPLR.

  Facility - 2

	 	 Rs.1.568	Billion	Bridging	Loan	facility	to	be	settled	in	full	by	30th	September	2017	which	freehold	land	and	
building	of	the	hotel	has	been	mortgaged.	The	interest	rate	is	linked	to	monthly	AWPLR.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

20.2 Movement of Interest bearing borrowings
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Balance as at 01.04.2016  2,066,442 665,000 - -

 	Loan	Obtained	during	the	year  503,558 1,401,442 - -

  Capital repayments during the year  (2,330) - -    -	

  Balance as at 31.03.2017  2,567,670 2,066,442 - -

20.3 analysis by capital repayment period
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Payable with in one year  1,598,970 96,960	 -	 -

  Payable between one to five year  326,820 650,160	 -	 -

  Payable after five year  641,880 1,319,322	 -	 -

  total  2,567,670 2,066,442  -  -

21 traDe anD other PaYaBles

 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Trade Creditors   55,755 - - -
  Reservation advance received from customers  54,736 2,228  - -

  Retention payable  109,502 132,332  - -

 	Other	payable	and	accrued	expenses  63,934 7,827 1,514 2,207 
  total  283,927 142,387 1,514 2,207

22 aMoUnt DUe to relateD coMPanIes
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Managements	(Pvt)	Ltd.  516 1,699 516 1,699

  Aitken	Spence	PLC  - 1,404  - 505

  Amount due to other related companies  941 - - -
  total  1,457 3,103 516 2,204

23 IncoMe taX PaYaBle
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Balance as at beginning of the year  53 - 53 -
 Provision made during the year  91 7,428 - 7,428

    144  7,428 53 7,428

 Less:

  Income tax payment during the year   36 (7,325) 36 (7,325)

 Balance as at end of the year  108 53 17 53
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19.4 sensitivity analysis

  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key  assumptions employed with all other 
variables	held	constant	in	the	employment	benefit	liability	measurement,	in	respect	of	the	year	2016/17.

  The sensitivity of the comprehensive income statement and statement of financial position is the effect of the assumed changes 
in discount rate and salary increment rate on the profit or loss for the year and employment benefit obligations as at 
31st March 2017.

 effect on effect on retirement
 comprehensive income benefit liability
 (reduction)/increase (reduction)/increase
 rs. ’000 rs. ’000   
  Increase /(decrease) in discount rate
	 +1%	 188	 (188)
	 -1%	 (218)	 218
 Increase /(decrease) in salary escalation rate
	 +1%	 (232)	 232
	 -1	%	 201	 (201)

19.5 the principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the liability were:

	 (i)	 Discount	rate	of	12.5%	(2015/16	-11%)
	 (ii)	 Salary	increment	will	range	between	7.5%-11%	per	annum	(2015/16	-	7.5%	-	11%p.a.).
 (iii) Retirement age of 55 years.
 (iv) The Company will continue in business as a going concern.

19.6 The actuarial valuation was made on 31st March 2017.

19.7 The liability is not externally funded.

19.8	 The	actuarial	valuation	was	carried	out	by	professionally	qualified	actuaries,	Mr.	Poopalanathan	of	M/s	Actuarial	
Management	Consultants	(Pvt)	Ltd	using	projected	unit	credit	(PUC)	method.

20 Interest BearInG BorrowInGs.
20.1 analysed by lending Institution

 Group company
   31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
   rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 	 Lending	Institution

  Hatton	National	Bank	PLC  2,567,670 2,066,442 - -
    2,567,670 2,066,442 - -

  Borrowing terms 

  Facility - 1

	 	 Rs.1	Billion	Term	Loan	repayable	 in	120	monthly	 installments	commencing	March	2017	for	which	freehold	
land	and	building	of	the	Hotel	has	been	mortgaged.	The	interest	rate	is	linked	to	monthly	AWPLR.

  Facility - 2

	 	 Rs.1.568	Billion	Bridging	Loan	facility	to	be	settled	in	full	by	30th	September	2017	which	freehold	land	and	
building	of	the	hotel	has	been	mortgaged.	The	interest	rate	is	linked	to	monthly	AWPLR.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

20.2 Movement of Interest bearing borrowings
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Balance as at 01.04.2016  2,066,442 665,000 - -

 	Loan	Obtained	during	the	year  503,558 1,401,442 - -

  Capital repayments during the year  (2,330) - -    -	

  Balance as at 31.03.2017  2,567,670 2,066,442 - -

20.3 analysis by capital repayment period
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Payable with in one year  1,598,970 96,960	 -	 -

  Payable between one to five year  326,820 650,160	 -	 -

  Payable after five year  641,880 1,319,322	 -	 -

  total  2,567,670 2,066,442  -  -

21 traDe anD other PaYaBles

 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Trade Creditors   55,755 - - -
  Reservation advance received from customers  54,736 2,228  - -

  Retention payable  109,502 132,332  - -

 	Other	payable	and	accrued	expenses  63,934 7,827 1,514 2,207 
  total  283,927 142,387 1,514 2,207

22 aMoUnt DUe to relateD coMPanIes
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Managements	(Pvt)	Ltd.  516 1,699 516 1,699

  Aitken	Spence	PLC  - 1,404  - 505

  Amount due to other related companies  941 - - -
  total  1,457 3,103 516 2,204

23 IncoMe taX PaYaBle
 Group company
    31.03.2017  31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
    rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  Balance as at beginning of the year  53 - 53 -
 Provision made during the year  91 7,428 - 7,428

    144  7,428 53 7,428

 Less:

  Income tax payment during the year   36 (7,325) 36 (7,325)

 Balance as at end of the year  108 53 17 53
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24 FInancIal InstrUMents
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis at either fair value or amortised cost. The 

following	 table	analyses	 the	carrying	amount	of	 financial	assets	and	 liabilities	by	category	as	defined	 in	LKAS	39-	
Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement under headings reported in the statement of financial position.

24.1 FInancIal InstrUMents

  Group 2016/17
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000
 Financial assets
 Trade	and	other	receivables	 15	 -	 32,042	 -	 32,042	
	 Amount	due	from	related	parties	 16	 -	 31,614	 -	 31,614
	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 	-				 	42,124		 -	 	42,124	
	 Total	financial	assets	 -				 -	 105,780		 	-				 105,780
	 Total	non-current	 -				 -				 -				 -			
	 Total	current	 -				 -	 	105,780		 	-						105,780
	 	 	-				 -	 		105,780	 	-						105,780	
 Financial liabilities
	 Interest	bearing	borrowings		 20	 -	 -	 2,567,670			2,567,670	
	 Short-term	bank	borrowings	 -	 -	 -	 96,324		 	96,324	
	 Trade	and	Other	payables		 21	 -	 -	 283,927	 283,927
	 Amount	due	to	related	parties		 22	 -	 -	 1,457	 1,457
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 -				 	-				 -	 2,949,378	 2,949,378	
	 Total	non-current	 -	 -	 -	 968,700		 	968,700	
	 Total	current	 -	 -	 -	 1,980,678			1,980,678	
	 	 -				 -	 -	 2,949,378		 2,949,378

 FInancIal InstrUMents
  Group 2015/16
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000
 Financial assets  
	 Amount	due	from	related	parties	 16	 -	 -	 -	 -
	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 	-				 	13,135		 	-				 	13,135	
	 Total	financial	assets	 	-				 -	 13,135		 	-	 	13,135	
	 Total	non-current	 -				 -				 -				 -				 -
	 Total	current	 -				 	 13,135		 -				 13,135
	 	 -				 	 13,135		 	-	 	13,135	
 Financial liabilities      

Interest	bearing	borrowings	 20	 -				 -	 2,066,442	 2,066,442	
	 Other	payables		 21	 	-				 -				 142,387		 	142,387	
	 Amount	due	to	related	parties	 22	 -	 -	 3,103	 3,103
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 -	 -				 -				2,211,932		 2,211,932	
	 Total	non-current	 -	 -				 -				1,969,482		 1,969,482	
	 Total	current	 -	 -				 -				 242,450		 242,450	
	 	 -	 -				 -				2,211,932		 2,211,932

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

24.2 Financial Instruments

 company 2016/17
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

 Financial assets 
 Amount due from	related	parties	 16	 -	 33,550	 -	 33,550

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 	-				 	392		 	-				 	392

	 Total	financial	assets	 	-				 -	 33,942		 	-				 	33,942	

	 Total	non-current	 	-				 	-				 	-				 -	 	-			

	 Total	current	 	-				 -	 	33,942		 	-				 	33,942 

	 	 	-				 -	 33,942	 -				 	33,942 

 Financial liabilities
	 Other	payables	 21	 -	 -	 	1,514		 	1,514 

	 Amount	due	to	related	parties	 22	 -	 -	 516	 516
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 	-	 	-	 -	 2,030	 2,030

	 Total	non-current	 -				 	-				 -	 	-				 	-			

	 Total	current	 	-				 	-				 -	 2,030		 	2,030	

	 	 	-				 	-				 -	 	2,030		 	2,030

     
 company 2015/16
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000
 Financial assets  
 Amount due from related	parties	 16	 -	 31,617	 -	 31,617

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 -	 6,205	 -	 6,205

	 Total	financial	assets	 	-				 	-	 37,822		 	-		 37,822	

	 Total	non-current	 -	 -	 	-				 -	 -

	 Total	current	 		-	 -	 37,822		 -	 37,822 

	 	 -				 -	 37,822		 -	 37,822

 Financial liabilities
 Other	payables 	 21	 -	 -	 2,207		 2,207 
	 Amount	due	to	related	parties	 22	 -	 -	 2,204	 2,204
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 	-	 -				 	-				 	4,411		 	4,411 

	 Total	non-current	 	-	 -				 	-				 	-				 -	

	 Total	current	 	-	 -				 -	 4,411	 4,411 

	 	 -	 -				 -				 4,411	 4,411 
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24 FInancIal InstrUMents
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis at either fair value or amortised cost. The 

following	 table	analyses	 the	carrying	amount	of	 financial	assets	and	 liabilities	by	category	as	defined	 in	LKAS	39-	
Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement under headings reported in the statement of financial position.

24.1 FInancIal InstrUMents

  Group 2016/17
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000
 Financial assets
 Trade	and	other	receivables	 15	 -	 32,042	 -	 32,042	
	 Amount	due	from	related	parties	 16	 -	 31,614	 -	 31,614
	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 	-				 	42,124		 -	 	42,124	
	 Total	financial	assets	 -				 -	 105,780		 	-				 105,780
	 Total	non-current	 -				 -				 -				 -			
	 Total	current	 -				 -	 	105,780		 	-						105,780
	 	 	-				 -	 		105,780	 	-						105,780	
 Financial liabilities
	 Interest	bearing	borrowings		 20	 -	 -	 2,567,670			2,567,670	
	 Short-term	bank	borrowings	 -	 -	 -	 96,324		 	96,324	
	 Trade	and	Other	payables		 21	 -	 -	 283,927	 283,927
	 Amount	due	to	related	parties		 22	 -	 -	 1,457	 1,457
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 -				 	-				 -	 2,949,378	 2,949,378	
	 Total	non-current	 -	 -	 -	 968,700		 	968,700	
	 Total	current	 -	 -	 -	 1,980,678			1,980,678	
	 	 -				 -	 -	 2,949,378		 2,949,378

 FInancIal InstrUMents
  Group 2015/16
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000
 Financial assets  
	 Amount	due	from	related	parties	 16	 -	 -	 -	 -
	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 	-				 	13,135		 	-				 	13,135	
	 Total	financial	assets	 	-				 -	 13,135		 	-	 	13,135	
	 Total	non-current	 -				 -				 -				 -				 -
	 Total	current	 -				 	 13,135		 -				 13,135
	 	 -				 	 13,135		 	-	 	13,135	
 Financial liabilities      

Interest	bearing	borrowings	 20	 -				 -	 2,066,442	 2,066,442	
	 Other	payables		 21	 	-				 -				 142,387		 	142,387	
	 Amount	due	to	related	parties	 22	 -	 -	 3,103	 3,103
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 -	 -				 -				2,211,932		 2,211,932	
	 Total	non-current	 -	 -				 -				1,969,482		 1,969,482	
	 Total	current	 -	 -				 -				 242,450		 242,450	
	 	 -	 -				 -				2,211,932		 2,211,932
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24.2 Financial Instruments

 company 2016/17
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

 Financial assets 
 Amount due from	related	parties	 16	 -	 33,550	 -	 33,550

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 	-				 	392		 	-				 	392

	 Total	financial	assets	 	-				 -	 33,942		 	-				 	33,942	

	 Total	non-current	 	-				 	-				 	-				 -	 	-			

	 Total	current	 	-				 -	 	33,942		 	-				 	33,942 

	 	 	-				 -	 33,942	 -				 	33,942 

 Financial liabilities
	 Other	payables	 21	 -	 -	 	1,514		 	1,514 

	 Amount	due	to	related	parties	 22	 -	 -	 516	 516
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 	-	 	-	 -	 2,030	 2,030

	 Total	non-current	 -				 	-				 -	 	-				 	-			

	 Total	current	 	-				 	-				 -	 2,030		 	2,030	

	 	 	-				 	-				 -	 	2,030		 	2,030

     
 company 2015/16
  note Financial Financial Financial total
   assets assets liabilities 
   available loans other 
   for sale and Financial 
    receivables liabilities
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000
 Financial assets  
 Amount due from related	parties	 16	 -	 31,617	 -	 31,617

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		 17	 -	 6,205	 -	 6,205

	 Total	financial	assets	 	-				 	-	 37,822		 	-		 37,822	

	 Total	non-current	 -	 -	 	-				 -	 -

	 Total	current	 		-	 -	 37,822		 -	 37,822 

	 	 -				 -	 37,822		 -	 37,822

 Financial liabilities
 Other	payables 	 21	 -	 -	 2,207		 2,207 
	 Amount	due	to	related	parties	 22	 -	 -	 2,204	 2,204
	 Total	financial	liabilities	 	-	 -				 	-				 	4,411		 	4,411 

	 Total	non-current	 	-	 -				 	-				 	-				 -	

	 Total	current	 	-	 -				 -	 4,411	 4,411 

	 	 -	 -				 -				 4,411	 4,411 
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24.3 Fair values  

  The	fair	value	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities,	together	with	the	carrying	amounts	shown	in	the	statement	of	financial position as 

at the reporting dates are as follows:

 Group 2016/17 company 2016/17
   carrying Fair Value carrying Fair Value
   amount  amount 

   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

Financial assets
Trade	and	other	receivables	 	 	32,042		 	32,042		 	-				 	-			
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 42,124		 42,124		 392		 	392	
total financial assets		 	 74,166		 74,166		 392		 392
Financial liabilities
Interest	bearing	loans	and	borrowings		 	 2,663,994		 2,663,994		 	-				 	-			
Trade	and	other	payables		 	 283,927		 283,927		 1,514		 	1,514	
total financial liabilities	 	 2,947,924		 2,947,924		 1,514		 	1,514

 Group 2015/16 company 2015/16
   carrying Fair Value carrying Fair Value

   amount  amount 
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

Financial assets  
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 13,135	 13,135	 6,205	 6,205
total financial assets		 	 13,135		 13,135		 6,205		 6,205	
Financial liabilities     
Interest	bearing	loans	and	borrowings		 	 2,066,442		 2,066,442		 -				 -			
Other	payables		 	 142,387		 142,387		 2,207		 2,207	
total financial liabilities	 	 2,208,829		 2,208,829		 2,207		 2,207  

24.4 Determination of fair value hierarchy

 There were no financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation methods to include under different levels in fair value 
hierarchy.

	 The	Group’s	accounting	policies	and	disclosures	require	the	determination	of	fair	value,	for	both	financial	and	non-financial	
assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the following 
methods.

 Property plant and equipment
 The fair value of freehold land is determined based on market values. This is considered a level 3 valuation.

 The market value of land is the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between 
a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted 
knowledgeably and willingly. This involves evaluation of recent active market prices of similar assets making appropriate 
adjustments	for	difference	in	size,	nature	and	location	of	the	property.

 trade and other receivables
 Fair value of trade receivables is determined at amount estimated to be realised after making provision for impairment which is 

computed based on a loss rate using past three years debtors data.

 Fair value of other receivables are determined based on the amount estimated to be reasonably realised

 Financial liabilities
 Fair value of trade and other payable are determined based on the amount estimated to be reasonably incurred in the foreseeable 

future.
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25 FInancIal rIsK ManaGeMent

25.1 overview

 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

	 •		Credit	risk

	 •		Liquidity	risk

	 •		Market	risk

	 This	note	presents	 information	about	 the	Group’s	exposure	 to	each	of	 the	above	risks,	 the	Group’s	objectives,	policies	and	

processes	for	measuring	and	managing	risks,	and	the	Group’s	management	of	capital.

25.2 credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investments.

 credit risk exposure

 The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at the year end based on the carrying value of financial assets in the statement of 

financial position is given below.

   Group % company %
as at 31st March  2017 allocation 2017 allocation

   rs.’000  rs.’000 

Trade & other receivables  32,042 43%	 -	 -

Cash and cash equivalents  42,124  57% 392  100%

Total credit exposure  74,166  100% 392  100%

 cash and cash equivalents

 The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid instruments with reputed banking Institutions. The Group also 

uses broad investment portfolios and limit investments with a single counterparty.     
   

25.3 liquidity risk
 Liquidity	risk	is	the	risk	that	the	Group	will	encounter	difficulty	in	meeting	the	obligations	associated	with	its	financial	liabilities	

that	are	settled	by	delivering	cash	or	another	financial	assets.	The	Group’s	approach	to	managing	liquidity	is	to	ensure,	as	far	
as	possible,	that	it	will	always	have	sufficient	liquidity	to	meet	its	liabilities	when	due,	under	both	normal	and	stressed	conditions,	
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

 The group continuously prepare and monitors rolling cash flow forecasts and access the liquidity requirements to the subsidiary 
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. regular reviews are carried out to check actual performance against 
budgeted targets.

	 The	table	below	analyses	the	group’s	non-derivative	financial	liabilities	into	relevant	maturity	grouping	based	on	the	maturity	of	
liabilities as at the reporting date.
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24.3 Fair values  

  The	fair	value	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities,	together	with	the	carrying	amounts	shown	in	the	statement	of	financial position as 

at the reporting dates are as follows:

 Group 2016/17 company 2016/17
   carrying Fair Value carrying Fair Value
   amount  amount 

   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

Financial assets
Trade	and	other	receivables	 	 	32,042		 	32,042		 	-				 	-			
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 42,124		 42,124		 392		 	392	
total financial assets		 	 74,166		 74,166		 392		 392
Financial liabilities
Interest	bearing	loans	and	borrowings		 	 2,663,994		 2,663,994		 	-				 	-			
Trade	and	other	payables		 	 283,927		 283,927		 1,514		 	1,514	
total financial liabilities	 	 2,947,924		 2,947,924		 1,514		 	1,514

 Group 2015/16 company 2015/16
   carrying Fair Value carrying Fair Value

   amount  amount 
   rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

Financial assets  
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 13,135	 13,135	 6,205	 6,205
total financial assets		 	 13,135		 13,135		 6,205		 6,205	
Financial liabilities     
Interest	bearing	loans	and	borrowings		 	 2,066,442		 2,066,442		 -				 -			
Other	payables		 	 142,387		 142,387		 2,207		 2,207	
total financial liabilities	 	 2,208,829		 2,208,829		 2,207		 2,207  

24.4 Determination of fair value hierarchy

 There were no financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation methods to include under different levels in fair value 
hierarchy.

	 The	Group’s	accounting	policies	and	disclosures	require	the	determination	of	fair	value,	for	both	financial	and	non-financial	
assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the following 
methods.

 Property plant and equipment
 The fair value of freehold land is determined based on market values. This is considered a level 3 valuation.

 The market value of land is the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between 
a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted 
knowledgeably and willingly. This involves evaluation of recent active market prices of similar assets making appropriate 
adjustments	for	difference	in	size,	nature	and	location	of	the	property.

 trade and other receivables
 Fair value of trade receivables is determined at amount estimated to be realised after making provision for impairment which is 

computed based on a loss rate using past three years debtors data.

 Fair value of other receivables are determined based on the amount estimated to be reasonably realised

 Financial liabilities
 Fair value of trade and other payable are determined based on the amount estimated to be reasonably incurred in the foreseeable 

future.
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25 FInancIal rIsK ManaGeMent

25.1 overview

 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

	 •		Credit	risk

	 •		Liquidity	risk

	 •		Market	risk

	 This	note	presents	 information	about	 the	Group’s	exposure	 to	each	of	 the	above	risks,	 the	Group’s	objectives,	policies	and	

processes	for	measuring	and	managing	risks,	and	the	Group’s	management	of	capital.

25.2 credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investments.

 credit risk exposure

 The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at the year end based on the carrying value of financial assets in the statement of 

financial position is given below.

   Group % company %
as at 31st March  2017 allocation 2017 allocation

   rs.’000  rs.’000 

Trade & other receivables  32,042 43%	 -	 -

Cash and cash equivalents  42,124  57% 392  100%

Total credit exposure  74,166  100% 392  100%

 cash and cash equivalents

 The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid instruments with reputed banking Institutions. The Group also 

uses broad investment portfolios and limit investments with a single counterparty.     
   

25.3 liquidity risk
 Liquidity	risk	is	the	risk	that	the	Group	will	encounter	difficulty	in	meeting	the	obligations	associated	with	its	financial	liabilities	

that	are	settled	by	delivering	cash	or	another	financial	assets.	The	Group’s	approach	to	managing	liquidity	is	to	ensure,	as	far	
as	possible,	that	it	will	always	have	sufficient	liquidity	to	meet	its	liabilities	when	due,	under	both	normal	and	stressed	conditions,	
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

 The group continuously prepare and monitors rolling cash flow forecasts and access the liquidity requirements to the subsidiary 
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. regular reviews are carried out to check actual performance against 
budgeted targets.

	 The	table	below	analyses	the	group’s	non-derivative	financial	liabilities	into	relevant	maturity	grouping	based	on	the	maturity	of	
liabilities as at the reporting date.
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 as at 31st March 2017 Group
   carrying current non-current Payable
   amount   on demand
   rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000
 Financial liabilities
 Interest	bearing	loans	and	borrowings	 	 2,567,670	 1,598,970	 968,700	 -

	 Short-term	bank	borrowings	 	 96,324	 -		 	-	 96,324

	 Other	provisions	and	payables	 	 283,927	 283,927	 -	 -

 total	 	2,947,921	1,882,897	 	968,700	 96,324 

 
 as at 31st March 2017 company
   carrying current non-current Payable
   amount   on demand
   rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000
 Financial liabilities

 Other	provisions	and	payables	 	 1,514	 1,514	 -	 -		

 total  1,514 1,514 - -   

  “Current” represents financial liabilities which are due to mature within one year.

25.4 Market risk
	 Market	risk	is	the	risk	that	changes	in	market	prices,	such	as	foreign	exchange	rates,	interest	rates	and	equity	prices	that	will	affect	

the	Group’s	income	or	the	value	of	its	holdings	of	financial	instruments.	The	objective	of	market	risk	management	is	to	manage	and	
control	market	risk	exposure	within	acceptable	parameters,	while	optimising	the	return.

25.5 equity prices
	 The	Group	does	not	carry	quoted/non	quoted	investments	in	their	consolidated	statement	of	Financial	Position,	and	there	is	no	risk	

to changes in equity prices.

25.6 Foreign exchange risk
 The Group has no risk related to foreign currency fluctuations as there are no financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currency as at the reporting date.

	 The	group’s	certain	room	contracts	are	entered	into	foreign	currencies	and	invoiced	in	LKR	using	conversion	rate	established	by	
industry. purchases such as imports of capital goods for hotel operations are also transacted in foreign currency.

25.7 Interest rate risks
 Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation of the value or cash flows of an instrument due to changes in the market interest rates.

	 The	Group	has	borrowings	interest	rate	AWPLR	would	expose	the	Group	to	cash	flow/profits	as	the	amount	of	interest	paid	would	
be changed depending on market interest rates.

  Constant monitoring of market interest rates is carried out to ensure appropriate steps are taken to maximise the return on financial 
management and to minimise the cost of borrowings. Group very strongly negotiate with banks and obtains best possible interest 
rates for the Group’s borrowings. listed below are steps adopted by the group to minimise the effect of interest rate risks:

 1. Entering into loans with interest rate caps and fixed rates.

 2. Re negotiating with banks on interest rates when ever there is favorable fluctuations in the market rates.

26 caPItal ManaGeMent
	 The	Groups	objectives	when	managing	capital	are	to	safeguard	the	group’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern	in	order	to	

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
the capital The capital of the company consists ordinary share capital and long term borrowing    
	The	following	factors	are	also	objectively	taken	into	consideration	in	managing	the	capital	of	the	group.

 1. Maintain sufficient capital to meet minimum regulatory requirements. (Companies Act).

 2. Maintain strong equity base as opposed to debt capital.

	 3.	 Group’s	future	developments,	investments	and	business	strategies.

	 4.	 Group	cash	flow	projections	and	ability	to	pay	higher	returns	to	shareholders.
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notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

 as at 31st March 2017 Group
   carrying current non-current Payable
   amount   on demand
   rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000
 Financial liabilities
 Interest	bearing	loans	and	borrowings	 	 2,567,670	 1,598,970	 968,700	 -

	 Short-term	bank	borrowings	 	 96,324	 -		 	-	 96,324

	 Other	provisions	and	payables	 	 283,927	 283,927	 -	 -

 total	 	2,947,921	1,882,897	 	968,700	 96,324 

 
 as at 31st March 2017 company
   carrying current non-current Payable
   amount   on demand
   rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000 rs.’000
 Financial liabilities

 Other	provisions	and	payables	 	 1,514	 1,514	 -	 -		

 total  1,514 1,514 - -   

  “Current” represents financial liabilities which are due to mature within one year.

25.4 Market risk
	 Market	risk	is	the	risk	that	changes	in	market	prices,	such	as	foreign	exchange	rates,	interest	rates	and	equity	prices	that	will	affect	

the	Group’s	income	or	the	value	of	its	holdings	of	financial	instruments.	The	objective	of	market	risk	management	is	to	manage	and	
control	market	risk	exposure	within	acceptable	parameters,	while	optimising	the	return.

25.5 equity prices
	 The	Group	does	not	carry	quoted/non	quoted	investments	in	their	consolidated	statement	of	Financial	Position,	and	there	is	no	risk	

to changes in equity prices.

25.6 Foreign exchange risk
 The Group has no risk related to foreign currency fluctuations as there are no financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currency as at the reporting date.

	 The	group’s	certain	room	contracts	are	entered	into	foreign	currencies	and	invoiced	in	LKR	using	conversion	rate	established	by	
industry. purchases such as imports of capital goods for hotel operations are also transacted in foreign currency.

25.7 Interest rate risks
 Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation of the value or cash flows of an instrument due to changes in the market interest rates.

	 The	Group	has	borrowings	interest	rate	AWPLR	would	expose	the	Group	to	cash	flow/profits	as	the	amount	of	interest	paid	would	
be changed depending on market interest rates.

  Constant monitoring of market interest rates is carried out to ensure appropriate steps are taken to maximise the return on financial 
management and to minimise the cost of borrowings. Group very strongly negotiate with banks and obtains best possible interest 
rates for the Group’s borrowings. listed below are steps adopted by the group to minimise the effect of interest rate risks:

 1. Entering into loans with interest rate caps and fixed rates.

 2. Re negotiating with banks on interest rates when ever there is favorable fluctuations in the market rates.

26 caPItal ManaGeMent
	 The	Groups	objectives	when	managing	capital	are	to	safeguard	the	group’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern	in	order	to	

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
the capital The capital of the company consists ordinary share capital and long term borrowing    
	The	following	factors	are	also	objectively	taken	into	consideration	in	managing	the	capital	of	the	group.

 1. Maintain sufficient capital to meet minimum regulatory requirements. (Companies Act).

 2. Maintain strong equity base as opposed to debt capital.

	 3.	 Group’s	future	developments,	investments	and	business	strategies.

	 4.	 Group	cash	flow	projections	and	ability	to	pay	higher	returns	to	shareholders.
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notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

27.2 non-recurrent related Party transactions

	 There	were	no	non	recurrent	transactions	carried	out	with	related	parties	during	the	year;	other	than	transactions	refer	to	in	note	
no. 29 where the aggregate value of transaction exceeds 10% of equity or 5% of total assets which ever is lower.

27.3 recurrent related Party transactions
name of the related Party relationship Value of the 

related Party 
transactions 
entered into 
during the 

financial year
rs. ‘000

Value of the 
related Party 

transactions as 
a % of revenue

terms and 
condition of 
related Party 
transactions

the rationale for 
entering in to the 

transaction

Stassen	Exports	(Pvt)	Ltd Other	related	company 	36,079 6.08% Market Terms Purchase of goods

Aitken	Spence	Travels	Ltd Other	related	company 60,186 13% Market Terms Purchase of goods

27.4 transactions with Key Management Personnel    

 Browns	 Beach	 Hotels	 PLC,	 considers	 its	 Board	 of	 Directors	 as	 the	 Key	 Management	 Personnel	 of	 the	
Company. 

 There	were	no	transactions	with	Key	Management	Personnel	and	their	close	family	members	during	the	year,	which	require	
disclosure	as	per	LKAS-24	-	Related	Party	disclosures.	Employment	benefits	of	Key	Management	Personnel	are	as	detailed	below:

  Group company
  Year ended 31st March    2017 2016 2017 2016
      rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000      
	 Short	Term	employment	benefits	 	 	 	 	-	 	-				 	-				 	-

	 Post	employment	benefits	 	 	 	 -	 	-	 	-	 	-

28 caPItal eXPenDItUre coMMItMents
 The	new	resort	hotel,	Negombo	Beach	Resorts	 (Pvt)	Ltd,	which	 is	a	100%	owned	subsidiary	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	

commenced	its	commercial	operation	on	2nd	of	April	2016.	The	total	project	cost	incurred	is		Rs.	5.3	billion.

 There were no commitments for capital expenditure approved by the Directors as at 31st March 2017 Details at 31st March 
2016 is given below.

   Group company
  Year ended 31st March    2017 2016 2017 2016
   rs,’000 Rs,’000 rs,’000 Rs,’000	

	 Amount	approved	but	not	contracted	for	 -				 150,000		 	-				 	-			

	 Amount	contracted	for	but	not	incurred	 	-				 132,332		 	-				 	-			

	 	 	 -	 282,332	 	-	 -			

29 eVents occUrrInG aFter the rePortInG Date

 The	following	non-recurrent	related	party	transaction	took	place	since	the	post	balance	sheet	date	on	24th	July	2017.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.

Name of the 
Related Party 
Transaction 
with Parent 
Company

Relationship The rational 
for entering 
into the 
transaction

Value of the related 
party transactions 
entered on 24th 
July 2017
Rs.	‘000

Value of the 
related party 
transactions 
as a % of 
equity

Value of the 
related party 
transactions 
as a % of total 
Assets

Terms and 
conditions 
of the 
related party 
transaction

Aitken Spence 
Hotel 
Holdings	PLC

Shareholder Term loan for 
part finance 
the bridging 
loan obtain 
from HNB

588,752 19% 10% Repayable 
in 7 years 
with a grace 
period of two 
years. Interest 
AWPLR+1%

Melstacrop 
PLC

Shareholder Term loan for 
part finance 
the bridging 
loan obtain 
from HNB

657,112 21% 11% Repayable 
in 7 years 
with a grace 
period of two 
years. Interest 
AWPLR+1%

Stassens 
Exports	Ltd

Shareholder Term loan for 
part finance 
the bridging 
loan obtain 
from HNB

154,136 5% 3% Repayable 
in 7 years 
with a grace 
period of two 
years. Interest 
AWPLR+1%

30 contInGent lIaBIlItIes

 There were no significant contingent liabilities as at the reporting date.

31 UltIMate holDInG coMPanY

	 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC,	does	not	have	an	identifiable	parent	of	its	own.

32 aVeraGe nUMBer oF eMPloYees

	 The	Group’s	average	number	of	employees	as	at	31st	March	2017	was	282	(	2015/16	-	176	)

33 coMParatIVe InForMatIon

 The presentation and classification of financial statements of the comparative year has been amended where relevant 
to be comparable with those of the current year.

	 Other	 than	 the	 above	 no	 comparative	 information	 were	 changed	 during	 	 the	 year	 which	 require	 disclosure	 or	
adjustments	in	the	financial	statements.

34 DireCtOr’s respOnsibilitY

 The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial 
statements. 
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notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.
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related Party 
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Stassen	Exports	(Pvt)	Ltd Other	related	company 	36,079 6.08% Market Terms Purchase of goods

Aitken	Spence	Travels	Ltd Other	related	company 60,186 13% Market Terms Purchase of goods
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 Browns	 Beach	 Hotels	 PLC,	 considers	 its	 Board	 of	 Directors	 as	 the	 Key	 Management	 Personnel	 of	 the	
Company. 
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disclosure	as	per	LKAS-24	-	Related	Party	disclosures.	Employment	benefits	of	Key	Management	Personnel	are	as	detailed	below:
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  Year ended 31st March    2017 2016 2017 2016
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	 Short	Term	employment	benefits	 	 	 	 	-	 	-				 	-				 	-

	 Post	employment	benefits	 	 	 	 -	 	-	 	-	 	-

28 caPItal eXPenDItUre coMMItMents
 The	new	resort	hotel,	Negombo	Beach	Resorts	 (Pvt)	Ltd,	which	 is	a	100%	owned	subsidiary	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	

commenced	its	commercial	operation	on	2nd	of	April	2016.	The	total	project	cost	incurred	is		Rs.	5.3	billion.

 There were no commitments for capital expenditure approved by the Directors as at 31st March 2017 Details at 31st March 
2016 is given below.
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  Year ended 31st March    2017 2016 2017 2016
   rs,’000 Rs,’000 rs,’000 Rs,’000	

	 Amount	approved	but	not	contracted	for	 -				 150,000		 	-				 	-			

	 Amount	contracted	for	but	not	incurred	 	-				 132,332		 	-				 	-			

	 	 	 -	 282,332	 	-	 -			

29 eVents occUrrInG aFter the rePortInG Date

 The	following	non-recurrent	related	party	transaction	took	place	since	the	post	balance	sheet	date	on	24th	July	2017.

notes to the FInancIal stateMents - contd.
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Aitken Spence 
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Holdings	PLC

Shareholder Term loan for 
part finance 
the bridging 
loan obtain 
from HNB

588,752 19% 10% Repayable 
in 7 years 
with a grace 
period of two 
years. Interest 
AWPLR+1%

Melstacrop 
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Shareholder Term loan for 
part finance 
the bridging 
loan obtain 
from HNB

657,112 21% 11% Repayable 
in 7 years 
with a grace 
period of two 
years. Interest 
AWPLR+1%

Stassens 
Exports	Ltd

Shareholder Term loan for 
part finance 
the bridging 
loan obtain 
from HNB

154,136 5% 3% Repayable 
in 7 years 
with a grace 
period of two 
years. Interest 
AWPLR+1%

30 contInGent lIaBIlItIes

 There were no significant contingent liabilities as at the reporting date.

31 UltIMate holDInG coMPanY

	 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC,	does	not	have	an	identifiable	parent	of	its	own.

32 aVeraGe nUMBer oF eMPloYees

	 The	Group’s	average	number	of	employees	as	at	31st	March	2017	was	282	(	2015/16	-	176	)

33 coMParatIVe InForMatIon

 The presentation and classification of financial statements of the comparative year has been amended where relevant 
to be comparable with those of the current year.

	 Other	 than	 the	 above	 no	 comparative	 information	 were	 changed	 during	 	 the	 year	 which	 require	 disclosure	 or	
adjustments	in	the	financial	statements.

34 DireCtOr’s respOnsibilitY

 The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial 
statements. 
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 2016/2017  2015/2016  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013
 rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000
  %    %    %   %    % 

Total Revenue  593,861		 	 	-				 		 -	 	 -	 	 -

Purchase of goods & services (422,955)	 	 (39,140)	 	 (16,538)	 	 (11,082)	 	 (9,776)

 170,906	 	 (39,140)	 	 (16,538)	 	 (11,082)	 	 (9,776)

Other	income	 2,721	 	 188	 	 21,973	 	 165,379	 	 281,880

total value added 173,627	 	 (38,952)	 	 5,435	 	 154,297	 	 272,104

Distributed  as follows

to government
(Income	tax)	 13,125	 8	 	7,466	 (19)	 3,675		 	68		 	43,117		 	28		 	75,892		 	28	

to employees 
(Salaries & other) 135,040   78	 57,252		 	(147)	 16,524	 304	 17,049	 11	 7,593	 3

to lenders of capital 
(interest	on	loan	capital)	 285,804	 165	 -	 	-	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -			

retained for reinvestment 
& future growth
(Depreciation,	impairment	loss

& retained profits) (260,251) (150)	 (103,670)	 266	 (14,764)	 (272)	 94,131	 61	 188,619	 69

 173,627 100	 (38,952)	 100	 5,435	 100	 154,297	 100	 272,104	 100

Value added per ordinary

share (Rs.)  1.34  (0.30)   0.04  1.19      2.10

Value added is a measure of wealth created. The statement above shows the Group’s value added from 2012/13to 2016/17 and its distribution by way 
of	payments	to	Employees,	Government	and	to	those	who	have	provided	capital.	It	also	indicates	the	portion	retained	in	the	business.	 	 	 	
       

stateMent oF ValUe aDDeD 
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B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c

DecaDe at a Glance 

Year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
rs: 000 

resUlts

Turnover 580,827  -	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	317,837		 	250,407		 	233,411		 	252,597		
 
Profit/(loss) before taxation (482,909)  (97,111)	 	(11,996)	 	136,366		 	263,636		 	181,729		 	(925)	 	21,571		 	1,007		 	28,060

Income tax expense (91)	 	(7,466)	 	(3,675)	 	(43,117)	 	(75,892)	 	(53,120)	 	(846)	 	(3,909)	 	789		 	(8,057)	

Profit/(loss) after taxation (483,000)  (104,577)	 	(15,671)	 	93,249		 	187,744		 	128,609		 	(1,771)	 	17,662		 	218		 	2,003

sharehOlDers’ fUnDs

Stated capital 2,383,449	 	2,383,449		 	2,383,449		 	2,383,449		 	2,383,449		 	2,383,449		 	2,383,449		 	199,449		 	199,449		 	199,449		

Reserves 714,177 	1,059,618			1,167,027		 	1,189,297			1,098,106		 	912,432		 	308,066		 	320,479		 	302,817		 	302,599	

lIaBIlItIes

Current liabilities 1,980,786	 	242,503		 	124,391		 	12,127		 	26,295		 	54,449		 	39,624		 	73,928		 	66,136		 	76,965	

Non current liabilities 970,960  1,970,995		 	665,848		 	471		 	695		 	518		 	1,618		 	14,153		 	12,030		 	11,290

assets

Property,	plant	and	equipment	 5,906,680  5,635,284			4,253,558		 	2,536,602			1,638,371		 	985,825		 	385,012		 	520,372		 	510,095		 	502,863	

Deferred tax asset –  –   38   26   79   60   243  – – –

Current assets 142,601	 	21,281	 	87,119		 	1,048,716			1,869,577			2,364,455			2,732,757		 	87,637		 	70,337		 	87,440

ratIos

Return on average 
 shareholders’ funds (%) (15.59)  (2.99)  (0.44)  2.64   5.54   4.30   (0.07)  3.46   0.04   4.06

Interest cover (Times) 0.69 – – – – – – – – –

share InForMatIon

Earnings/(loss) per 
 ordinary share (Rs.) (3.73)  (0.81)  (0.12)  0.72   1.45   0.99   (0.04)  0.58*   0.02   2.08

Net assets per 
 ordinary share (Rs.) 23.90 26.57 27.40 27.57 26.86 25.43 20.76 4.01* 52.32 50.24

*	Adjusted	for	right	issue	and	subsequent	subdivision	of	shares.
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 2016/2017  2015/2016  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013
 rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000
  %    %    %   %    % 
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DecaDe at a Glance 

Year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
rs: 000 

resUlts
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share InForMatIon
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*	Adjusted	for	right	issue	and	subsequent	subdivision	of	shares.



01 00

B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c

shareholDer anD InVestor InForMatIon 

stocK eXchanGe lIstInG

Company Name .................................	 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC
Stock Symbol ...................................... BBH.N0000
ISIN  ...................................................	 LK02040004
Security Type in Issue ...........................	 Quoted	Ordinary	Shares
Listed	Exchange ...................................	 Colombo	Stock	Exchange	(CSE)	-	Main	Board
Market Sector. .....................................	 Public	Quoted	Company
Featured Stock Indices .........................	 All	Share	Price	Index	(ASPI),	S&P	(SL)	20	Index,	Diversified	Holdings	Index

share PerForMance

Market Value Per Share

For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Highest (Rs.) 36.50   41.80   30.00   22.50   32.00 
Lowest	(Rs.)	 15.00   24.70   18.80   16.30   11.80 
Closing (Rs.) 21.30   32.50   25.00   19.00   17.20

The market value of the ordinary share as at 25th August 2017 was Rs. 18.30

share traDInG InForMatIon

For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Number of transactions 1,951	 3,007	 4,144	 4,997	 9,978

No. of shares traded during the year 1,206,557	 3,951,977	 5,712,528	 9,361,753	 70,383,264	

Value of shares traded during the year (Rs.) 34,215,570	 131,733,464	 145,849,038	 186,402,473	 1,114,937,686

         
Market Value per share Value of shares traded no. of shares traded
For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st March

InVestor InForMatIon         
Market capitalisation
 as at 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Market Capitalisation on 31st March (Rs.) 2,760,480,000		 	4,212,000,000		 	3,240,000,000		 	2,462,400,000		 	2,229,120,000	

Market capitalisation
As at 31st March      
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shareholDer anD InVestor InForMatIon - contd.

  
earnings         
 For the year ended 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Earnings	per	share	-	Basic/Diluted	(Rs.)	 (3.73)  (0.81)  (0.12)  0.72   1.45 

Price earnings ratio (P/E) (Times) (5.72)  (40.28)  (158.33)  26.39   11.86

net assets Per share         
 as at 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
The Group (Rs.) 23.90 26.57 27.40  27.57 26.86  

 

earnings /(loss) per share net assets Per share Price earnings ratio
For the year ended 31st March As at 31st March As at 31st March

shareholDer coMPosItIon
 There	were	2,329	registered	shareholders	as	at	31st	March	2017	and	they	are	entitled	for	one	vote	per	share.	(31st	March	2016	

-	2,284).

 shareholder category 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

  no. of shareholders no. of shares % no. of shareholders no. of shares %

	 	 1	 -	 1,000	 1,675 392,801  0.30	 1,619	 388,218	 0.30	

	 	 1,001	 -	 10,000	 511 1,663,616 1.28	 	524	 1,717,150	 1.32	

	 	 10,001	 -	 100,000	 115 3,223,454 2.49		 	113		 	3,286,105		 	2.54	

	 	 100,001	 -	 1,000,000	 23   6,916,419   5.34		 23		 	6,875,619		 	5.31

	 1,000,001		 -	 above	 5   117,403,710   90.59   5		 	117,332,908		 	90.53	

   Total  2,329   129,600,000   100.00		 	2,284		 	129,600,000		 	100.00	
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stocK eXchanGe lIstInG

Company Name .................................	 Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC
Stock Symbol ...................................... BBH.N0000
ISIN  ...................................................	 LK02040004
Security Type in Issue ...........................	 Quoted	Ordinary	Shares
Listed	Exchange ...................................	 Colombo	Stock	Exchange	(CSE)	-	Main	Board
Market Sector. .....................................	 Public	Quoted	Company
Featured Stock Indices .........................	 All	Share	Price	Index	(ASPI),	S&P	(SL)	20	Index,	Diversified	Holdings	Index

share PerForMance

Market Value Per Share

For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Highest (Rs.) 36.50   41.80   30.00   22.50   32.00 
Lowest	(Rs.)	 15.00   24.70   18.80   16.30   11.80 
Closing (Rs.) 21.30   32.50   25.00   19.00   17.20

The market value of the ordinary share as at 25th August 2017 was Rs. 18.30

share traDInG InForMatIon

For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Number of transactions 1,951	 3,007	 4,144	 4,997	 9,978

No. of shares traded during the year 1,206,557	 3,951,977	 5,712,528	 9,361,753	 70,383,264	

Value of shares traded during the year (Rs.) 34,215,570	 131,733,464	 145,849,038	 186,402,473	 1,114,937,686

         
Market Value per share Value of shares traded no. of shares traded
For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st March

InVestor InForMatIon         
Market capitalisation
 as at 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
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shareholDer anD InVestor InForMatIon - contd.
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The Group (Rs.) 23.90 26.57 27.40  27.57 26.86  

 

earnings /(loss) per share net assets Per share Price earnings ratio
For the year ended 31st March As at 31st March As at 31st March

shareholDer coMPosItIon
 There	were	2,329	registered	shareholders	as	at	31st	March	2017	and	they	are	entitled	for	one	vote	per	share.	(31st	March	2016	

-	2,284).
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   Total  2,329   129,600,000   100.00		 	2,284		 	129,600,000		 	100.00	
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residents/non- residents

   31st March 2017 31st March 2016

  no. of shareholders no. of shares % No. of Shareholders No. of Shares %

residents    2,315 126,767,891 97.81	 2,268	 	126,833,559		 	97.87	

non-residents    14 2,832,109 2.19	 15	 	2,766,441		 	2.13	

total    2,329   129,600,000   100.00	 2,283				 	129,600,000		 	100.00

          

Individuals/Institutions
        

   31st March 2017 31st March 2016

  no. of shareholders no. of shares % No. of Shareholders No. of Shares %

Institutions     66   120,313,131   92.83 	 60	 	120,161,687		 	92.72	

Individuals     2,263   9,286,869   7.17 	 2,223	 	9,438,313		 	7.28	

total     2,329   129,600,000   100.00		 2,283			 	129,600,000		 	100.00

Percentage of the shares held by the public as at 31st March 2017 is 9.206% and number of public shareholders was 

2,320.

8. twenty largest shareholders as at 31st March 2017  2016 
  name  no. of shares % no. of shares %

1	 Melstacorp	PLC 54,273,234   41.88   54,273,234		 	41.88 
2	 Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Holdings	PLC 47,455,750   36.62   47,455,750		 	36.62 
3	 Stassen	Exports	Limited 12,730,620   9.82   12,730,620		 	9.82 
4	 Elgin	Investments	Limited 1,692,548   1.31   1,623,330		 	1.25 
5	 Lanka	Milk	Foods	(CWE)	Limited 1,251,558   0.97   1,251,558		 	0.97 
6	 MR.	H.	W.	M.	Woodward 1,000,000   0.77  	1,000,000		 	0.77 
7	 Milford	Exports	(Ceylon)	(Pvt)	Limited  768,960   0.59   768,960		 	0.59 
8 MRS. S. S. A. M. De Silva 470,000   0.36  	470,000		 	0.36 
9	 Aitken	Spence	Hotels	Limited 432,459   0.33   432,459		 	0.33 
10	 Heritance	(Private)	Limited 432,444   0.33   432,444		 	0.33 
11 MRS. V. R. Jayasinghe 432,378   0.33   382,390		 	0.30 
12 MS. F. A. A. Mack 367,500   0.28   365,000		 	0.28 
13	 Kandalama	Hotels	Ltd 306,450   0.24   306,450		 	0.24 
14 MR. A. Sithampalam 295,130   0.23  	295,130		 	0.23 
15 MRS. C. S. Silvapulle 251,167   0.19  	246,200		 	0.19	
16	 MR.	P.	P.	Thevarajah 223,722   0.17  	223,722		 	0.17 
17 MR. I. K. Amerasinghe 222,689   0.17  	238,641		 	0.18	
18	 MR.	S.	D.	Weveldeniya 211,173   0.16  	183,250		 	0.14	
19	 MR.	W.	P.	S.	Weerasinghe 210,832   0.16  	211,416		 	0.16	
20 MR. P. A. Anil 182,710   0.14  	182,710		 	0.14 
 total  123,211,324   95.07   123,073,264		 	94.97 

GlossarY 

accoUntInG PolIcIes
The	specific	principles,	bases,	conventions,	Current	assets	

divided by current liabilities. rules and practices adopted 

by an enterprise in preparing and presenting Financial 

Statements.

accrUal BasIs
Recording revenue & expenses in the period in which 

they are earned or incurred regardless of whether cash is 

received or disbursed in that period.

aMortIsatIon
The systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of 

an intangible asset over its useful life.

aVeraGe weIGhteD PrIMe lenDInG rate 
(awPlr)
Reflects rates applicable on loans and advances granted 

by commercial banks to their most creditworthy customers.

asset tUrnoVer
Total revenue divided by average total asset.

caPItal eMPloYeD
Total shareholders’ funds plus debt and minority interest.

cash eQUIValents
High liquid investments that are readily convertible 

to	 know	amounts	 of	 cash	 and	which	 are	 subject	 to	 an	

insignificant risk of change in value.

contInGent lIaBIlItIes
A condition or situation at the Balance Sheet events. date 

of which the financial effect will be determined only on the 

occurrence,	or	non	occurrence	of	one	or	more	uncertain	

future events.

collateral
Monetary	 or	 non-monetary	 asset	 pledged	 or	 received	

as security in lieu of a loan or credit terms obtained or 

provided.

cUrrent ratIo
Current assets divided by current liabilities.

DeBt/eQUItY ratIo
Ratio between interest bearing borrowing and 

shareholder’s equity.

DeFerreD IncoMe taX
The net tax effect on items which have been included 

in	 the	 Income	 Statement,	 which	 would	 only	 qualify	 for	

inclusion on a tax return at a future date.

earnInGs/(DeFIcIt) Per share (ePs)
Profit/(Loss)	attributable	to	Equity	Holders	of	the	Company	

divided by weighted average number of ordinary shares 

in issue.

eBIt
Earnings before interest and tax.

eBItDa
Earnings	 before	 interest,	 taxes,	 depreciation	 and	

amortisation.

eFFectIVe rate oF taXatIon
Income tax over profit before tax

ePs Growth
Percentage of increase in the EPS over the previous year.

FInancIal leVeraGe
Total average assets divided by total average equity.
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total    2,329   129,600,000   100.00	 2,283				 	129,600,000		 	100.00
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Institutions     66   120,313,131   92.83 	 60	 	120,161,687		 	92.72	

Individuals     2,263   9,286,869   7.17 	 2,223	 	9,438,313		 	7.28	

total     2,329   129,600,000   100.00		 2,283			 	129,600,000		 	100.00

Percentage of the shares held by the public as at 31st March 2017 is 9.206% and number of public shareholders was 

2,320.

8. twenty largest shareholders as at 31st March 2017  2016 
  name  no. of shares % no. of shares %

1	 Melstacorp	PLC 54,273,234   41.88   54,273,234		 	41.88 
2	 Aitken	Spence	Hotel	Holdings	PLC 47,455,750   36.62   47,455,750		 	36.62 
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6	 MR.	H.	W.	M.	Woodward 1,000,000   0.77  	1,000,000		 	0.77 
7	 Milford	Exports	(Ceylon)	(Pvt)	Limited  768,960   0.59   768,960		 	0.59 
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GearInG
Borrowings to capital employed.

IMPaIrMent
This occurs when recoverable amount of an asset is less 

than its carrying amount.

Interest coVer
This	 indicates	 the	ability	of	an	entity	 to	cover	 long-term	

and	short-term	interest	expenses	with	EBIT.	(Profit	before	

Interest & Taxation divided by total Interest charged for 

the year).

MarKet caPItalIsatIon
The number of ordinary shares in issue multiplied by the 

market price per share as at the reported date.

net assets Per share
Shareholders’ funds divided by the number of ordinary 

shares in issue as at the end of the year.

non-controllInG Interest
Part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a 

subsidiary	attributable	to	interests	which	are	not	owned,	

directly	or	indirectly,	 through	Subsidiaries,	by	the	Parent	

company.

PrIce earnInGs ratIo (Per)
Market price per share divided by the earnings per share.

PrIce to BooK ValUe ratIo (PBV)
Market price per share divided by net assets per share.

retUrn on caPItal eMPloYeD
Profit	 before	 Tax	 divided	 by	 total	 shareholder	 ‘s	 funds,	

minority	 interest,	non	current	 interest	bearing	borrowings	

and differed taxation.

retUrn on eQUItY
Profit attributable to shareholders as a percentage of 

average shareholders’ funds.

retUrn On sharehOlDer’s fUnDs
Attributable profits divided by average Shareholders’ 

funds.

sharehOlDer’s fUnDs
The	sum	of	Share	capital,	Capital	Reserves	and	Revenue	

Reserves.

ValUe aDDeD
The wealth created by the operation of the company. 

The value is distributed among the stakeholders and the 

balance retained within the business.

YIelD to MatUrItY
The discount rate that equals present value of  all expected 

interest payment and the repayment of principal.

corPorate InForMatIon 

name
Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC

legal Form
A	Public	Quoted	Company	with	limited	liability, 
incorporated	in	Sri	Lanka	on	4th	August	1992

company registration number
PQ	202

registered Office
315,	Vauxhall	Street,	Colombo	02

Directors 
Deshamanya D H S Jayawardena (Chairman) 
Mr.	J	M	S	Brito	LLB,	FCA,	MBA
Ms. D S T Jayawardena
Mr. C R Stanislaus 
Mr.	A	L	Gooneratne	FCA
Mr.	N	J	de	S	Deva	Aditya	DL,	FRSA,	MEP
Mr. R N Asirwatham FCA 
Mr.	M	V	Theagarajah	(Ceased	to	be	a	Director	on	11th	
September 2016)

subsidiary company
Negombo	Beach	Resorts	(Pvt)	Ltd

Directors of subsidiary company
Deshamanya	D	H	S	Jayawardena,	(Chairman)	
Ms. D S T Jayawardena 
Mr. C M S Jayawickrama FCMA
Mr. C R Stanislaus

secretaries
P	W	Corporate	Secretarial	(Private)	Limited	
3/17,	Kynsey	Road,	
Colombo 08. 
Tel	 :	 (94	11)	4640360-3
Fax : (94 11) 4740588

auditors
Messrs. KPMG 
Chartered Accountants
32A,	Sri	Mohamad	Macan	Markar	Mawatha,
P.O.	Box	186,	Colombo	03.

Bankers
Hatton	National	Bank	PLC	
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

audit committee 
Mr. R. N. Asirwatham – Chairman
Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne
Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya 

remuneration committee
Mr. R. N. Asirwatham – Chairman
Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne
Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya 

related Party transaction review committee
Mr. R. N. Asirwatham – Chairman
Mr.	A.	L.	Gooneratne
Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya 

website
www.aitkenspencehotels.com

contact Details
Aitken	Spence	Corporate	Finance	(Private)	Limited	
No. 315 Vauxhall Street 
Colombo 02 
Sri	Lanka
Tel : (94 11) 2308308
Fax : (94 11) 2445406
E-Mail	 :	 comsec@aitkenspence.lk
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A	Public	Quoted	Company	with	limited	liability, 
incorporated	in	Sri	Lanka	on	4th	August	1992

company registration number
PQ	202
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315,	Vauxhall	Street,	Colombo	02
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Deshamanya D H S Jayawardena (Chairman) 
Mr.	J	M	S	Brito	LLB,	FCA,	MBA
Ms. D S T Jayawardena
Mr. C R Stanislaus 
Mr.	A	L	Gooneratne	FCA
Mr.	N	J	de	S	Deva	Aditya	DL,	FRSA,	MEP
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subsidiary company
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Mr. N. J. de Silva Deva Aditya 

website
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E-Mail	 :	 comsec@aitkenspence.lk
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notIce oF MeetInG 

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Fifth Annual 
General Meeting of Browns Beach Hotels PLC will be 
held at the Auditorium of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka, 30A, Malalasekera 
Mawatha, Colombo 7, at 10.00 am on 29th 
September 2017, for the following purposes: -

1. To receive and consider the Annual Report 
of the Board of Directors together with the 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2017 with the Report of the Auditors’ 
thereon. 

2. To re-appoint Deshamanya D H S Jayawardena 
who is over the age of 70 years, as a Director 
by passing the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution.

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit 
stipulated in Section 210 of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to Deshamanya 
D H S Jayawardena who has attained the age 
of 75 years and that he be re-appointed a 
Director of the Company.”

3. To re-appoint Mr. R N Asirwatham who is over 
the age of 70 years, as a Director by passing 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution.

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit 
stipulated in Section 210 of the Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to Mr. R N 
Asirwatham who has attained the age of 75 
years and that he be re-appointed a Director 
of the Company.”

4. To re-appoint Mr. J M S Brito who is over the 
age of 70 years, as a Director by passing 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit 
stipulated in Section 210 of the Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to Mr. J M 
S Brito who has attained the age of 71 years 
and that he be re-appointed a Director of the 
Company.”

5. To re-elect Ms. D S T Jayawardena who retires 
in terms of Article 84 and 85 of the Articles of 
Association, as a Director.

6. To authorise the Directors to determine 
contributions to charities.

7. To re-appoint the retiring Auditors, Messrs. 
KPMG, Chartered Accountants and authorise 
the Directors to determine their remuneration.

8. To consider any other business of which due 
notice has been given.

By Order of the Board 

Browns Beach hotels Plc

Anusha Wijesekara
P W Corporate Secretarial (Pvt) Ltd.
Secretaries

25th August, 2017
Colombo

note:

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at 
the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to 
attend, speak and vote in his/her stead and 
a Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose.  
A Proxy need not be a shareholder of the 
Company.

2. The completed Form of Proxy must be 
deposited at the Registered Office No. 315, 
Vauxhall Street, Colombo 2, not less than 
forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting.

ForM oF ProXY 

I/We .....................................................................................................................................................................

of ..........................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................ being	a	shareholder/shareholders	of	Browns	Beach	Hotels	PLC	hereby	appoint

...........................................................................................................................................................................of

......................................................................................................................................................... (whom failing)

Don Harold Stassen Jayawardena (whom failing)

Joseph Michael Suresh Brito (whom failing)

Don Stasshani Therese Jayawardena (whom failing)

Christie	Ranjan	Stanislaus	 (whom	failing)

Amitha	Lal	Gooneratne		 (whom	failing)

Rajanayagam	Nalliah	Asirwatham	 (whom	failing)

Niranjan	Joseph	de	Silva	Deva	Aditya	

as	my/our	Proxy	to	represent	me/us,	to	speak	and	to	vote	for	me/us	and	on	my/our	behalf	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting	

of	the	Company	to	be	held	on	the	29th	day	of		September	2017,	and	at	any	adjournment	thereof	and	at	every	poll	which	

may be taken in consequence thereof.

Signed this….………………… day of ……………… Two Thousand Seventeen. 

 …………………………………

 Signature

Note :  Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof
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To	request	information	or	submit	a	comment/query	to	the	Company,	please	complete	the	following	and	return	the	page	

to	-

Chief	Financial	Officer,

Browns Beach hotels Plc
No.	315,	Vauxhall	Street,

Colombo 02.

Sri	Lanka

Name  :  …………………......………………………………………………………….

Permanent Mailing Address : …………………......………………………………………………………….

Contact	Number	-	(Tel)	 :	 ………………………..	 ………………………..	 ……………………….	

  Country Code Area Code Number

E-mail	 :	 …………….………………………………………………………………......

Name of Company : …………………………………………………………………………….......

(If Applicable)

Designation : ………………………………………………………………………………...

(If Applicable)

Company Address : ……………………………………………………………………...................

(If Applicable)

Queries/Comments

InVestor FeeDBacK ForMInstrUctIons as to coMPletIon

1.	 Kindly	perfect	the	form	of	proxy	by	filling	in	legibly	your	full	name	and	address,	signing	in	the	space	provided	and	

filling in the date of signature.

2.	 If	the	proxy	form	is	signed	by	an	Attorney,	the	relative	power	of	attorney	should	also	accompany	the	proxy	form	for	

registration,	if	such	power	of	attorney	has	not	already	been	registered	with	the	Company.

3.	 In	 the	case	of	a	Company/Corporation,	 the	proxy	must	be	executed	 in	 the	manner	prescribed	by	 its	Articles	of	

Association.

4.	 The	completed	form	of	proxy	should	be	deposited	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company,	No.	315,	Vauxhall	

Street,	Colombo	02	not	later	than	10.00	am	on	27th	September	2017.
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